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Corporate Profile 2 Ff&

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRG”) on 28 December
2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A Shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company was listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing and sales of hydraulic roof
supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged in the trading of steel and other raw materials primarily
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company’s established operating history, high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the PRC coal mining and
excavating equipment market.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the board of directors
(the “Board”) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, to present
the annual report of the Group for the period
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the
“2016 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Chairman’s Statement EEE &=

Dear Shareholders,

In 2016, under the complicated circumstance of prolonged slowdown of
macroeconomic growth, the constantly destocking of the coal industry and the
constant shrinkage of the coal mining machinery market, and in line with the
annual goal of “securing collection of receivables while stabilizing the market,
uplifting efficiency for survival, adjusting structure for corporate transformation,
and intensifying reforms while seeking innovation”, ZMJ took a key step forward
towards its transformation. Key efforts were made to intensify reform and foster
industrial transformation. Advocating its diversified array of sales modes and
probing potentials for cost reduction, the Company achieved stable production
operation. Under the condition of continual fall of major operation indicators
and overall loss-making position of the whole industry, net profit attributable
to the parent increased by 46.92% year-on-year. In 2016, the Company once
again withstood a severe test and accumulated power to resist a winter of the
industry.
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Discussion and analysis of the operation of the
Company during the reporting period

(1) Substantial progress was made in the Company’s

industrial transformation, outlining the rough shape
of a dual-driven pattern

In 2016, the Company acquired six auto parts companies under
ASIMCO Group through issuing shares and cash payment, at a
consideration of RMB2.2 billion. The acquisition obtained approval
from China Securities Regulatory Commission on 28 December
2016. As at the date of disclosure of this report, we have completed
share transfer in respect of the target companies and registration of
share issuance. Upon completion of the acquisition, the Company
has duly entered the auto parts market of a scale of RMB1 trillion,
forming the two principal businesses of coal mining machinery and
auto parts.

Collection of debts by various means proved to be
effective, while innovative sales mode achieved
breakthroughs amidst adversity

For the domestic market, we stepped up efforts of collection of
receivables and strengthened collection and assessment of long-
overdue amounts, gradually recovering such long-standing debts.
Through risk control we eliminated new risky arrears. We expanded
capital return channels through developing initiatively returning
of developers, participation of leaders in returning, netting off of
accounts, legal means and full clearance initiative. In 2016, amount
of collection of receivables increased by 4.24% year-on-year. By
strengthening information collection and management, we fully
utilized the Company’s brand advantages and market advantage of
strategic cooperation users. Through promoting new sales modes
such as finance lease, life cycle service etc, we facilitated customer
orientation procurement, consolidated market share and optimized
customer structure. In 2016, bid winning rate of negotiable bidding
projects engaged increased by 8.82%, maintaining a relatively high
market share.

In relation to international market, sales orders increased by
121.52% year-on-year in 2016. Supports sold to the United States
were delivered to coal sites and started coal mining, signifying a
ground-breaking progress where a Chinese coal mining machinery
manufacturer taps the high-end segment of the American market
for the first time ever. The bulk sale of upright posts to Australia was
delivered successfully, thereby entering Australia’s high-end market.
Russian Chinese Paradise classes were successfully launched and
achieved innovation in international sales modes. With 100% ratio
of achieving designed capacity, we are the only comprehensive
coal mining machinery supplier in Vietnamese market to have such
attainment. India Mo Nidi project achieved output according to the
planned output, eliminating long-term worries of Indian coal industry
about failure of longwall comprehensive coal mining technology to
operate successfully in India.
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Production methods continued to enhance,
delivering products with steadily rising quality

We vigorously promoted centralized production with the goal of
meeting customers’ needs. Supply of materials for assembly in full
set and on time was enforced. Manufacturing cycle of 100 units
in 2016 shortened by 8.81% year on year compared with 2015.
Product on-schedule delivery rate reached 100%. Production
structure and layout were continually adjusted. Guided under the
principle of streamlined production, we established an indicator
system for production system evaluation.

By further strengthening measures such as quality control, process
discipline, abnormality handling and after-sales service process
standardization, product quality has been further improved. In 2016
internal quality loss decreased by 54.26% year on year and after-
sales quality loss decreased by 17.88% year on year.

Production technology and manufacturing processes
improved steadily and key projects continued to
have ground-breaking performance

Leveraging on the opportunities of exporting upright posts to Australia
and roof supports to the United States, we established our design
and development and manufacturing process system for ultra-
high-end roof supports and reached a world-leading level. Roof
supports to the United States market passed US test standard in
66,000 times pressure tests. Upright posts to the Australian market
passed 36,000 cycle tests, far above European test standards.
We completed Shenhua’s order for the bulk production of and use
in mine shaft of 8-meter supports and will create world record in
annual production of raw coal on a single surface. We completed the
design and production of 8.8-meter supports sample machine and
renewed world record in hydraulic roof supports’ work resistance and
support height. We won first place with absolute advantage in expert
assessment of 3 manufacturers.

We adjusted the organization structure of design research institute
and set up branch research institutes and branch design institutes.
We strengthened research and development and reserve of frontier
technology and promoted the application of value engineering in
design. NOO method, which was jointly developed by us and China
University of Mining and Technology, was successfully applied in
Shaanxi Coal Group’s Ning Tiao Ta mine and started new exploration
of mining technology reforms. We won 2 patent prizes in the second
session of the China Coal Industry Patent Award. We obtained 14
authorized patents, of which 7 are invention patents and 7 are utility
model patents.
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Operation and management was comprehensively
refined; reduced cost and enhanced efficiency was
further fostered

Based on profit assessment, we promoted exploration of potential in
business value chain and effectively controlled cost and enhanced
efficiency. Streamlined management continued to fortify. In 2016,
the accumulated number of improvement proposals completed
by different units totalled 9,103, and the rate of participation for
improvement was 64.5%. We organized the “Quality Improvement
Special Month” and “Safety Improvement Special Month” activities
and held the third “Improvement Competition”. We also embarked
upon cross-department joint quality improvement activities and fully
launched amoeba-style operation in different production plants on a
trial basis. Accounting units were contracted to cover the respective
production sites, thereby encouraging staff members to become
operators and guided transformation of production units from
production-mission-based to production-operation-based. We tried
promotion of mobile internet application and expanded the approval
functions to enable instant push via mobile devices.

In 2016, the cost of production process reduced by RMB30.85
million. The cost of raw materials procurement reduced by RMB25.72
million. Stocked-up inventories were better made use of, and further
stocking increase was more efficiently constrained. Joint netting off of
accounts of coal, steel and machinery operated in an orderly manner.
A comprehensive joint checking system of procured resources has
been established.

Comprehensive activation of deepening reforms

In tandem with the government’s initiatives of intensifying reforms of
state-owned industrial enterprises in Henan Province, the Company
formulated its proposal for intensifying reform, identified the
Company’s direction and objectives of augmenting its reform, and
planned the future layout and development path of the Company.
We simultaneously pushed ahead our mixed ownership reform and
industrial transformation and achieved new breakthrough. In the
course of acquisition of the six auto parts companies, we introduced
strategic investors and employee shareholdings and further optimized
shareholder structure.

We accelerated “slimming” of the coal mining machinery segment.
Substantial progress has been made in equity disposal of some
subsidiaries. We conducted research on intensifying reforms of some
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries such as ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment
also attained good results in reducing loss and enhancing efficiency.
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Analysis of Industry Operational Information

1.

Overview of the coal industry

1)

(2)

From a long-term perspective, the growth rate of demand
for coal will slow down continuously and consumption
weighting will continually fall

The world economy is recovering under twists and turns and
growing slowly amidst deep adjustment. China is transforming
from an industrial economy to a service-oriented economy.
Energy consumption growth is slowing down. Affected
by factors such as increasingly stringent environmental
requirements, addressing climate change, renewable energy
alternatives etc, coal consumption growth will continue to slow
down. According to the Thirteenth Five-year Plan for China’s
Energy Development, during the thirteenth five-year plan period,
domestic non-fossil energy consumption weighting will increase
to exceed 15%, whilst the weighting of coal consumption will
fall below 58%. By 2020, coal consumption is expected to be 4.1
billion tons and coal production 3.9 billion tons, with sustained
slowing of average annual growth. China’s Thirteenth Five-
year Plan for the Coal Industry has pointed out that backward
excessive production capacity of 800 million tons will be
eliminated and capacity of 500 million tons will be reduced and
restructured by year 2020. Reduction of excessive capacity will
still be the focus of supply side reform of coal industry in the
next 3 to 5 years.

Short term rebounding from bottom of the coal industry

According to data from the National Bureau of Statistics, above-
scale raw coal production in China reached 3.364 billion tons
in 2016, representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.4%. The
investment in fixed assets by the coal mining and processing
industry in China was only RMB303.8 billion, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 24.2%. After reduction of excessive
capacity of coal and the implementation of 276 working days,
the supply of coal shrank, aggregate coal stocks declined and
coal prices returned to a reasonable level. The fourth quarter of
2016 saw short-term warming of the coal industry. However,
the condition of excessive supply of the coal market did not
change fundamentally.
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2. Coal mining machinery industry faced challenges
and opportunities

(1)

@

Coal mining machinery enterprises will face survival and
development crisis in the future

Affected by downstream coal industry, the layout of the
international coal mining machinery industry is undergoing
significant changes. According to public information,
international coal mining machinery giant Joy Global Inc. (JOY)
will be acquired by the Japan-based Komatsu. Factories of JOY
in Jixi and Jiamusi of China have closed down and JOY recorded
losses. The coal-mining machinery segment of Caterpillar
(formerly DBT) has basically withdrawn from the Chinese coal
mining machinery market.

Affected by the decline of the coal industry in recent years,
demand continued to shrink in China’s coal mining machinery
market and industry competition intensified. The industry was
basically loss-making and some players have exited from the
market. According to China Coal Mining Machinery Association’s
data, for the first 11 months in 2016, industrial output value
of 38 enterprises covered by the statistics of such association
reached RMB24.557 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 29.08%. Total profit reached RMB —886 million,
showing a substantial decline year on year.

In the long term, as in the downstream coal industry, the
“ceiling effect” will become increasingly obvious for the coal
mining machinery industry as determined by China’s resources
endowment being “rich in coal, poor in oil and insufficient
in gas”, where the domestic market is levelling out and will
gradually shrink in future, despite the ongoing existence of the
industry.

Recovery of the coal industry brings forth short-term
opportunities

In the fourth quarter of 2016, rebound of coal prices improved
the profitability and cash flow of coal enterprises. Driving forces
such as efficiency, safety, replacement demand etc. boosted a
rise in demand for coal mining machinery. The warming of coal
industry was transmitted to the coal mining machinery industry.
In 2017, coal mining machinery enterprises may see some
short-term growth in demand.
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3. The Company’s operations

In 2016, under the prolonged slowdown of macroeconomic growth,
the constantly destocking of the coal industry and the constant
shrinkage of the coal mining machinery market, the Company’s key
economic benchmarks such as revenue fell year-on-year.

Advocating its diversified array of sales modes and probing potentials
for cost reduction, the Company achieved stable production
operation. In 2016, revenue fell by 19.56% year-on-year and total
profit increased by 23.11% year-on-year. Net profit attributable to
the parent increased by 46.92% year-on-year.

lll. Discussion of and Analysis on the Future
Development of the Company

() Industry layout and trends

1.

Brand advantage will become obvious

After nearly 60 years of sound development, especially the
swift development since year 2000, ZMJ has become a leader
in the coal mining machinery industry in the PRC. At a time of
industry-wide difficulty, coal mining customers’ requirements
on equipment have structurally changed, with more stringent
requirements on brand, technology and quality. This will further
underscore ZMJ’s brand advantage which will bestow higher
chances to ZMJ and put it in better position for embarking upon
business model which can hardly be replicated or imitated by
competitors.

Emergence of good opportunities for merger and
acquisition and reorganization

With the structural adjustment in both the global economy
as well as the industry, coupling with the expedited pace of
transformation and upgrading of China’s economy, merger,
acquisition and reorganization are expected to flourish in various
industries including the coal mining machinery industry in the
near future. Capitalizing on the domestic and overseas platform
of investment and financing, the Company may consolidate
high-quality resources in the global coal mining machinery
industry, actively probe into potential opportunities in other
industries, explore a second line of principal business through
merger and acquisition and reorganization, and bring forth new
revenue streams and sources of profit growth.
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3. Coexistence of opportunity and risk

Looking at the trend of macroeconomic development, coal
will remain a key source of energy in the PRC in the long
term. Policies related to the state’s initiatives on supply-
side structural reform for coal mining encourage and support
the transformation of coal mining machinery enterprises into
becoming more automated and machine-intensive, promote
the use of key technology in green and smart mines, and in
turn enhance the production level of advanced equipment for
large-scale coal mining activities. Meanwhile, a peak period of
machine replacements is expected in the coal mining machinery
industry invested during the “Golden Decade for Coal”. This
will present a new round of opportunities of driving demand for
high-end and smart comprehensive coal mining equipment and
the upgrading of technology for coal mining.

() The Company’s development strategies

First, strategic positioning as an international enterprise: Economic
globalization has become an irreversible trend. It is a strategic
choice in line with the current global economic development and
also a necessary path to becoming an international enterprise, for
an advantageous enterprise basically equipped with international
competitiveness, to seek self-enhancement to an international
standard, adopt “outbound development” strategies, actively
participate in international competition and cooperation, and
continually explore the room for existence and development.

Second, market-oriented corporate governance: A sound mechanism
is pivotal to the virtuous cycle of development of an enterprise. In
recent years, ZMJ has been bold in exploration and implementation
in terms of corporate systems and structures, bringing remarkable
improvements in its corporate governance, albeit the inadequacy
in its market-oriented development in comparison with enterprises
which are fully exposed to market competition. In pursuit of corporate
growth in terms of size and strength, an enterprise which is under
full exposure to market competition needs further intensified, market-
oriented reforms in systems and structures: Leveraging on “developing
mixed-ownership economy” to further optimize shareholding structure
and uplift the level of corporate governance; Having in place a board
of directors which operates in market-oriented approach, so that it
becomes the platform for governance, for expression of thoughts and
for decision-making; Adopting tenure-based management for senior
management staff, promoting a system of professional managers,
and exploring market-oriented mechanisms for remuneration,
incentives, appraisal and restrictions applicable to the general
management and staff.
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Third, diversified industry layout: First of all, with its footholds in
the coal mining machinery industry, the Company will build a world
class brand of comprehensive coal mining machinery equipment and
service delivery. It will probe into the international high-end market
to seek some market share from major international players in the
coal mining machinery industry, making itself a world class supplier
of comprehensive coal mining machinery equipment and a worldwide
top-notch service provider in coal mining machinery equipment;
Further, it will identify new revenue streams and new sources of
profit growth by exploring a second line of principal business through
merger, acquisition and reorganization.

Fourth, globalization of talents: Talents are the ultimate source
of corporate reforms and innovations, and the most substantial
resources for corporate development. By steadfastly adhering to the
strategy of people-based corporate development under the mindset
of “innovations, open-mindedness and inclusion”, sustainably
optimizing the structure of existing human resources under a market-
oriented mindset, creating a scientific system of talents incubation
and development, having in place a clear path of career promotion,
adopting a reasonable system of remuneration and, from a global
perspective and under a market-oriented mechanism, recruiting and
retaining people of high caliber under a human resources mechanism
via both training and selective hiring, we will be able to lay a solid
foundation upon which we will build a century-lasting ZMJ.

Operation plans

2017 will be a pivotal year in China’s initiatives to foster structural
reform as well as the first year for the Company in kicking start its
comprehensively intensified reform and industrial transformation
and upgrade. Under the guidance of the corporate development
strategy, and taking into account the current internal and external
circumstances, the Company has devised its annual goal for year
2017, namely “intensifying reforms for business model, advance trial
and practice for fostering innovation, solidifying foundation for quality,
and stabilizing operation for sustained growth”. In line with this
annual goal for year 2017, we will work on enhancing our profitability
and focus on the following aspects:
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1. Intensifying reforms for business model

Based on the direction of intensifying corporate reforms, ZMJ
will form its dual principal businesses of coal mining machinery
and auto parts and will explore establishing other business
segments.

First,

Second,

we will strengthen our coal mining machinery business
in terms of breadth and depth.

We will seize the opportunity brought by the reform of
the coal industry and push ahead the transformation
of our coal mining machinery business from
manufacturing-based to “manufacturing + service”,
and from a product manufacturer to a system
integrator. We will seize the opportunities presented
by the reform of the coal industry and the cyclical
opportunity of equipment upgrade, solidify competitive
advantage, expand market share and strengthen the
development and application of frontier technology.
We will seize the opportunity of intelligent integration
and execute intelligent modification in our coal mining
machinery production process. We will enhance our
operational efficiency and consolidate and enhance
product performance and quality advantages. We
will uplift our existing competitive advantage in the
international market and accelerate our globalized
layout.

we will consolidate and expand our newly acquired
auto parts business.

As of the date of disclosure of this report, the transfer
of assets under the material assets reorganization
has been completed. In 2017, we will consolidate our
newly acquired auto parts business, achieve smooth
handover of the undertakings, and maintain the
stability and continuity of the existing management
team and organizational structure. We will consolidate
the corporate strategies of the 6 acquired companies,
strengthen their respective profitability, and pursue
healthy and virtuous development in them. We will also
foster the mutual benefits between the coal mining
machinery segment and the auto parts segment and
seek synergetic effects among the two segments in
terms of development strategies, culture, technology,
finance and management, and in turn better
competitiveness of the Company as a whole.
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In 2017, we will fully leverage the forefront
characteristics of market development, namely
“customer-orientation®. Driven by sales and marketing,
we will actively explore new management mechanism,
sales modes and debt collection methods under the
new situation. We will continue to promote diversified
marketing models such as finance lease, meeting
designed capacity and whole lifecycle service and
create one-stop equipment supply and service
platform, transforming from mere product sale to the
provision of integrated professional services.

For the development of international market, we
will accelerate the development of high-end market
and formation of service systems, consolidate and
expand our high-end markets. We will focus on the
development of key markets such as the United States,
Australia, Russia, Turkey, Vietnam and India. We
will improve our existing international market service
network, enhance project operation and service
capabilities and create a system of international high-
end coal mining machinery brands.

we will lead innovation in technology development.

We will improve the organizational structure and talent
system of our research institutes. Facilitating research
on comprehensive mining technology, intelligent
control, unmanned surface, digital mines, etc., we will
help customers solve their problems going forward. We
will continue to build our “manufacturing + technical
services” new marketing model, form specialized
technology development teams, and listen to customer
needs at market frontlines.

2. Advance trial and practice for fostering innovation 2 RTERREAH
First,  we will Seek advance trial and practice in market E— TEHEZ AT
development.
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Third,

we will continually optimize production and operation.

Drawing on streamlined management and amoeba-
style management, and setting informatization,
digitalization and intelligent elements as targets, we
will adopt new technology and production equipment
and enhance production efficiency and per capita
labor productivity. We will seize the market recovery
opportunity and promote the vertical increase in
production capacity in order to meet customer delivery
needs. Constantly improving the amoeba system, we
will incorporate marketing, research and development,
craftsmanship and management etc. into it, so as to
achieve whole coverage of the amoeba business model
and full market-oriented development from within our
organization. By capital and business means, we will
establish numerous branches and divisions with flexible
mechanisms and systems under our production units
and subsidiaries. We will strengthen the independent
management and encourage the staff members to
become operators. We will explore establishing a
system of comprehensive talent cultivation and flow.
Enhanced training will be provided to our large pool of
post 80 and post 90 young talents.

3. Solidifying foundation for quality

First,

Second,

we will improve our work quality and strengthen
institutional assurance

Advocating the “artisan spirit”, we will continue to
improve the quality of our work. We will strengthen the
formation of the execution capability of our middle and
low-ranking management members. We will strengthen
our rules and systems in terms of standardization,
process-orientation and interconnection. Management
processes will be streamlined and made more market-
oriented and better fit with our ERP and OA, thereby
creating a scientific management system.

we will improve our product quality and strengthen
system construction

We will establish the awareness of being “customer-
oriented, wholeheartedly responsible for products”.
Seizing product quality from design source, we will
strictly enforce the red and yellow line system of quality
discipline. We will improve and share a database
of quality problems, advance with streamlined
management and improve our quality assessment
mechanism. For typical quality problems, through
research and development and application of new
technology and new production processes, as well
as numerous special researches, we will seek to
improve our product quality. Discipline inspection of
production processes will be strengthened, whilst the
implementation of concrete quality measures will be
strictly assured.
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4. Stabilizing operation for sustained growth

First,

Second,

we will strengthen risk control and resolve existing
risks

We will seek to improve pre-tender project risk
assessment, build our contract risk prevention and
control system, and strengthen prior risk control. We
will control the risk of collection of receivables at the
source. Internal financial management will be optimized
and financial analysis will be conducted to construct
our management-oriented finance and prevent and
resolve financial risks. For subsidiaries with poor
profitability, we will execute strategic contraction so
that we are in better control of operational risks.

we will strengthen cost control

We will continuously reduce per-unit time cost,
continue to increase per-unit-time output value and
per capita efficiency. Material procurement and
checking will be strictly managed. We will also improve
the diversified procurement modes incorporating the
netting off of accounts, and reduce procurement costs.
We will continually enhance material utilization rate,
venue utilization rate and equipment utilization rate.
Energy consumption and non-production expenses and
three major expenses will be lowered on an ongoing
basis, thereby establishing a whole-process cost
control system.

In 2017, the Company will work around its annual goals, continue to uphold its
work-hard spirit, open up thoughts, and take the lead to bear responsibilities. In
the course of transformation, we will gear up and move forward, and accelerate
the sustainable and health development of ZMJ, with a view to bringing higher
and better investment return to the Shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Shareholders, the society and our friends for their trust and

support.

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

27 March 2017
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Construct a high-quality support
base, create a globally supported
brand, and create a highly
profitable Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group.
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Overview BE
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The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history, high quality
products, strong in-house research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. The Group’s products and businesses
primarily include: (i) hydraulic roof supports; (i) steel and other raw materials
trading; (iii) spare parts; and (iv) other coal mining equipment.

Results of Operations KR
The following table sets forth a summary, for the year of 2016 indicated, of our TEREBNAEERI R -_E—RNFNAFEEES
consolidated results of operations. BE -
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEHER AREBEET
Revenue A 3,628.53 4,510.86
Cost of sales SHE A (2,915.42) (3,653.83)
Gross profit EX 713.11 857.03
Other income =N 101.87 120.72
Other gains and losses E b et K B8 (168.71) (335.88)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DAY (187.96) (214.90)
Administrative expenses TERF X (300.38) (304.24)
Research and development expenses == (102.47) (102.56)
Share of (loss) profit of associates FEAEE SN E) (18 ) & (18.11) 13.36
Share of profit (loss) of joint ventures FEMEE & 5 (EE) 0.04 (1.00)
Finance costs BhE AR - (2.16)
Profit before tax BREBLATER 37.39 30.37
Income tax expense FrigBimx (0.74) (19.76)
Profit for the year FRER 36.65 10.61
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Results of Operations (Continued) BEEE )
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—FF
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEHER AREBET
Other comprehensive income Hit2mk A
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: R EBETR N EREBR Y
IHE :
Exchange differences arising on translation MEEACIERZE 5.25 (1.08)
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets AHEE s eMEEATERE
(E18) 6.54 (4.80)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment AR E SMEERBEREN
of available-for-sale financial assets DR - 60.07
Share of fair value gain (loss) B —EEEARAEEEZ
on available-for-sale financial assets of an associate SREEAFEKE(EE) 19.79 (5.51)
Share of reclassification adjustment upon impairment B —EEEARAEEEZ
of available-for-sale financial assets held by an associate SREEREREFDEARE - 15.98
Fair value gain on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges IETHTR S REY MNP T A
KA ERE 71.02 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEBA - HNBRFABH
net of income tax 102.60 64.66
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALEE 139.25 75.27
Profit for the year attributable to: BT ATEEFRET
Owners of the Company PN S 62.00 4220
Non-controlling interests JEPERSRE S (25.35) (31.59)
36.65 10.61
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: LT A TFEEER D E R A :
Owners of the Company PN S 164.60 106.86
Non-controlling interests JEFERSRE S (25.35) (31.59)
139.25 75.27
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF
— Basic (RMB cents) —HEAR(ARES) 3.82 2.60
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Revenue

Our revenue decreased by 19.6% from RMB4,510.86 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to RMB3,628.53 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, mainly because demand in domestic coal market continued to diminish,
fixed asset investment in the coal mining and processing industry continued to
fall, and the nation had its destocking initiative for the coal industry in 2016,
which resulted in a decrease in domestic market demand for the Group’s
products and the corresponding decrease in the Group’s revenue from hydraulic
roof supports.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and
business (in RMB millions):

=
a

¥

>

2
\
/
S
=

L'ON
REBWAGEHE2015F12A3MHIEFEHARE

4,510.86 B & LR 2 19.6% £ &£ 20165F12 31 H IEFE
MARY3628538 BT + £ EL2016FEH A KIS
ERBEELE - BRARNEAENETEEREEE
TR - AERBEREREERS SBEATSHEBRERS
kA BT B B AN 5 R R S BB A YR TR BT

TREDIAREBIZE M M EBE D WA (B
AREBETT) :

2016 2015

ZE—RE —T—RF

RMB miillions RMB millions

AREEETR ARBEETT

Sales of hydraulic roof supports BIES BE7SHE 2,132.78 2,815.84

Revenue from steel and other materials trading 8 = N A FREHE 5 2 WA 805.78 920.82

Sales of spare parts B2 SHE 504.68 601.90

Sales of other coal mining equipment H R RS 2 e 142.41 120.79

Other revenue Ha g A 42.88 51.51

3,628.53 4,510.86

Cost of Sales SHER

As the Group recorded a decrease in our revenue, our cost of sales decreased HARAREERABT I - ANEEHEKABE 22015

by 20.2% from RMB3,653.83 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB2,915.42 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit decreased by 16.8% from
RMB857.03 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB713.11
million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Our gross profit margin remained fairly stable, increasing from 19.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to 19.7% for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Other Income

Our other income decreased by 15.6% from RMB120.72 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to RMB101.87 million for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Other Gains and Losses

Our other gains and losses decreased by 49.8% from RMB335.88 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB168.71 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, primarily as a result of the decrease in our allowance for
doubtful debts.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by 12.5% from RMB214.90
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB187.96 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016, primarily as a result of the decrease in marketing
expenses which was in turn attributable to the constantly shrinkage of the coal
mining machinery market.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by 1.3% from RMB304.24 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB300.38 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, primarily as a result of the decrease in salaries and benefits
expenses included in administrative expenses.

Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs decreased by 0.7% from RMB408.60 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to RMB405.54 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, primarily as a result of a decrease in our revenue and a decrease in the
numbers of staff. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic salary
and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating results
of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees. The
Group insisted the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as the focus
on top-tier staff. It also strived to ensure scientific and reasonable allocation of
income.

The Group attaches great importance to the growth and development of
employees and endeavours to provide training and opportunities for exchange to
help them enhance their professional skills and expand their areas of expertise.
Based on the goal of talent cultivation, the Group has introduced a position’s
qualifications based programme, created a platform for internal staffs to display
and communicate through training, exploited the potential of human resources
of the Company and enhanced the cultivation for reserve talents.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses decreased by 0.1% from RMB102.56
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB102.47 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, remaining relatively stable in the Group’s
commitment to research and development activities.

Share of Profit of Associates

Share of profit of associates decreased by 235.6% from a profit of RMB13.36
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to a loss of RMB18.11 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016, primarily because our associates recorded
losses in the year.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs decreased by 100.0% from RMB2.16 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to RMBO for the year ended 31 December 2016,
primarily because the Group had no bank borrowings during the year and thus
no interest was payable on such bank borrowings.
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Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 23.1% from RMB30.37 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB37.39 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 96.3% from RMB19.76 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMBO.74 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, primarily as a result of the tax effect of the disposal of
subsidiary during the year. Our effective tax rate decreased to 2.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 from 65.1% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Total comprehensive income for the year

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our total
comprehensive income for the year increased by 85.0% from RMB75.27 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB139.25 million for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 46.9% from RMB42.20 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB62.00 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2016, trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB3,648.45 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB406.47 million as compared to approximately RMB4,054.92 million as
at the end of 2015, primarily as a result of a decrease in our revenue and our
enhanced collection efforts.

Other Financial Assets

As at 31 December 2016, other financial assets amounted to approximately
RMB1,085.00 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB22.00
million as compared to the end of 2015, as a result of an increase in the
purchases of short-term structured deposits from PRC commercial banks.

Liquidity

The Group’s net current assets were approximately RMB7,242.79 million (31
December 2015: RMB6,391.92 million) and the current ratio was 4.35 as at
31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 3.65). The increase in current ratio
was mainly attributable to the increase in current assets as a result of the bond
investment to be due within one year.
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Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had RMB?2,632.40 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.

RERREARZH

M2016F12 8318 - AEBHEARE KBS EEDAR
H263240HETT - AEBRERIBECEBWEERE
R MIRTTIER ©

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-RF

RMB millions RMB millions

AR¥BBET AREBET

Net cash from operating activities WERE RIS FE 360.89 318.40
Net cash from (used in) investing activities KRG (FTR )RS FRE 276.19 (298.05)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BEEEFS(FTA) RS F5 230.20 (135.93)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEYRMCHRD ) F58 867.28 (115.58)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) 2 38.90 20.14
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year FYNRELEEEEY 1,726.22 1,821.66
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year FRORES LELZEEY 2,632.40 1,726.22

Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2016 was RMB360.89 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB37.39 million, adjusted
for: (i) a decrease in inventory of RMB281.76 million; (iijloss of doubtful debts
of RMB230.30 million; (iii) depreciation of property, plant and equipment of
RMB174.97 million. The cash inflow was offset by a decrease in trade and other
payables of RMB238.63 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash from investing activities in 2016 was RMB276.19 million, primarily
comprising: (i) payment of RMB4,334.00 million from the purchase of short-
term structured deposits with banks; (i) receipt of proceeds of RMB4,312.00
million from the disposal of short-term structured deposits with banks; (iii)
payment of RMB50.00 million due to bank deposits with a maturity of over three
months; (iv) withdrawal of bank deposits with a maturity of over three months
of RMB285.00 million; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of RMB431.86
million, for the issuance of bank notes that we used to purchase raw materials;
and (vi) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB456.39 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities in 2016 was RMB230.20 million, primarily
consisting of (i) financing proceeds received from the equipment leasing
companies of RMB223.17 million; (ii) contribution from ultimate controlling party
of the Company of RMB20.00 million; (iii) payment of dividends of 12.97 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB79.19 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and lease prepayments.
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities AERIAREE
Capital Commitments BNEAE

As of 31 December 2016, our commitments consisted of capital commitments 20165128318 + ANREBFEEBRIEANE = 77 INIER
for the acquisition of equity interests from third parties that have been authorized 2z BEERETARERNEIE2200.00E BT © A
and contracted for in the amount of RMB2,200.00 million, capital commitments EVE  BEASHBIERERCITONEREREAR
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized #2816 B &L MEEHERIEARKG268HETT ©
and contracted for in the amount of RMB28.16 million and operating lease

commitments of RMB62.68 million.

Contingent Liabilities SARBIE

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain bills RAFE  AEENUSERKRERETRKEEZ S
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In ANEFAPMBERECESREMENTIE - ARAE
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment ERE ARBEBEZEKEER I HBERTZH
of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed bills receivable are RITE W RIBHER - RN BEZREREE 2 RBT
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to the Ko REMEPR - AEEJEARTZES S RIUH
Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised bills R EWEEmAREZ R KRBT

receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—XE —ZT—hF
RMB millions RMB millions

AR¥EETR ARBBET

i

621.19 461.21

W
i

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse VEREZ MAREREEERIK

\
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Management Discussion and Analysis & g 1R B2 #7
Working Capital and Indebtedness EEESREARE

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2016 (in RMB millions):

TEREHFIN2016F12A3IBRNEEREEERBEFIE

(Bfi: ARBEBET)

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—AHF
RMB millions RMB millions
AR¥BBET AREBET
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 740 8.68
Debt investment BERBE 416.63 B
Inventories FE 827.79 1,175.83
Loan receivables from an associate FE— K& N B E K 64.00 80.00
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 3,648.45 4,054.92
Transferred trade receivables EEEMNE Z EUGIE 180.32 -
Finance lease receivables within one year —FABE R ERUGRIE 39.15 25.99
Long-term receivables within one year —ERND|EH R ERE U IR 131.73 105.06
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 71.02 -
Other financial assets HEheEE 1,085.00 1,063.00
Tax recoverable ] W [a] £ 18 0.25 1.37
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 253.55 278.08
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIRS 2,682.40 2,011.23
Total Current Assets MBEESS 9,407.69 8,804.16
GURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables E 5 R EMFERRIE 1,721.67 2,193.74
Advances from customers EREE® 253.52 198.89
Tax liabilities HIBEARE 9.39 19.61
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables HEEENE ZEWFIEB BN
= 180.32 -
Total Current Liabilities mEAREASET 2,164.90 2,412.24
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 7,242.79 6,391.92

ANARRBEEFEANSENRANBHARE
6,391.92F BT AN = 20165512 A 31 A H) AR#7,242.79
HELTEEARARZEBREBE—FREEU KL
B 5 & E A FoERE L

The Company’s net current assets increased from RMB6,391.92 million as of
31 December 2015 to RMB7,242.79 million as of 31 December 2016, primarily
because the Company’s debt investments will become due within a year and
due to the decrease in trade and other payables.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no outstanding borrowings. MR20165F 128318 - AAREREEREK -
M20165F12A31H * AAFIBEREZREREERN A
EREEAREIT5HET - R20159F12H318 - "R
FIRE ZRE AN BEERNEREELOARE,906
BELARER -

As of 31 December 2016, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB3,795 million. As of 31 December 2015,
approximately RMB1,906 million of our credit lines from various domestic and
foreign financial institutions remained unused.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 8

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital adequacy ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing
liabilities at the end of the year by total equity at the end of the year and
multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, our capital adequacy ratio
was 0, mainly because the Company had no bank borrowing as of 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015.

EECEEIE)
EXmELR

BAFRRLEERTRERGFEABRERAFREDRR

% BIR100%ETE -

FPI7A2016F12 A 31 H K220155F12 A31 HRE A3 2
RE0 EEHMNRA2016F12 831 H &20155F12 A 31

HEEIRTTEN

>

Liquidity Risk REBESE K
Weighted  On demand or Total
average less than 3monthsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year cashflows amount
piit:3 RERY AFBRES
a2k DHRIEA MBAEIF RELH REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% AREFT ARBFT ARETT AREFT
The Group REE
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—"¥+=A
=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBERNFIE - 1,320,446 281,165 1,601,611 1,601,611
Liabilities associated with transferred £E0 28842 5 FELL 2R
trade receivables BENEE - 180,322 - 180,322 180,322
1,500,768 281,165 1,781,933 1,781,933
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Credit Risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to bills receivable endorsed
by the Group with full recourse as disclosed in note 40.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Company has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the Company reviews
the recoverability of each trade debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management of the Company considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed bills receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks. However, the credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the majority of the counterparties are state-owned banks with good reputation
or banks with good credit rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies
and with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 11.28% (2015: 11.42%) and
29.33% (2015: 28.75%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate pledged bank deposits and variable-rate bank balances (see notes 30
for details). Currently, the Group does not have a specific policy to manage
its interest rate risk, but the management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.

Please refer to note 42(b) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Company’s credit risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 8

Currency Risk

The primary economic environment in which the company and its principal
subsidiaries operate is the PRC and their functional currency is RMB. However,
certain transactions of the Company and its principal subsidiaries including sales
and purchases of goods are denominated in foreign currencies. In addition,
the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement during the year (notes
28 and 43), and a large portion of the consideration shall be payable in USD
equivalent.

The management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure by closely
monitoring the foreign exchange risk profile and utilized forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to variability in cash flows attributable
to foreign currency risk between RMB/USD associated with the highly probable
equity transfer agreement.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to note 42(b) of the financial statements
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.

Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities. The Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments operating in coal industry sector quoted in the Stock Exchange. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Please refer to note 42(b) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Company’s other price risk.

Business Review
1. The Group’s Overall Operations in 2016

In 2016, under the prolonged slowdown of macroeconomic growth, the
constantly destocking of the coal industry and the constantly shrinkage of
the coal mining machinery market, the revenue generated by the Company
decreased substantially year-on-year, whilst net profit attributable to parent
company still recorded growth. In 2016, the Company achieved revenue
of RMB3,628.53 million, representing a decrease of 19.6% as compared
with 2015. Net profit attributable to parent company was RMB62.00
million, representing an increase of 46.9% as compared with 2015.
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Business Review (Continued)
2. Major Work Done in 2016

In 2016, in line with the annual goal of “securing collection of receivables
while maintaining sales orders, uplifting efficiency for survival, adjusting
structure for corporate transformation, and intensifying reforms while
seeking innovation”, the Company took a key step forward towards its
transformation. Key efforts were made to intensify reform and foster
industrial transformation. Advocating its diversified array of sales modes
and probing potentials for cost reduction, the Company achieved stable
production operation as well as improved profit in the midst of the
substantial drop in revenue.

In 2016, the Company made substantial progress in its industrial
transformation, outlining the rough shape of a dual-driven pattern.
Collection of debts by various means proved to be effective, while
innovative sales mode achieved breakthroughs amidst adversity. Production
methods continued to enhance, delivering products with steadily rising
quality. Additionally, production technology and manufacturing processes
also improved steadily and key projects continued to have ground-breaking
performance.

3. Significant Events Subsequent to the End of the
Financial Year

References are made to the announcement dated 24 March 2016 and
the circular dated 23 May 2016 regarding the very substantial acquisition
and connected transaction of the Company. All capitalized terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as defined in the announcement
and circular. As of the date of this report, the transfer of the Target Equity
Interests had been completed. The change of share registration details in
respect of the Consideration Shares had been completed. The issue of the
Placing Shares had been completed.

Outlook for 2017

2017 will be a pivotal year in China’s initiatives to foster structural reform
as well as the first year for the Company in kicking start its comprehensively
intensified reform and industrial transformation and upgrade. In 2017, in line
with the annual goal of “intensifying reforms for business model, advance trial
and practice for fostering innovation, solidifying foundation for quality, and
stabilizing operation for sustained growth”, the Company will continue to push
ahead with its transformation and upgrade. Firstly, capturing the opportunity
presented by the reforms in the coal industry, the Company will pursue growth
its coal mining machinery business in terms of strength and core competence.
Secondly, it will seek to consolidate its new automotive component business,
uplift its profitability, and pursue healthy and virtuous development on an
ongoing basis. Further, it will strengthen risk control to ensure the stable
operation of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE - EERSHREEE

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (£ 2Z), aged 53, is the Chairman and executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Jiao is a professor-level senior engineer. He
graduated from China Institute of Mining and Technology (P B #& 3£ £2F5)
(now known as China University of Mining and Technology (7 Bl A& 3£ A £2)),
majoring in mechanical design, manufacture and automation and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985. He obtained a master’s degree
in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology in December
2003, and obtained a doctoral degree in economics from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology in December 2007. From July 1985 to May 1992,
he served as a technician, a production dispatcher and an engineer of the No.
1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May
1992 to May 1993, he was the manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair
Station (EF3%3E O 5588 4 {& k). From May 1993 to January 1998, he was
the deputy plant manager and the plant manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-
plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1998 to July
2000, he was the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the plant manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to December
2008, he served as the chairman and general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. Since July 2015, he was appointed as chairman
and director of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since December
2008, he has been the Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Xiang Jiayu ([ 2R [8), aged 51, is the Vice Chairman and executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Xiang is a senior engineer. From September
1980 to July 1984, he studied at the Department of Electrical and Mechanical
Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining Institute (£ {EHE 2 22p%), majoring in
mechanization. He studied at the China University of Mining and Technology,
Master's Department (Beijing) (FF BU#& % K 21k mAf 7t £ 5) from
September 1988 to January 1991, majoring in mining mechanical engineering
and obtained a master’s degree. From July 1984 to August 1988, he lectured
at Yima Mining Technical School (3 B HE 7 B %), From May 1991 to
December 1992, he was a designer at the research center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1992 to July 1995, he was
the executive officer of the No. 2 research center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November 1998, he was the deputy
plant manager at the Huanghe Electronics Institute (&7 25 8) & J&7) of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November 1998 to July
2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he served
as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general manager
and standing deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company. From October 2008 to December 2008, he was a director and
the general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and the general manager
of the Company. Since July 2015, he has been a director of Henan Machinery
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since February 2015, he has been the Vice
Chairman of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wang Xinying (£ $7%), aged 51, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at the Department of Mining Engineering of Chongging University
(E2 8 KX £2), majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July
2007, he studied at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of
Mining and Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer
of the equipment division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992, From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of sub-plant of machinery repair of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July 2000,
he was a deputy director of the production division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head of
corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February
2015, he was a director and deputy general manager of the Company. He was
appointed as a director of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. with effect from 29
June 2016 and was appointed as a chairman of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd.
with effect from 30 June 2016. Since February 2015, he has been a director of
the Company.

Mr. Guo Haofeng (8 £1£), aged 52, is an executive Director. Mr. Guo
is a senior engineer. From September 1983 to July 1987, he studied at the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of South China Institute of Technology
(FERg T2 B%) (now known as South China University of Technology (3
EIE T K E), and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He has a
master’s degree in engineering awarded by Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (/R £} K E2) in June 2007. From September 1987 to August
1991, he was a technician, an assistant engineer and an engineer of the sub-
plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August
1991 to July 1994, he served as an assistant to plant manager of the sub-
plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 1994
to April 1997, he was the deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of casting
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From April 1997 to September
1998, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1998 to July 2000, he was
the head of the corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to
September 2006, he served as the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From October 2006 to December 2008, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company (“ZCMM”). From December 2008 to February 2012, he was the
director and deputy general manager of the Company. From February 2012
to February 2015, he was the deputy general manager of the Company. Since
February 2015 he has been a director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Qiang (£5%), aged 47, and born in Yongcheng, Henan, is a member
of the Communist Party of China. From September 1986 to July 1990, he
studied at the Nankai University, majoring in economics management and law,
and obtained bachelor’s degrees in economics and law. In October 2004, he
studied a master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University, majoring in
world economics. In July 2009, he studied at Henan University, majoring in
regional economics and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He obtained a
doctoral degree in Economics in December 2009. Mr. Liu holds the qualification
of senior auditor, asset valuer, lawyer and senior consultant. From July 1990
to November 2002, he successively served to a director-level officer at the
agriculture audit division, general office and division of legal affairs under the
Department of Audit of Henan Province. From November 2002 to July 2012, he
was the deputy section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee for the
State owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government (7] &g
BEEHAEEESE) From July 2012 to November 2012, he served as
the section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee for the State owned
Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government. From November
2012 to September 2014, he was also a researcher of Provincially Administered
and State-owned Medium and Small Enterprise Department (& B /N> 2
&) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the People’s Government of Henan province. He also served as a researcher of
Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the People’s Government of Henan Province from
September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014, he has been the
secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been a director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yao (£28), aged 41, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Liu joined the Company on 5 June 2014. Ms. Liu has
approximately 16 years of experience in financial industry. She worked in the
investment banking department of UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited as an
associate director, a director and an executive director and was responsible for
Industrial projects in China from December 2009 to June 2014, and has served
as a managing director of HK Griffin Reed Capital Group (iR{= & A £ E) from
June 2014 to May 2016. She founded RJ Capital (fy38%& %) and has been
the chairman since July 2016. Since June 2014, she has been an independent
director of the Company. Ms. Liu has worked as a key member of the sponsor or
one of the joint sponsors (as the case may be) in a number of offerings of shares
on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, including among others, the
Company, China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 06863),
International Mining Machinery Holdings Limited (stock code: 01683; delisted),
Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 00881), China Lesso Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 02128) and Boer Power Holdings Limited (stock
code: 01685). In the foregoing transactions, Ms. Liu reviewed and analyzed the
audited accounts, management accounts, corporate governance and internal
control of the relevant companies, coordinated prospectuses drafting (including
the financial information sections), compared performance of the relevant
companies against comparable companies in similar industries, and provided
advice to the relevant companies to improve their corporate governance and
internal control in accordance with the Listing Rules. She worked in Deutsche
Bank at its corporate finance practice under the investment banking department
as a manager from July 2007 to November 2009, during which period of
time she participated in the offerings of shares by a company in the bio-
pharmaceutical industry and a company in the ship building industry, subprime
debt financing of Bank of China, an overseas acquisition by Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, etc. Ms. Liu served as an analyst, manager and
department head for Capital One Bank from March 2001 to May 2007, mainly
working on analysis of market data, risk analysis of subprime credit cards and
strategic planning of bank’s investment in housing loan business and non-
subprime automobile loan business. Ms. Liu graduated from Xiamen University
in July 1996 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry. She graduated
from the National University of Singapore with a master’s degree in chemistry
in December 1998. Ms. Liu possesses a second master’s degree in materials
engineering granted by Case Western Reserve University in Cleveland, the
United States of America in March 2001. She also obtained an EMBA degree
from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, the
United States of America in May 2007.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Hua (ST %), aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Jiang joined the Company on 10 February 2015. Mr. Jiang
was among the first batch of securities lawyers in China. From September
1981 to June 1985, he studied law at Renmin University of China and obtained
a bachelor’s degree. From September 1985 to June 1987, he studied civil
law at Renmin University of China and obtained a master’s degree in 1990.
He began to practice law since 1993. From 1993-1994, he was a partner of
the Beijing based Zhong Yin Law Firm (It 527 4R 2 E1 = 7 F7). From
June 1994 to 2001, he was a partner of the Beijing based Dacheng Law
Offices (It 7T R EK 2 BHZE 75 7). From 2001 to 2003, he was a partner
of the Beijing-based Tongwei Law Firm (3t 57 [B) 4 2 AN S 75 F7). Since
2003, he has been a partner of Beijing Kangda Law Firm (it R fRERE
EMZE5FT). In 2012, Mr. Jiang was hired by the Law School and the Lawyer
College of Renmin University of China as a parttime instructor for graduate
students under the Juris Master program. He has provided legal services in
various aspects, including transformation into shares based corporations, issue
and listing of shares, refinancing, and merger and acquisition to more than
a hundred enterprises including Beijing Tiangiao (3t 72 &<4&), Gu Yue Long
Shan (& #&EL1), Yintai Resources (38 =& JJ&) and so forth, contributing his
profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical experience. Mr. Jiang
is qualified to become an independent director of listed companies. Mr. Jiang
has been an independent director of Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial &Commercial
Holding Co. (Fr ZE = @ BX 1T & 3% (SR ) A fH A FR 22 &) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 000151) from 2003 to 2011; an independent director of Hangzhou
Hikvision Digital Technology Co. Ltd. (1M /& Bz B 18 B 7 # i ik 19 B IR
/2 A)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002415) from 2008 to December 2014;
an independent director of China Zhonghua Geotechnical Engineering Co., Ltd.
(R &+ TI2IEH B PR A 7)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002542) since
2009; an independent director of Daheng New Epoch Technology Inc. (A 1B #T
43 TR IR D B BR A 7)) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600288) from 2009
to December 2014; an independent director of Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai
(REEREERM AR A F]) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600325) since
2013; an independent director of China National Complete Plant Import and
Export Corporation Limited (F %3 H 0 B& {9 B 'R A &) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 000151) since 2014; and an independent director of Shanxi Top
Energy Company Ltd. (1L 783% & 82/ I 17 & PR 2 &) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 600780) since 2016.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Xudong (Z=fE %), aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company on 10 February 2015. Mr. Li is a
senior accountant, Chinese certified public accountant, Chinese certified assets
valuer and Chinese certified tax agent. From 2000 to 2003, he studied at
Central University of Finance and Economics and obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting. He is currently a managing partner (1774 $£.A) of Da Hua
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) ( kiﬁf;;ﬁ-ﬁfﬁ%
T (R EBA ) ). Mr. Li was a member of the 13th, 14th and15th
session of the review committee for main board issue of China Securities
Regulatory Commission. In 1996, Mr. Li commenced his CPA business and
has focused on the partial and whole-scale listing of corporate assets, asset
restructuring, and IPO audit and consulting for listed companies. Mr. Li has
been a certified public accountant in respect of auditing for or signing the audit
for listed companies and large-scale state-owned enterprises including Wanda
Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (BiEm £ MERMD R A F), Inner
Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (N5 & & [EEEIR
(L TR BR AT, Zhe jiang Hangxiao Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (47747
IR B PR /A ), China CAMC Engineering Co., Ltd. (f TEIE T
BRRMm AR AR, and Chma National Machinery Industry Corporation (F7
Heh T % 5% E /2 7)). He has accumulated professional experience in areas
including accountmg, audmng, asset appraisal, merger and acquisition and
corporate governance consulting. Mr. Li has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Tianjin TEDA Biomedical Engineering Company Limited

KEFELEMESTERMD AR AT (Hong Kong Stock Exchange:
81 89) since December 2016.

Mr. Wu Guangming (%= 3¢ 88), aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the Company on 10 February 2015. He
is a senior economist and senior engineer. He is currently the chairman of the
board of directors of and general manager of Jiangsu Yuyue Medical Equipment
and Supply Co., Ltd. (/T %k £ BR B & ;R ER% 1D B PR 2 &) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002223), and vice chairman of Chinese Medlcal Equment Industry
Association (F X Z&& 2547 175 &). Mr. Wu graduated from Jiangsu University
of Technology (T #f32 T AE2) in 1997, and was admitted to China Europe
International Business School in 2010. Mr. Wu was the manager of Danyang
Electronic Medical Apparatus Factory (F}5 ik #8 28 5 =5 F & 25 /&%) and
manager of Danyang Medical Equipment Factory (F}F5 22 FH 234 &k). Since
1998, he has been chairman of the board of directors of and general manager
of Jiangsu Yuyue Medical Equipment and Supply Co., Ltd.
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Supervisors

Mr. Li Chongging (Z=E ), aged 52, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Li a political worker and assistant engineer. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
economics and management from the Party School of the Central Committee
of the Chinese Communist Party. From July 1980 to September 1983, he
worked for 83016 Military Force Service Station in Yixing County, Jiangsu. From
September 1983 to September 1984, he worked in the General Dispatching
Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1984 to
July 1987, he studied full-time in the Vocational University of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory, majoring in machinery manufacturing. From July
1987 to June 1990, he worked as a technician in the sub-plant of stanchion
(workshop) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From June 1990
to May 1995, he was the vice secretary and secretary of the Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese Communist Party Youth
League, during which period of time he studied economics and management
in the Party School of the Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a bachelor’s degree. From May 1995 to February 1997, he
was the deputy plant manager and the deputy party secretary of the subplant
of welding of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From February 1997
to May 2000, he served as the plant manager of the sub-plant of mining of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 2000 to August 2000,
he worked as the standing deputy general manager of Diversified Business
Corporation of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory (25 ) & B A4 ik JoR
% @& & 422 7). From August 2000 to October 2002, he was the head
of General Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October
2002 to January 2006, he was the head of General Office of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From January 2006 to September 2006, he
worked as the director of the Human Resource Department of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From October 2006 to December 2008, he served
as the deputy general manager and a supervisor of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was the
deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2012, he has served
as the chairman of Labor Union of the Company. Since February 2015, he has
been a supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Fuying, aged 51, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Liu is a senior
engineer. He graduated from the China University of Mining and Technology,
majoring in mechanical design and manufacturing and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1987. In June 2008, he graduated from the
China University of Mining and Technology majoring in mechanical design and
theory and obtained a master’s degree in engineering. Mr. Liu Fuying has been
working for the Company since July 1987, responsible for technical work. He
is @ major technical personnel of the Company and the leader in the academia
and technology field of the coal industry in the Henan Province. From November
1998 to February 2004, he served as the deputy director of the Research
Center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From February 2004 to
February 2007, he was the deputy director of the Research Center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Company. From February 2007 to December 2008, he
was the deputy director of the Design and Research Institute of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to August 2010, he was
the deputy director of the Design and Research Institute of the Company. Since
August 2010, he has been the director of the Design and Research Institute of
the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Rong (/& %), aged 45, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhou
is an engineer. He graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
and technology from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 1996. He
graduated from Zhengzhou University majoring in mechanical engineering and
obtained a master’s degree in engineering in June 2007. He served as the
deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company from April 2002 to August 2006. From August
2006 to December 2007, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of
electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December
2007 to August 2009, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of installation
of the Company. From August 2009 to February 2010, he was the deputy head
of the Marketing and Sales Department of the Company. From February 2010
to February 2011, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating
of the Company. From February 2011 to April 2011, he was the deputy plant
manager of the plant of oil tanks and the plant manager of the sub-plant of
electroplating of the Company. From April 2011 to February 2016, he was
the head of the supply department of the Company. Since February 2015, he
has been a supervisor of the Company. Since February 2016, he has been an
assistant to chief financial officer of the Company.

EEum)

BNERE 515 RAEARRES - FEERSAT
1200 - BlSEEREMRAIIZN - —ANEFLAEERT
BEEASRMRTARESEE  BETIS2815
“EENFRNAZERPEBER KNSR RT MIERE
¥ ERIBBRLIEREM- - 2ANZELEEE -AN\EFL
ARG —BEERRRRERMNITIE  BREMNZLE
MAE - A RRITERMEMEEA - — AN
F+—A-—ZTWE_F - EEMNEBEERBRI TP
Bk —TTMF_A-—FT+F-F - £EMNE
BRREEAREEATDMEMEINE  —FTLF
RA——ZZN\F+-F  EBMEBEEREERREE
RAREAERERE  —EEN\F+ A -—F—F
FNA - AARRRAHTERERE  —F—FF\H
E25 AR ERRE - —T-AF_AES
EARRREE -

K E - 4558  BEARBIEE o FLERTIZA -
AEERTIRER c —NNANFLA - SFEREINETE
BB TRETEIE  BEEL84: —TF+
FRA  BERBMASRMTIESE X - BETIERE
+Ef —ET-FNA-—ZTTRENA - EEINE
B EEERETRAREEIMAME  ZTT R F
NA-—ZFTLF+Zh - #BINEEEREEFRE
FRAEEIHHE  —ZTTLF+ A - ZTTNF
NA  BFEARRLZEIBHE  —ETNAFNA-=F
—ZF A AAREMREEBRINE  ZE—FF
“A-ZE——FZf  #ARAREEIHEE =&
—FZA-ZF——FMA - AR EHHERE
REEIBHBE T ——FHAZZT—RF_A -
ERARYEMHELSISE - —T—HE- AESEAR

REE: —T-RF_AES  ERRRUBKRAED
Ee



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EX EERSREER

Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Zhigiang (&% 3®), aged 57, is a Supervisor of the Company.
From September 1988 to July 1991, Mr. Zhang studied economics and
management through a correspondence course at the Correspondence Institute
of the Party School of the Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a college diploma; from August 2003 to December 2005,
he studied at the Party School of the Central Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics and management. From
September 1981 to March 1985, he was an operator at workshop No. 1 of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From March 1985 to November
1989, he was the secretary of the Workshop No. 1 of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese Communist Youth League. From
November 1989 to June 1994, he was the objectives management officer of
the Office of Total Quality Management of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory; from June 1994 to November 1996, he was a secretary of the Office
of the Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party. From November 1996 to May 1998, he served as the division
head of Project Developments Department of Diversified Business Corporation of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1998 to October 2000,
he was the deputy head of the Publicity and United Front Work Department
and the chief editor of the factory newsletter; from October 2000 to May 2002,
he was the head of the Publicity and United Front Work Department and the
Organization Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory; from
May 2002 to February 2005, he was the head of the Execution Department
of the Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party, of which he was a member during the period. From February
2005 to February 2010, he was the secretary to branch Party Committee of the
sub-plant of processing of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
February 2010 to July 2011, he was the deputy head of the General Office of
the Company and the vice chairman of the Labor Union of the Company. From
July 2011 to September 2011, he was the head of the security department
of the Company. From September 2011 to February 2015, he has been the
head of the General Administration Division of the Company. From July 2012 to
February 2015, he has been the vice secretary to the Disciplinary Commission
and vice chairman of Labor Union of the Company. Since June 2014, he has
been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Ni Heping (% 1), aged 52, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Ni
joined the Group in 1987, and was appointed as the supervisor in December
2008 and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February 2015. Mr. Ni
has held various positions with the Company and its predecessor companies,
including as the deputy director of the first research institute of, and a designer,
the head of design office and the deputy director of the research institute of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. He was also the director of the
research institute of and the dean of the design and research institute of ZCMM.
He is presently the deputy general engineer of design and the director of the
general office of the technology centre of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been an assistant to general manager. Mr. Ni obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology in June
2007 and is a senior engineer.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Ms. Xu Mingkai (& B3 8]l), aged 52, is a Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Xu
joined the Group in 1984, and was appointed as the supervisor in April 2011
and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February 2015. She has held
various positions with the Company and its predecessor companies, including as
a section member of quality office, a senior section member of publicity division
of Communist Youth League Committee, a senior section member of the office,
the deputy head of family planning office, the deputy head of corporate planning
department and the deputy director of the office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory, as well as the deputy director and the director of the office
of ZCMM. She was also the director of the general office and the director of the
human resource department of the Company. She is presently the director of
the safety and environmental protection department of the Company. Ms. Xu
graduated in economics and management through a correspondence course
at the Correspondence Institute of the Party School of the Central Committee of
C.P.C. (Fr #£ b o0 B A% b 3% E2B5%) in December 2005.

Mr. Zhang Jun (3R &), aged 53, is a Supervisor of the Company. In November
1981, Mr. Zhang started to serve at Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From 1981 to 2003, he served as a worker and dispatcher at the sub-plant of
processing of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 2004
to February 2007, he worked at the general office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the
head of the reception section of the general office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From January 2009 to April 2012, he was the head of
the reception section of the general office of the Company. From May 2012 to
February 2014, he was the head of the reception section of the Company and
head of the Beijing office of the Company. From March 2014 to February 2016,
he was deputy head of general office of the Company. From March 2015 to
date, he has been the vice chairman of the labour union of the Company. From
February 2016 to date, he has been head of general office of the Company.
Mr. Zhang Jun graduated from Henan University of Finance and Economics (JA]
R B4 E205%) in December 1997 with a diploma in industrial economics and
management.
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Senior Management

Mr. Fu Zugang ({<+#E.f8), aged 51, is a general manager of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at
Wuhan Technology College (% T 225) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (/232 T A £2)), majoring in casting and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to
November 2006, he was the chairman of labor union of ZCMM. From November
2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general manager
of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy general
manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he was a
director and a deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been the general manager of the Company.

Mr. Gao Youjin (& &3f), aged 53, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Gao is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at Jiaozuo Mining Institute (£ {EHE 2 22F%) (now known as
Henan Polytechnic University), majoring in mining machinery. From July 1985
to December 1985, he was a technician of the sub-plant of installation of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1986 to July 1993, he
served as a designer, an officer and the deputy director of the research institute
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1993 to August
1994, he was the deputy director of the planned sales division of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1994 to November 1995,
he served as the deputy director and the director of No.1 sales development
division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November 1995 to
July 2000 and from July 2000 to October 2002, he served as the deputy plant
manager and the chief engineer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory,
respectively. From October 2002 to December 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and the chief engineer of ZCMM. Since December 2008, he has been
the deputy general manager and the chief engineer of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Minglin (3R @5 4K), aged 54, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhang is a senior engineer. From September 1979 to July 1983,
he studied at Huainan Mining Institute (Y6 g % 3£ £2B5), majoring in mining.
From August 1983 to August 1987, he was a section member of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company ()] Fa & FERE 4L FE 72 &]). From August 1987 to May
1996, he worked as a section member, a deputy senior section member and a
senior section member of Henan Coal Industrial Department. From August 1995
to February 1996, he went to Zhenggiao Village, Huzu Town, Gushi County in
Xinyang District to participate in the party construction in rural areas which was
organized by Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist Party. From
May 1996 to May 1999, he was the deputy general manager of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company. From May 1999 to April 2004, he served as the general
manager and the secretary of the Party Committee of Henan Coal Mine Supply
Company. From October 2000 to November 2004, he served as the general
manager of Henan Coal Sales Company Limited (A& K RIHEBRE
fE£/2 7). Since November 2004, he has been the deputy general manager of
ZCMM.

Mr. Fu Qi ({33), aged 47, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1988 to July 1992, he studied
at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical design
and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section member
of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December 1996,
he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first development
division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he was a section
officer and the deputy head of the planned sales division, the deputy head of
the marketing and sales department, and the deputy head of the sub-plant
of installation. From January 2006 to March 2008, he was the head of the
production and manufactory department. From April 2010 to February 2012,
he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee of Huainan ZMJ
Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hao (&%), aged 47, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Jia graduated from University of Shanghai for Science and Technology
in 1991, majoring in mechanical engineering. In the 1990s, he worked at
Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute of China
National Machinery Industry Corporation and was responsible for design and
research. He also worked at Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., a foreign company, and was responsible for sales. In April 2001, he
obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from
China Europe International Business School. He then worked as the general
manager of the investment department of Salim Group (China) Company
Limited, a foreign company. In March 2006, he began to serve as the president
of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and a director of Shanghai Huili
Company Limited, both of which are the subsidiaries of Salim Group, a listed
company. Since March 2014, he has been the deputy general manager of the
Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Wang Yongqiang (£ 7k3&), aged 45, is a deputy general manager of
the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou University and obtained
a master’s degree in mechanical engineering in June 2007. He started his
career in August 1993. From February 2003 to June 2007, he was the deputy
executive officer of hydraulic project center of ZCMM. From June 2007 to
December 2007, he served as full-time deputy executive officer of research
and development centre for hydraulic control of ZCMM. From December 2007
to February 2010, he was the executive officer of hydraulic project center of
the Company. From February 2010 to February 2014, he served as a manager
and secretary of the party branch of hydraulic control company. From February
2014 to February 2015, he was the head of human resources department of
the Company. Since February 2015, he has been the deputy general manager
of the Company.

Mr. Guo Desheng (EBfE4E), aged 55, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Guo is a senior accountant. From February 1981 to October
1994, he was a section member of the finance division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From October 1994 to October 2001 and from
October 2001 to October 2002, he was the deputy division head and the
division head of the finance division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory, respectively. From January 2002 to December 2008, he served as
head of the finance department of ZCMM. Since December 2008, he has been
the chief financial officer of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin (3R33%g), aged 35, is a deputy general manager, the
secretary to the Board and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhang
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law in July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was
a secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December
2008, he served as the chief secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From
December 2008 to March 2010, he was the chief secretary of the general
office of the Company. From March 2010 to September 2010, he served as an
assistant to the head of the general office of the Company. From September
2010 to January 2012, he served as the deputy head of capital operation
department and representative for securities affairs of the Company. From
January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of general office, head of
capital operation department and representative for securities affairs of the
Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of division
of party and masses’ affairs. Since February 2015, he has been the deputy
general manager and secretary to the Board of the Company.
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Company Secretary NEME

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the Company Secretary. Please see “— Senior REBEE BARARIWE - BEFZEE - B4R
Management” of this section for his biography. [—-EREBAEB]-

Ms. Chan Yin Wah ([ #E2£), aged 41, is the assistant to the Company BREELL - M5% RARFWEE - BT AEX
Secretary. Ms. Chan is an Associate Director of SW Corporate Services FETERGEEERATNEEES - FEHBIBI7
Group Limited. She has over 17 years of professional experience in handling FREES EMARZATNE - RRERKRMDBS
the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters for listed RS HEL - MBS RKER NG ERZREREE
companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various international professional ETRAIME - RATRHBLBESET B REEEST
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree BIETEN - WARSRKITWEAS RABEFTWER
in economics and a master’s degree in professional accounting. She is a fellow TBRABAGERET - BIERBFT ARSI
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute gEREE -

of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She is also

a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices. The Board believes that
effective and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential to the
development of the Group and can safeguard and enhance the interests of the
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Review Period”), the
Company has complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for the deviation from
Code Provision A.5.2(a) of the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.2(a) of the CG Code, the Nomination Committee
shall review the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and put forth proposal for change
to the Board in line with corporate strategies of the issuer. As the Nomination
Committee of the Company considered that there was no compelling reason
for the Company to change the structure, size and composition of the Board,
the Nomination Committee did not convene any meeting during the year ended
31 December 2016 to review the structure, size and composition of the Board.
However, on 26 August 2016, the Company reviewed and evaluated the
structure, size and composition including skills, knowledge and experience of
the Board through holding Board meetings.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in a
responsible and effective manner; responsible for execution of the resolutions
passed at general meetings; deciding on the Company’s operating plans,
investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units; preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans; and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four special committees under the
Board, namely, the Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and these Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, of which at least include the following:

e {0 develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management;

e {0 review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e {0 review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors four days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in case
of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone or in
other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener makes necessary
explanations at the meeting. A written meeting notice shall at least include the
subject matters for discussion and the meeting information as necessary for the
Directors to make well-informed decisions.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held. The participating Directors shall sign
the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorize them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board held 11 meetings on 18 February 2016,
4 March 2016, 24 March 2016, 22 April 2016, 28 April 2016, 26 June 2016,
20 July 2016, 26 August 2016, 28 October 2016, 3 November 2016 and 24
November 2016 respectively.

Attendances of meetings by Directors during the Review Period are set out
below:
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Number Number Number
of board of board of board Number
meetings meetings meetings of board
required attended attended meetings Attendance
to be attended in person by proxy not attended rate
Name of Director EHE BEHE ZHEHE
BEERE EBEERY R RE REIXE HE=R
Mr. Jiao Chengyao RS E 11 1 0 0 100%
Mr. Xiang Jiayu MKRMEE 11 11 0 0 100%
Mr. Wang Xinying TR E 11 11 0 0 100%
Mr. Guo Haofeng RIE A 11 11 0 0 100%
Mr. Liu Qiang RS 11 11 0 0 100%
Ms. Liu Yao =S 11 8 3 0 100%
Mr. Jiang Hua IEELYE 11 11 0 0 100%
Mr. Li Xudong FIEA - 1 11 0 0 100%
Mr. Wu Guangming R E 11 11 0 0 100%
Shareholder’s Meetings e N

During the Review Period, the Company held two general meetings in total, part
of the Directors, supervisors and senior management had attended the general

WEHRN > ARBHBAT2RRERAE  HOEE -
EERSREEABHETRRASG - UTRESHE

meetings, in which records of the Directors are as follow: BERAREER -
Number of general

meetings required to be Number of general  Attendance
Name attended meetings attended rate
H®H BEERRASRE BRUERRAKERH HE=
Mr. Jiao Chengyao EAREES L 2 2 100%
Mr. Xiang Jiayu MRMETE 2 1 50%
Mr. Wang Xinying EEn& st 2 2 100%
Mr. Guo Haofeng BRIEHKE 2 2 100%
Mr. Liu Qiang 285 E 2 2 100%
Ms. Liu Yao =3 2 2 100%
Mr. Jiang Hua TERAE 2 2 100%
Mr. Li Xudong PR E 2 2 100%
Mr. Wu Guangming RYERREAE 2 2 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, the Board consists of nine Directors, comprising five
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors. More than
one-third of the members of the Board of the Company are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Executive Directors possess in-depth experience in coal
mining equipment industry while the Independent Non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications in law or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Independent Non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all
corporate communications.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board are:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr. Guo Haofeng (Executive
Director) and Mr. Liu Qiang (Executive Director).

Independent Non-executive Directors: Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Jiang Hua, Mr. Li
Xudong and Mr. Wu Guangming.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
Independent Non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the Board
considers that all of the four Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. Mr. Jiao Chengyao is
the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Fu Zugang is the General Manager. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively. The General Manager
is delegated with the authority and responsibility to manage the Company’s
day-to-day business in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies and
coordinate the overall business operation.
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Internal Control

The Board of Directors is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its
strategic objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph
C.2 of the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
the Board has established a risk management and internal control system, and
has continuously supervised and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s
operation. The system is aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks
of failure to achieve business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient
operation, and offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial
reports, compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and protection of
the Group’s assets.

The structure of risk management and internal control
functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organizational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit Committee, the management of the Company, the audit
department and the various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance
of the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The
Audit Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the Company’s
risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and makes
recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit Department of
the Company conducts internal audit and supervision for risk management, and is
responsible to the management of the Company. As the first line of defence in
risk management and internal control, the various departments of the Company
organizes and carries out the daily work in risk management and accepts the
organization, coordination, guidance and supervision by the management and
the audit department of the Company in doing their part of risk management
and internal control in their respective professional areas.

Commencement of risk management work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system
and internal control structure. In 2016, based on the methodology of risk
management covering risk identification, risk evaluation, risk response, risk
reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganized and identified the
possible risks at different levels, such as strategy, operation, finance, market
and law, thereby building up a risk incident database unique to the Company.
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Internal Control (Continued)

The structure of risk management and internal control
functions (Continued)

Commencement of risk management work (Continued)

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from the two perspectives
of vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from the
occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and, through
evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with. This is to
ensure appropriate management resources are allocated to the management of
major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and control in key areas.

In 2016, the risk management work of the Company culminated in the Risk
Management Report, mainly covering the methodology and procedure for
commencing risk management work, along with the major risks the Company
is faced with. The Risk Management Report has been approved by the Audit
Committee, and has been submitted to the Board for review.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for internal audit in risk
management. By organizing and commencing the supervision and assessment
of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company continuously
monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes in risks in the
course of operation and management of each responsible department for risks,
supervises and assesses whether each department is able to commence risk
management work in accordance with the relevant regulations and the results
of the work, and makes recommendations on improving the effectiveness of
implementing risk management work.

The operation of the internal control system

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedure and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation and
disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination of
inside information. By fostering the gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterized by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the reporting period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 27 March 2017. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2016 indicate no control failure
for major risks in the Company and reveal no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the Corporate Governance Code. The Board
has assessed the Company’s risk management and internal control system as
effective and adequate.
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Directors
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 144 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Directors of the Company shall be elected or replaced at the general
meetings and the terms of office of all directors (including executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) will be three years. Upon the expiry
of the terms, the Directors will be eligible for re-election and re-appointment.
Subject to the compliance with relevant laws and administrative regulations, the
general meeting may dismiss any Director during his/her service term by way of
an ordinary resolution (except that any claim for compensation pursuant to any
contract shall not be prejudiced thereby).

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws,
rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors and senior executives to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
From time to time, Directors are provided with written training materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be improved and
updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the Directors by
seminars and provision of training information. All the Directors have provided a
record of training they received to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials and attended a training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Directors.
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Directors (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the directors,
supervisors and senior management to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
have been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the period from 19 July
2014 to 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016 and from 19 July
2016 to 18 July 2017.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors and the supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiry with all the directors and supervisors of the Company, who have
confirmed their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Emolument Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its directors, supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of the relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration
policy for directors, supervisors and senior management is based on the
principle of combining incentives and disciplines, and market adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits
in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme contributions made on
their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.
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Directors (Continued)

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All Directors of the Company had committed their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialised committees, namely, the Strategy
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code.
These Board committees are assigned respective responsibilities according
to their terms of reference. The composition and main functions of these
specialised committees and their work during the Review Period are set out as
follows:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprise Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Wang Xinying,
Mr. Guo Haofeng and Mr. Wu Guangming.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board; (iii)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not convene any meeting during the year.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprise Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Ms. Liu Yao and Mr. Jiang Hua, all of
whom are the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reporting and auditing work, including:
(i) proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors; (ii) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports and
accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding financial
reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (iii) coordinating the
communication between our internal audit department and the independent
auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure of
such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control systems and
auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi) reviewing
the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the
risk management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the
risk management and internal control system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to establish effective systems; (viii)
researching on major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and management’s response to these findings as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature
and extent of significance of the material risks the Company faces after the
previous year and its ability in response to the changes in the business and the
changes in external environment; and (x) exercising other functions and duties as
authorized by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee convened 4 meetings during year 2016, with full
attendance of all members of the committee:

U

On 4 March 2016, the Audit Committee convened the 2016 first meeting,
and considered and approved the Proposal on 2015 Audited Domestic and
Overseas Financial Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, the Proposal on 2015 Annual Report on A Shares and
Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Proposal on 2015 Annual Results Announcement of H
Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and
Authorising the Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2015
Annual Report of the Company’s H Shares, the Proposal on the Report on
Internal Control Assessment of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited for 2015, the Proposal on the Audit Report on Internal
Control of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited for
2015, the Proposal on the Appointment of External Audit Institution for
2016 and Payment for the Auditing Fee for 2015;

On 22 April 2016, the Audit Committee convened the 2016 second
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2016 First
Quarterly Report and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited;

On 26 August 2016, the Audit Committee convened the 2016 third
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2016
Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2016 Interim Report
on A Shares and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited and the Proposal on 2016 Interim Results
Announcement of H Shares and 2016 Interim Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited;

On 28 Qctober 2016, the Audit Committee convened the 2016 fourth
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2016 Third
Quarterly Report and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprise Mr. Jiang Hua (Chairman), Mr. Liu Qiang and Ms. Liu Yao. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director and
is comprised of a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
directors and management personnel; (i) search for qualified candidates of
directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the
Board.

As the Nomination Committee considered that there was no compelling reason
for the Company to change the structure, size and composition of the Board,
the Nomination Committee did not convene any meeting during the reporting
period to review the structure, size and composition of the Board. However, on
26 August 2016, the Company reviewed and evaluated the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board through
holding Board meetings.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprise Mr. Wu Guangming (Chairman), Mr. Wang
Xinying and Ms. Liu Yao. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee
is chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director and is comprised of a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s directors and management personnel; (i) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee did not convene any meeting
during the year.

>
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Pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration BB EEATRIEBISETANENY  HEZZE—7RF
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 T A=+ —BIEFESRERABNFE NS IZE
December 2016 is set out below: EREFHINT
Remuneration band (RMB’000) Number of individuals
FHMARNABARETIT) AE
1-500 3
500-750 3
750-1,000 7
Board Diversity Policy EESLUBUR
Purpose ~E

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates of the Company’s directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company annually.
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Board Diversity Policy (continued)
Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the implementation of Board
Diversity Policy.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and BDO CHINA SHU
LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic
auditors of the Company, respectively. Details of fees paid or payable to the
auditors by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

B b E ®)
BLER N [ ¥R

REZESGEFRONEFEEZILCBEAAERK @ A5
REEFLILLBENIIT

o B4 B 57 A

ARBEDHIIEBEEE » R SFHEITMILEE S
EDETSAT (IR E B A B IE AR R BN BB AR AR
o BEZZ—A"FTA=1+T—HILFE  A£EE
NN BB ERFBNT

Services rendered Fees
FriR ftAR 7% WELHE
(RMB’000)

(AR¥FIT)

2016 annual audit 20165 Z & X 2,980
Non-audit services FEEAZ IR 1,000
Total Bt 3,980

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organizing meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and in gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an associate
director of a corporate service provider, SW Corporate Services Group Limited.
The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms.
Chan will contact on matters relating to corporate governance, the Listing Rules
of Hong Kong as well as other laws and regulations which are relevant to the
Company and other affairs of the Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the reporting period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information. Information of the Company is communicated to shareholders
mainly through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, etc. These publications
are sent to the shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on the
website of the Company (http://www.zzmj.com). The means of communication
between the Company and the shareholders also include general meetings,
analysts meetings or seminars, one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation,
advertisements, media interviews and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, shareholder(s)
individually or in aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the
Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board to propose
an extraordinary general meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance
with laws, administrative regulations, rules and the articles of association of the
Company, make a response in writing on whether or not it agrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, within ten days upon receipt of such requisition.
If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
after the Board resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving
the request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the
Company’s issued shares have the right to propose the Board of Supervisors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board
of Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original requests
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for 90 consecutive days have the right to
convene and preside over the meeting on their own. The requisitionists shall
be compensated by the Company for any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of failure by the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors to duly convene a meeting, and any sum so compensated shall be
set-off against sums owed by the Company to the defaulting Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or in aggregate
holding 3% or above of the Company’s issued shares shall have the right
to submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or jointly in
aggregate holding 3% or above of the Company’s issued shares can submit the
temporary proposal to the convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167 (Nan San Huan), 9th Street
Econ-Tech Development Zone
Zhengzhou
Henan Province
PRC

Telephone: (86371) 6789 1017

Fax: (86371) 6789 1100

Postal Code: 450016

Board of Supervisors
Composition of Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors composes of
seven members, four of whom are nominated by the shareholders and three are
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three
years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

The members of the Board of Supervisors are Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang
Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai and
Mr. Zhang Jun.

The hiographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under section
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save
as disclosed in that section, there is no any other material relationship among
members of the Board of Supervisors.
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)
Duties of Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following powers in accordance with laws:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the finance affairs of the Company;

e monitoring of the performance of duties of Directors and senior
management, and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior
management who have violated the laws, administrative regulations and
Articles of Association or resolutions of the general meeting;

e demanding for correction in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing of general meetings in the event of the Board having failed to
perform its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
Company Law (2 53%);

e proposing motions to general meetings;

e liaising with Directors on behalf of the Company and instituting legal
proceedings against Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 152 of the Company Law;

e incase of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company identified,
to investigate and if necessary, to engage professional institutions such
as accountants or law firms to assist in its work at the expense of the
Company;

e reviewing the financial report, operation report and profit distribution plan to
be submitted by the Board to the general meetings; and may, in the name
of the Company, appoint a certified public accountant or a qualified auditor
to re-examine such documents if a suspicious item was identified;

e exercising other duties and powers specified in the articles of association of
the Company.

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held 6 meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, there were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the reporting period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
had complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a material
impact on the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no
circumstances of material breach or non-compliance of applicable laws and
regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where the Group operates. The Group actively
contribute to the community and engage in public welfare activities in addition
to striving for good performance to foster credibility and build a good corporate
image. Besides, the Group will act in an environmentally responsible way
and strive to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In
addition, the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation
of resources and reduce wastage and utility savings.

Business Review

Please refer to the section of Management Discussion and Analysis. The section
of Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Report of the Board
of Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
financial statements of this annual report.

Relevant resolution has been passed at a meeting of the Board held on 27
March 2017, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the
“Dividend”) of RMBO.11 per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December 2016,
totalling approximately RMB19,057,185.07. If the proposal in relation to the
profit distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2016 annual general
meeting to be held on 16 June 2017 (the “2016 Annual General Meeting”),
the Final Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or about
31 July 2017.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (Fr 3 A R FNE
EEFTSHE) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax
rate of the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares
registered under the name of non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares
registered under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or
trustees, or other organizations or entities, shall be deemed as shares held
by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined under the EIT Law). The
Company will distribute the Final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise
shareholders subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and
paid by the Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the EIT Law) which has been legally
incorporated in the PRC or which was established pursuant to the laws of
foreign countries (regions) but has established effective administrative entities in
the PRC, and whose name appears on the Company’s H Share register should
deliver a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished
by a qualified PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm issuing the
opinion affixed thereon) and relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited in due course, if they do not wish to have the 10%
enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of the Circular SAT No.[1993] 045 (B} BRI 7 3£[1993] 0455%
X4 RE LR B RE A FTSTEE MR R AN) (the “Notice”) issued
by the State Administration of Taxation on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be
distributed by the PRC non-foreign invested enterprise which has issued shares
in Hong Kong to the overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject to the
individual income tax with a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates
for respective overseas resident individual shareholders may vary depending
on the relevant tax agreements between the countries of their residence and
Mainland China. Thus, 10% personal income tax will be withheld from the
Dividend payable to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose names
appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the Record Date,
unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation agreements
or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the status of the shareholders or any disputes over
the mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.

>

EERKRE®)

REB(hEARKMBEDEEMSTE R E BG4
EM/HE]D  EEREESRERRERPEIHEANE
B EMEHAERBRER10% © At - ERAFEE
ALEEE  BREUBETREE(REA)ERAT -
HERBEAREFEA - KECHEMNERBRZE SO
BB ERERBIFERERBIR (ER R AEMEHR
EDFIRANRD - AABRBERMRBI0%ERAE
& - MZEIEEREERRRE RIS -

R 5 A D RIHAR AR SR A4 it E M ORFE P BIR AR
PRS2 SRERBIMNE (I8 ) AR B BEREEHIBE
TEEANEREE(ERLIEEMERE]D  WAH
EHARRRINRE0%EEMSH - BERKRTED
REFBLERAFZRPEAFZMEANRBERLS
BREXRNERBERE (NMERMEBMAE) MY
1

BEERRBHEBREN - ——FXAZ+/\BEHD
AR B 75 35 [1993]045 5% U1 % L1278 B IE A PSR
ERENBA[EH]) - EEBEITRMDOEAIEIN
IR ECERARINEREABRRKENRE - —RE
0% RGN BAPTSH © AT - FRINERBA
RS M PG T RAE T B R E B R B rh B ARER 1R
BB PR © Bkt - AERRRRE A BRIIAL
BIHA R & M O HA B A BRI B R B BB - AR
B TEFI0% A BAE R IEAFA SR - BRIFIBENIEE
B I ESRASERE

SHRME T R R SR & 1 AR AR I I B T Sl BB AR BETE 1T 5| BN
EMREREROREE SN TAFR - ARFHTE

g e

EES WM ABEARRERERFBREEMEE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016 SR/ & A i &= B p% {5 A BR A &) 201644k

63



< <«

64

Report of the Board of Directors EE2{EE

Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominee
holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes at the
rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the tax authorities for
the withholding. For investors of Northbound Trading who are tax residents of
other countries and whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%,
those enterprises and individuals may, or may entrust a withholding agent to,
apply to the competent tax authorities for the entitlement of the rate under such
tax treaty. Upon approval by the tax authorities, the paid amount in excess of the
tax payable based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of Northbound Trading will be the same as those
for the holders of A shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the H shares of the Company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (the “Southbound Trading”), the Company will in due
course enter into the Agreement on Distribution of Cash Dividends of H shares
for Southbound Trading (5 R%EBHRE A% =30 € 4T FJE 24177 3%) with the
Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, pursuant to which, the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited, as the nominee of the holders of H shares for
Southbound Trading, will receive all cash dividends distributed by the Company
and distribute the cash dividends to the relevant investors of H shares of
Southbound Trading through its depositary and clearing system.

The cash dividends for the investors of H shares of Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on
the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect (B EABREMI5 H G M B Mis 2 H @
U B 55 9 38 40) (Caishui [2014] No. 81), for dividends received by domestic
investors from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the company of such H shares
shall withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of
the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment funds
from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that
for individual investors. The company of such H shares will not withhold and
pay the income tax of dividends for domestic enterprise investors and those
domestic enterprise investors shall report and pay the relevant tax themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of Southbound Trading will be the same as those
for the holders of H shares of the Company.
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Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offer on the Stock
Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting the relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described
in the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds, the use of proceeds was in line with the usage
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 45 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 29.20% of the
Group’s total sales while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 10.57% of the Group’s total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 25.44% of the Group’s total
purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 10.96% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates
or substantial shareholders who had more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains steady development relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2016, details of movements in property, plant
and equipment and land use rights during the year are set out in notes 16 and
17 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

During the Review Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any shares of the Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreements in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to purchase equity-linked financial products.

Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors are:

Directors:
As of the date of this report:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director,
Vice Chairman), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Guo Haofeng (Executive
Director), Liu Qiang (Executive Director), Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive
Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director), Li Xudong
(Independent Non-executive Director), Wu Guangming (Independent Non-
executive Director)

Supervisors:
During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors are:

From 1 January 2016 to 17 January 2016:

Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Mr. Jia Jingcheng, Ms. Xu Mingkai

From 18 January 2016 to 25 February 2016:

Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai

From 26 February 2016 to the date of this report:

Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai, Mr. Zhang Jun
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Report of the Board of Directors EE2{EE

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into or proposed to enter into any service contract with any member of the
Group other than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended December 31, 2016.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to the
Company’s business and in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested in any way, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

At no time during the Review Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors,
the Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFQ); or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange as follows:
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Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage

Director/ of the relevant of the total Long position/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool

L5

B 2 BAERN EROLEN HAE KE
®E BETBRAR S ##ME ROEN EBOBE #BOEIH% BOEISH% TEHEHNKRSG
Jiao Chengyao  Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,901,964 0.21 0.18  Long position
- Ve = E=mEBA AR R
Xiang Jiayu Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,120 0.14 0.12  Long position
MR = E=EBA AR R
Wang Xinying Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.14 0.12  Long position
T 2 E=EBA AR S=)
Guo Haofeng Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,226,720 0.16 0.14  Long position
21 = E=mEBA AR HE
Liu Qiang Director Beneficial owner A Share 11,500 0.00 0.00  Long position
258 = E=mEBA AR HE
Zhang Zhigiang ~ Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 600 0.00 0.00  Long position
SRR gE= E=mEBA AR HE
Ni Heping Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 2,217,200 0.16 0.14  Long position
{7 AN gE= E=mEBA ARZ HE
Xu Mingkai Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 16,000 0.00 0.00  Long position
RAAsEL gE= E=mEBA AR HE
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations (continued)

Approximate

Approximate

percentage percentage

Director/ of the relevant of the total  Long position/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool

1HER

BEE B BRAERN EROBEN HE KBS
HE BRTBAR & #zttE ROESHN ROBE #HOEIH% BOESH% "HEHSKRG
Zhou Rong Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 40,000 0.00 0.00 Long position
IBES BE EmEE A ARZ e
Liu Fuying Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 599,060 0.04 0.04  Long position
2T = EmEE A ARZ e
Fu Zugang Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
<48 ERITHRAE BmEAA ARZ e

Interest of spouse A Share 200,000 0.01 0.01  Long position
[inyE=olz e AR% 5=

Gao Youjin Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 2,380,000 017 0.15  Long position
= ERITHRAE BmBEAA ARZ e
Zhang Minglin - Chief Executive ~ Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.14 0.12  Long position
SRARAR SRITHAE EmEEA AR% 5=
Wang Yongagiang Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 54,500 0.00 0.00 Long position
Foxad SRITHAE EmEEA AR% 5=
Guo Desheng Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 2,012,500 0.15 0.12  Long position
EAE SRITHAE EmEEA AR% 5=

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors,
the Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are deemed to have); or were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
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Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders as recorded in the register of shareholders of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

BREREBRBRAR

RIB—RF+ZRA=+—0  FXARRFAMACE
HIBRF BT -

Holders of A Shares AR ER 58,034
Holders of H Shares HA% A% 3R 100
Total number of shareholders IR R ABE 58,134

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
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provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
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GBI DZEIB6IERZAC AR R A Tr B RC M M 2 20K

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register kept by the B
Company:
Approximate
percentage of Approximate
the relevant percentage of  Long position/
Capacity/ Class of Number class of the total number  Short position/
Name Nature of interest shares of shares shares % of shares %  Lending pool
1EEH
BAERN  HROAEN TR KRS
nE/E8 =270 £33 45 %5 R EE BAEAHE%  HAEIH% AMEEHHRE
State-owned Assets Supervision Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 37.82 32.14  Long position
and Administration Commission Bz #AH A A% HE
of Henan Provincial People’s
Government”
e ARBNBREEE
EEEREAE
Henan Machinery Investment Group ~ Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 37.82 32.14  Long position
Co., Ltd." ExnmBA ARR 59}
AR RIS E
EREFERA"
National Council for Social Beneficial owner H Share 23,709,400 9.75 1.46  Long position
Security Fund EnEAA HE HE
ZEHEREEASEESE
CITIC Securities Company Limited®  Interest of controlled H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1,38 Long position
corporation HA HE
I ER
B
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)
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Approximate
percentage of Approximate
the relevant percentage of  Long position/

Capacity/ Class of Number class of the total number  Short position/
Name Nature of interest shares of shares shares % of shares %  Lending pool
LHE
RAERY  EROEEN FR KRS
nE/ 8 LR £330 R0 &R ROEAE BHOESH% HHEIL% THELHRG
CITIC Securities International Company  Interest of controlled H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
Limited® corporation Hi% He
X EE
ol 3o
CSI Capital Management Beneficial owner H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
Limited® EalBA HR% 1A
UBS Group AG Person having a security  H Share 12,245,800 5.04 0.76  Long position
interest in Shares Hi e
HRHFHERE
RmHA
Interest of controlled 15,600 0.00 0.00  Long position
corporation )
PR EE R
Notes: Bif3E

(1) Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly held 521,087,800 shares
in the A Shares of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government. By virtue of the SFO, State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial
People’s Government is deemed to own 521,087,800 shares in the A Shares of the
Company which were in the same block directly held by Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd..

(2) CSl Capital Management Limited directly held 22,402,600 shares in the H Shares
of the Company. CSI Capital Management Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CITIC Securities International Company Limited, which was wholly-owned by CITIC
Securities Company Limited. By virtue of the SFO, CITIC Securities International
Company Limited and CITIC Securities Company Limited were deemed to own
22,402,600 shares in the H Shares of the Company which were in the same block
directly held by CSI Capital Management Limited.

Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

(1)

TR B EEEARET AR EEREAF521,087,800
AR AIAR < AR EmEHEIRESRERERET AR AT
HEARBRNEEEEEBERZEG2EMBAR -
BEBELRPEEN  TEEARRTREEEERS
BLEEeWGEIERERTERMEEREEERRET
DRI EEREBR—HE521,087, 800A% A A FIARK °

CS| Capital Management Limited & # 1% 7 22,402,600 A% A< 22 &H
[i% © CSI Capital Management Limited /&CITIC Securities International
Company Limited & Ff{ &2 &) ° CITIC Securities Company Limited
2 & A CITIC Securities International Company Limited © 8% 5%
% K HEE &6 - CITIC Securities International Company Limited
K2 CITIC Securities Company Limited # 48 1% % 7 £ CS Capital
Management Limited B+ #5 45 [F] — #£22,402,600A% 48 22 RIHA% °
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Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
a total contribution of RMB54.3 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income. Further information about the
Group’s pension scheme is set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, save as the deviation disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report set out in the annual report of last year, the Company had
complied with the applicable Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the financial year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or its
associated companies. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in
the directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

Since the end of the reporting period, the updates on the material asset
reorganization of the Company (the “Material Asset Reorganization”) are as
follows:

Since 18 December 2015, trading in the A shares and H shares of the Company
has been suspended due to the planning of material matters of the Company.
Trading in the H shares resumed on 12 January 2016 while trading in the A
shares remained suspended. On 25 December 2015, the Company published
the Announcement on the Material Asset Reorganization and Suspension of
Trading in relation to the commencement of the procedures of Material Asset
Reorganization.

On 24 March 2016, the Company and its counterparties entered into an Equity
Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which the Company would acquire equities in
six Target Companies, at an aggregate consideration of RMB2,200,000,000,
to be settled by way of issue of the Consideration Shares, and with the cash
proceeds from the issue of the Placing Shares. The Placees of the Placing
Shares include the Company’s Employee Share Ownership Scheme, in which
the Directors, supervisors and general manager of the Company participate.
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Subsequent Events (Continued)

The Material Asset Reorganization constitutes a very substantial acquisition
for the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to
the reporting, announcement and Shareholders’ approval requirements
thereunder. The Employee Share Ownership Scheme constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
thereunder. As of the date of this report, the transfer of the Target Equity
Interests, and the issue of the Consideration Shares and Placing Shares had
been completed.

Closure of the Register of Members

The 2016 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 16 June
2017 (Friday). In order to determine the H Share holders’ entitlement to attend
the Annual General Meeting, the H Share register of members of the Company
will be closed from 17 May 2017 (Wednesday) to 16 June 2017 (Friday), both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the
H Shareholders who wish to attend the 2016 Annual General Meeting but
not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 May 2017 (Tuesday).

If the resolution of the proposed dividend is approved in the 2016 Annual
General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Share holders whose
names appear on the Company’s H Share register of members after the close
of trading as at 30 June 2017 (Friday). The Company’s register of shareholders
will be closed from 25 June 2017 (Sunday) to 30 June 2017 (Friday), both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the H Share
holders who wish to receive the Final Dividend but not yet registered, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong Share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712—-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 June
2017 (Friday).

Audit Committee

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 with the management team and the
external auditor.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
has been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
27 March 2017
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During 2016, in accordance with the relevant requirements of the Company
Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company, the Company’s Board of Supervisors dutifully and
conscientiously discharged their obligations and exercised their supervisory
duties towards the directors and senior management of the Company in
compliance with the principle of being accountable to all shareholders of the
Company, playing a positive role for the standardized operation and development
of the Company.

Basic Evaluation on Management Behavior of
the Board of Directors and Manager and the
Performance Achieved in 2016

Through our supervision over the directors and senior management
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board
was able to strictly comply with the requirements of the Company Law,
Articles of Association and the other relevant laws and regulations and
operated in accordance with the laws. All major operation decisions
of the Company were rational and the decision-making process was
lawful and valid. The Company has further established and enhanced
its internal management systems and internal control mechanisms to
further regulate its operation. The directors and senior management
of the Company conscientiously executed their respective duties
in accordance with the national laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association, and the resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings
and the Board meetings, and they were devoted to their duties, giving
their utmost efforts in exploration and expansion. None of the directors
and senior management of the Company were discovered for violating
any laws, regulations, the Articles of Association when discharging
their duties of the Company and no acts which contravene the interests
of the shareholders or the Company was found.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held six meetings.
Details are set out below:

The sixth meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 4 March 2016, considering and
approving eight resolutions, including the Proposal on the
2015 Work Report of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on 2015 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Proposal on 2015 Annual Report on A Shares
and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2015 Annual
Results Announcement of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the
Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2015 Annual
Report of the Company’s H Shares, the Proposal on the 2015
Specific Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of Proceeds
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Proposal on the 2015 Report on Internal Control
Assessment of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, the Proposal on the 2015 Audit Report on
Internal Control of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, the Proposal on the 2015 Profit Distribution
Plan of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited;

The seventh meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 24 March 2016, considering
and approving two resolutions, including the Proposal on
Fulfilling Conditions of Purchase of Assets by Share Issue
and Cash Payment and the Fundraising of the Company and
the Proposal on the Completeness and Compliance of Legal
Procedures Performed and the Validity of Legal Documents
Submitted for the Material Asset Reorganization.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors
(Continued)

The number of votes was less than three since the connected
supervisors abstained from voting. Therefore, the twelve resolutions,
including the Proposal on the Purchase of Assets by Share Issue
and the Fundraising of the Company Constitutes A Connected
Transaction, the Proposal on Purchase of Assets by Share Issue and
Cash Payment and the Fundraising (Connected Transaction) of the
Company, the Proposal on the Feasibility of the Use of Proceeds from
the Fundraising, the Proposal on the Material Asset Reorganization of
the Company Satisfies the Requirements of Article 4 of the Regulations
Concerning the Standardization of Certain Issues of Material Asset
Reorganization of Listed Companies, the Proposal on the Material
Asset Reorganization of the Company Satisfies the Requirements
of Article 43 of the Administrative Measures for Material Asset
Reorganization of Listed Companies, the Proposal on the Material
Asset Reorganization of the Company Does Not Constitute a Back-
door Listing as Specified in Article 13 of the Administrative Measures
for Material Asset Reorganization of Listed Companies, the Proposal
on the Plan on the Purchase of Assets by Share Issue and Cash
Payment and the Fundraising (Connected Transaction) of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and Its Summary, the
Proposal on Conditional Agreement on Equity Transfer and Purchase
of Assets by Cash Payment and Share Issue entered into between the
Company and its Counterparty, the Proposal on the Authorization of the
Board of Directors of the Company to Handle the Matters in Relation
to the Purchase of Assets by Share Issue and Cash Payment and the
Fundraising (Connected Transaction) of the Company, the Proposal
on the Employee Share Ownership Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited (Draft) and Its Summary, the
Proposal on the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement entered
into between Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and Huatai Securities (Shanghai) Asset Management Co. Ltd.,
and the Proposal on Authorization of the Board of Directors to Handle
All Matters in relation to the Employee Share Ownership Scheme
were directly submitted to the general meeting of the Company for
consideration.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors
(Continued)

3.

The eighth meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 22 April 2016, considering and
approving one resolution, the Proposal on the 2016 First
Quarterly Report and the Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

The ninth meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 28 April 2016, considering and
approving five resolutions, including the Proposal on the
Completeness and Gompliance of Legal Procedures Performed
and the Validity of Legal Documents Submitted for the Material
Asset Reorganization, the Proposal on the Dilution Effect of
the Reorganization on the Current Returns of the Company
and the Remedial Measures Adopted by the Company,
the Proposal on the Letter of Undertaking Issued by all the
Directors and Senior Management Members of the Company
on the Remedial Measures Adopted in Relation to the Dilution
of Current Returns by the Material Asset Reorganization of the
Company, the Proposal on the Formulation of the Dividend
Distribution Plan for Shareholders of the Company for the
Next Three Years (2016-2018) and the Proposal on the
Amendments to the Articles of Association of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

The number of votes was less than three since the connected
supervisors abstained from voting. Therefore, the four
resolutions, including the Proposal on the Purchase of Assets
by Share Issue and Cash Payment and the Fundraising
(Connected Transaction) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the Report in relation
to the Purchase of Assets by Share Issue and Cash Payment
and the Fundraising (Connected Transaction) of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (Draft) and
[ts Summary, the Proposal on the Conditional Supplemental
Agreement of the Agreement on Equity Transfer and Purchase
of Assets by Cash Payment and Share Issue entered into
between the Company and Its Counterparty, and the Proposal
on the Independency of the Appraiser, Reasonableness of
the Assumptions Used in the Evaluation, Relevance of the
Evaluation Methods and Evaluation Purposes and Fairness
of the Appraised Price were directly submitted to the general
meeting of the Company for consideration.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors
(Continued)

5. The tenth meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 26 August 2016, considering and
approving four resolutions, including the Proposal on 2016
Interim Report on A Shares and the Summary thereof of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
the Proposal on 2016 Interim Results Announcement of H
Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and Authorising the Chairman of the Company to
Sign and Announce 2016 Interim Report of the Company’s
H Shares, the Proposal on the Specific Report on the Deposit
and Actual Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited and the Proposal on the
Daily Connected Transactions with Zhengzhou Suda Coal
Machinery Service Co.,Ltd in 2016.

6. The eleventh meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 28 October 2016, considering
and approving one resolution, the Proposal on 2016 Third
Quarterly Report on A Shares and the Summary thereof of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

The Board of Supervisors took part in the Company’s major work
by attending the Board meetings and effectively supervised the
meeting agendas, voting procedures and voting results, etc. and
offered recommendations on operation activities, proposals and
profit distribution plans, etc. The Board of Supervisors also effectively
supervised the guiding principles for decision-making and the decisions
made to ensure their compliance with the laws and regulations
of the state, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of the
shareholders’ general meetings and that they are in the interests of
shareholders.

The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2016

1. Lawful operation of the Company

The Board has complied with relevant requirements stipulated in
the Company Law, the Articles of Association, and the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Supervisors of the Company and carried
on regulated operations and the decision-making procedures were
lawful and valid. The Company has established and improved
internal control system; the directors and senior management of
the Company discharged their duties in the Company diligently
and dutifully, with no acts of violation of any laws, regulations and
the Articles of Association or prejudice to the Company’s interests
were discovered.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors EEE & T /g &

The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2016 (Continued)

2. Inspection of financial status of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the financial status of
the Company and considered that the financial report of the
Company reflected the actual state of the Company’s financial
position and operation results and that the audit report was truthful
and reasonable, and was favorable for the shareholders to truly
understand the financial and operational status of the Company.
The 2016 Annual Report prepared by the Board truthfully, lawfully
and completely reflected the Company’s position without any false
record, misleading statement or any material omissions.

. Inspection of the utilization of the raised proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of the raised
proceeds, and the Company has established the management
system for the raised proceeds. The proceeds were used in a
regulated manner and were invested in the projects as undertaken.
No breaches in respect of the raised proceeds were found.

. Acquisition and disposal of assets by the

Company

During 2016, the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Company were conducted in strict compliance with the Articles
of Association and the relevant requirements of Shanghai Stock
Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Relevant
decision-making procedures were carried out in compliance with
the law. The transactions were fair, operations were regulated, and
no insider dealing was discovered. No prejudice to the interests of
certain shareholders or dissipation of the Company’s assets was
discovered.

. Connected transactions

The connected transactions of the Company in 2016 were
conducted in strict compliance with the Articles of Association
and pursuant to the connected transaction agreements and that
the transactions were fair and reasonable; major connected
transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis and
the statutory approval process was fulfilled, with no act that is
prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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Iv.

The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2016 (Continued)

6. Internal control self-assessment report

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2016 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board
and the establishment and implementation of the Company’s
internal control system, and considered that the Company has
established a relatively sound internal control system which could
be effectively implemented. The self-assessment report on the
Company’s internal control truly and objectively reflected the
establishment and implementation of such control in the Company.

7. The Board of Supervisors’ review opinions on the
2016 Annual Report of the Company

The preparation of and procedures for reviewing the 2016
Annual Report of the Company were in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association. The content and the format thereof were in line with
all the requirements of China Securities Regulatory Commission
and Shanghai Stock Exchange, with the information contained
therein giving a true view of the business management and
financial position of the Company in that year. No staff involved in
the preparation and review of the annual report was found to have
violated the confidentiality requirement.

Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors will strictly comply with the requirements of
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the relevant laws,
regulations and policies of the state, truthfully perform its duties, and
further promote regulated operations of the Company.

(1) Comply with the laws and regulations and
discharge duties conscientiously

In 2017, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of
Association and supervise the Board and the senior management
according to the laws with the purpose to further regulate the
decision-making and operation activities to ensure their compliance
with the laws. Firstly, it will urge the Company to further improve
the corporate governance structure and enhance governance
standards according to the requirements of modern corporate
system. Secondly, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure
of the Board of Supervisors of the Company, it will continue to
strengthen the enforcement of its supervisory functions and attend
the Board meetings according to the laws so as to timely grasp the
Company’s major decisions and the lawfulness of the decision-
making procedures, thereby further safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders. Thirdly, it will convene working meetings of the
Board of Supervisors on a regular basis to implement the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.
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IV.  Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors - BEEETIEEwm

(Continued)

(2) Strengthen supervision and inspection to avoid

operational risks

The Board of Supervisors will constantly strengthen the supervision
over the directors and other senior management on their
performance of duties, execution of resolutions and compliance
with the laws and regulations.

Firstly, the financial supervision will be maintained as a focus, and
the Board of Supervisors will monitor the financial position of the
Company in accordance with the laws.

Secondly, the internal control system will be further strengthened
to prevent corporate risks and the loss of the Company’s assets.
The Board of Supervisors will regularly keep informed of and
understand the operation status of the Company from the
holding companies, especially the major operation activities and
investment projects, and provide prompt suggestions to stop and
remedy the situation when problems are found.

Thirdly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain communications
and liaison with internal audit function and external accountants
(auditors) entrusted by the Company, taking full use of internal and
external audit information to keep abreast of the updates.

Fourthly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on the high risk areas
of the Company, carry out inspections on the critical matters,
such as major investments, management of raised proceeds and
connected transactions.

(3) Uplift professional capabilities through self-

improvement

To better perform the role of the Board of Supervisors, it should
uplift its professional qualifications first in order to work efficiently.
In this regard, members of the Board of Supervisors will receive
more trainings, attend relevant programs in a planned manner and
persist in self-improvement this year in an attempt to broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities
S0 as to further safeguard the interests of the Company and the
shareholders. It will strictly comply with the laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association, conscientiously discharge their
duties and better perform the supervisory duties of the Board of
Supervisors.
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RIS - HERERESE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To comply with provisions set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in December 2015, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited(“*ZMJ”, “the Company”, or “We”") presents Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report”) for the year from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016.

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for our environmental,
social and governance strategies and reporting, including the assessment
and identification of environmental, social and governance risks and ensuring
that appropriate and effective environmental, social and governance risk
management and internal control systems are in place. We have appointed
our departments of business functions to review the Company’s operations
and hold internal discussions to identify relevant environmental, social and
governance issues and assess the importance of the matter to our business
and stakeholders. Management has confirmed the effectiveness of the
environmental, social and governance risk management and internal control
systems to the Board. According to the general disclosure requirements
of environmental, social and governance guidelines, the identified major
environmental, social and governance issues have been included in this
environmental, social and governance report and are intended to disclose, in a
balanced manner, environmental, social and governance performance of ZMJ in
operations.

1. Communication with Stakeholders

While adhering to the belief of creating a world-class brand and tirelessly
pursuing its own development, ZMJ has due regard to the needs of
stakeholders, including shareholders/investors, the government/regulatory
authorities, staff members, customers, suppliers/partners, the environment
and the community/the public. By establishing avenues conducive to the
participation of stakeholders, the Company brings in the views of each
party to the whole decision-making and operating process of the Company.

The report provides the stakeholders of the Company with the latest
information about the Company’s activities and performance in
environmental, social and governance areas, conveying the Company’s
wish to create the best value for its stakeholders.
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1.

Communication with Stakeholders (continued)

Communication with Stakeholders and Participation of

Stakeholders

Stakeholders
F=AEEH

Means of Communication
BBEFN

>

1. BEREEE®)
B BB R E R

\

Expectations and Needs
HAE B R

Shareholders/Investors
BERBREH

Government/Regulatory
Authorities
B, EEHE

Staff Members
BT

e (General meetings

o BERAE

e Press release and announcements
o HMEREAE

e Corporate reporting

o RAWE

e Company website

LN ST F S

e |nvestor conferences

« BAEEH

e (Conferences

s B

e Compliance reports

o SHWE

e (On-site inspection

o EhigE

e (Conferences/seminars

o BEAE

e Special inquiries/verification
o BREW HBE

e Proper submission of documents
« EZERIX

e Labour contracts

. BBHAR
e Trade unions

° I’rx;z%

e |eisure activities
o FEREH

e Manager's mailbox

o ISIRELAE

e Volunteering activities
o EREF

e Daily interaction

s BERM

e  Safeguarding the rights and interests of
shareholders

o (RIBRRRAER R

e  Preserving and enhancing the value of assets

s BERMEZEA

e Corporate governance

o RALRE

e True, accurate, timely and complete disclosure
of information

s FEREBEEE - R REMTE

e (Qperation in compliance with laws
o BERE

e Environmental protection

s [RIEIRIE

e Fqual employment opportunities

o FERERE

e (Occupational safety

. mERR
e Giving back to society
e [MOEEHE

e Equal employment opportunities

o FERERE

e Competitive remuneration and benefits
s EARBFNNFMER

e Democratic management

e RIEE
e  (areer development
o BIERBRE

e (Caring for staff members

s BEET

e  Staff safety and health management

s BIRZREER

e Safety enhancement and improvement
o RRIRFNME
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BRI HERERERE

1.

Communication with Stakeholders (Continued)

Communication with Stakeholders and Participation of

Stakeholders (Continued)

1. EEEHEBEBE®
Y Elezpal: o) eilE e =

Stakeholders Means of Communication Expectations and Needs
FE2AERE T BREAR HASEERER R
Customers e Daily operation/interaction e (Customer service
R e AREELE o EPR®

Suppliers/Partners
HER, SEBH

The Environment
RiB

The Community/The Public
HE DR

e Customer satisfaction surveys

s EPFWEERE

e Regular visits

o EHIER

e Customer service centres/hotline

o EPRBTHL, R

e High-level meetings
- BEEE

e Seminars

o Hi®

e Sales summits

e Approval and evaluation of suppliers
o (HEERAE BT

e On-site inspection

o EHIER

e Daily interactions

e HERM

e Environmental monitoring

o IRIFEE

e Environmental disclosure reports

o IREBRERE

e |mplementing green operation
and management

o HITHREKEEER

e Community service
o tt[RARTE

e (Charity donations
o HEERH

e Product technology enhancement
o EmBIiR

e Product quality guarantee

. m B ERE

e Product return management

o EmRMOER

e Suppliers’ code of conduct
o HEREITA%ER

e FEvaluation of suppliers

o HEERRTG

e (Cooperation with suppliers

o HEBAE

e Environmental protection systems

o RRERER

e Measures to save energy and reduce
consumption

o ENREMRAEERRE

e Reducing the emission of pollutants

o RAERHER

e Recycling of resources

o ERBEIRFA

e Active participation in community activities
o HMLEIEE
e Commitment to poverty relief

s HOHEEHR
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Environmental Protection

Always holding on to the development philosophy of “saving energy and
protecting the environment”, ZMJ has adhered to “energy-saving, low-
carbon” green practices in the course of development, conscientiously
complied with the law in the course of operation, and ensured all
activities of the Company are in compliance with the law by rigorously
implementing environmental laws, regulations and standards, including
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({FRZE A R HNEIRE
{R7EE) ), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution (P2 A RELFIBIIKIS 22F5747%) ), the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({## A R4
MBI A 5RF48%)), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Noise ({47 2E A FE L AN Bl IR 3518
BSR4 ), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ({7 A R FNE & 42 EE
SEHIRIERL YA ), the Provisions on Urban Drainage and Wastewater
Treatment of the PRC (9 2& A R H AN B S HE/K BL)5 7K BR 12 15
{51 ), the Implementation Rules of the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (P A R XA KR 6A
Eh4m8) ), the Environmental Quality Standard for Surface Water of the
PRC ((rh#E A R B b IR IS E 812 %)), the Environmental
Quality Standard for Noise of the PRC GB3096-2008 (=% A R 4£51
B2 1R 158 2 12 #GB3096-2008) ) and the Regulations on the Safety
Administration of Hazardous Chemicals of the PRC ({FE A R FE
Bt Emac 2 BTIREN)).

Environmental Protection Systems

ZMJ has passed the IS014001 certification for environmental management
systems. By regularly organizing and launching internal review and external
monitoring of the Company’s environment management every year, the
Company ensured the controllability and durability of the environmental
management systems, persistently optimized the environmental and
energy management systems and fostered the standardization and
systematization of saving energy and cutting emission.

Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission

In the course of production and operation, ZMJ adhered to the fundamental
principles of saving energy and protecting the environment by actively
fostering green recycling and low-carbon development, and endeavouring
to enhance the Company’s capability of sustainable development. As of
the end of 2016, ZMJ consumed a total of 439,990 tons of water (the
subsidiaries, ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. and Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd., have been excluded from
the statistics), 73,012,308 kilowatt-hours of power (the subsidiaries, ZMJ
International Trading (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. and Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd., have been excluded from the
statistics), and 3,518,860 cubic meters of natural gas (the subsidiaries,
ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. and Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu
Duan Co., Ltd., have been excluded from the statistics).
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2. Environmental Protection (Continued) 2. RERE®

86

Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission
(Continued)

The Company also had due regard to the environmental requirements for
the packaging materials of its products. In the course of production, the
main packaging materials included packaging boxes, packaging bags,
plastic cloth, cable ties, straw mats and straps. In 2016, ZMJ consumed a
total of packaging materials amounting to RMB1,300,712.83.

Measures to Save Energy and Reduce Consumption

/MJ actively promotes energy saving and consumption reduction through
taking measures such as the replacement of raw materials and auxiliary
materials, improvements in technologies and techniques, maintenance
and update of equipment, optimization and control of processes and the
recycling of waste to enhance energy saving and consumption reduction.
Adopting such measures not only cut costs and raised the efficiency
of production and operation, but also created desirable environmental
benefits.

Clean Production

In 2016, ZMJ stepped up its efforts at saving energy and reducing
consumption by implementing numerous clean production initiatives, such
as improving the techniques involving telescopic girders, jacking machines,
articulated axle and spacing holes, overhauling the dust removal system for
welding fumes and optimizing the circuits for machine tools. An analysis
of the results of implementation pointed to a considerable increase in the
energy and resources saved for the Company. For example, the power
consumption per unit of product, which was at 289 kilowatt-hours/ton
of product before the implementation, decreased to 277 kilowatt-hours/
ton of product after the implementation, representing a decrease in power
consumption by 4.15%. The water consumption per unit of product, which
was at 0.5918 ton of water/ton of product before the implementation,
decreased to 0.5661 ton of water/ton of product after the implementation,
representing a decrease in water consumption by 4.34%. The Company
also saw a drop in the emission of major pollutants, as shown by the
decrease in the emission of Chemical Oxygen Demand from 3.4 tons/
year before the review to 3.298 tons/year after the review, representing a
decrease in emission by 3%. Clean production achieved significant results
in energy saving and consumption reduction.
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Environmental Protection (continued)

Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission
(Continued)

Measures to Save Energy and Reduce Consumption (Continued)
Green Operation

ZMJ has formulated and promoted energy saving measures for its office
systems and everyday life by clearly demonstrating the philosophy of
green operation in areas such as power sources, lighting, air-conditioning,
computers and office equipment. LED lights and voice activated lights are
gradually in use in restrooms, corridors and halls where normal lighting
requirements are satisfied in these areas. Staff members are supposed
to turn off their computers and monitors, and air conditioners before they
leave work or if they are away from the office for over two hours to avoid
the waste of resources. ZMJ seeks to conserve office resources by putting
in place a comprehensive system for procuring, allocating and distributing
office supplies. Priority is given to energy-saving products when it comes
to procurement. The OA smart office system is promoted with the aid
of internet resources. Paperless office operation has been achieved.
ZMJ advocates using less disposable pens for signing documents and
encourages the use of fountain pens instead. ZMJ has stepped up the
management of assets by advocating the use of both sides of paper and
reminding the staff of reusing portfolios and photocopy paper.

The “Energy Saving Month” Activities

In 2016, in accordance with the “Notification about the Province-wide
Energy Saving Promotion Week and Low-carbon Day Activities 2016” ({#
20166 24 EiaL S 5 A FE R BIEENRBAN) ) jointly issued
by 16 authorities, including the Development and Reform Committee of
Henan Province, ZMJ combined the actual circumstances of the Company
and formulated measures for saving energy, cutting emission and reducing
carbon. Centered on the theme of “green development with energy saving
as the trailblazer” (EFgE<E R - &% 235 /&) for the “Energy Saving
Promotion Month” activities and the theme of “green development, law-
carbon innovation” (4% 3R - {KAREIFT) for the “Low-carbon Day”
activities, a number of activities have been organized and launched, such
as the study of documents related to energy saving and carbon reduction,
promotion and education, inspection and rectification, experience of
energy shortage and green, low-carbon field trips.
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Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission
(Continued)

Measures to Save Energy and Reduce Consumption (Continued)
The “Energy Saving Month” Activities (Continued)

The “Energy Saving Month” activities included the creation of promotion
banners for the theme of “green development with energy saving as the
trailblazer; green development, law-carbon innovation” (8 gE4E He
EIERE IR - {KHXEIF). Energy saving measures were
promoted from time to time through such channels as the OA system,
Wechat and broadcast for the 4 areas of energy saving measures for office
systems, energy saving measures for production systems, measures for
carbon reduction and measures for environmental protection. Inspection of
production equipment for effectiveness in energy saving was arranged.

Promotion of the energy saving philosophy
HiReERE

EiREREFERIE (45)
BPREA A B ()

EEEARBATBRREUTEAR  RE%
B AREER ERAFAEHIENEEK
& AR RSERENE G - AERSERE N - [F
WA REREREENITEATIEANR - FE
OARAR « 15 - BHESRED MY AN T
B8 LERBHEHES




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSE

2. Environmental Protection (Continued) 2. RERE®
Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission B ERRe R EE ()
(Continued)

Measures to Save Energy and Reduce Consumption (Continued) EIRERRFERIE ()
The “Energy Saving Month” Activities (Continued) EPREAZE) (4B

Inspection of production equipment for effectiveness in energy saving
EEREHEHES

Organizing the “Energy Saving Month” activities gave the Company’s BB EEAEYNENR  ARETERTE
staff members a taste of environmental responsibilities and obligations, THRERNBEENED  SETIEABHEL - 8
created a sound ambience of energy saving and consumption reduction U g INEEEERIRE - I EERT
characterized by “individuals driving units, units influencing society”, and g KIRFESIERE—HEANBETE - AR
turned the notion of “saving energy with my actions and leading a new, IR - AR AR AR E M A% LS )

low-carbon lifestyle” into the conscious actions of every individual, thereby
working tirelessly towards protecting the Earth and safeguarding the home
of humanity.
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2. Environmental Protection (Continued)

Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission
(Continued)

Reducing the Emission of Pollutants

The Company is committed to reducing the emission of pollutants by
stepping up the management of the emission of pollutants including waste
water, exhaust gas, solid waste and noise at the levels of systems and
execution in order to mitigate the damage to and impact on the ecological
environment.

Treatment of Waste Water

The waste water from the Company includes the waste water from
the processing work done on the coal mining machines in production
workshops and the waste water from daily life. The sources of waste
water from processing work are mainly the waste water from paint and the
waste water from recycling. The sources of waste water from daily life are
mainly the water discharged from office restrooms and kitchens, free of
poisonous, hazardous or special substances.

In 2016, the Company constructed new sewage treatment plants to divert
the waste water from workshops and the waste water from daily life,
to be discharged into the municipal sewage network after treatment. In
2016, the externally discharged waste water of the Company satisfied
the requirements under Level 2 of the “Integrated Waste Water Discharge
Standards of the PRC” ( (22 A R HMEDS KA A PERIZAED)
(GB8978-1996).

New sewage treatment plants constructed by the Company
AR5 KER IR
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Environmental Protection (continued)

Commitment to Saving Energy and Cutting Emission
(Continued)

Reducing the Emission of Pollutants (Continued)
Treatment of Exhaust Gas

The sources of the exhaust gas generated by ZMJ mainly include the
exhaust gas from paint, the exhaust gas from the drying process, the dust
and the soot from the production processes. We purify the exhaust gas
with purification facilities before discharging the exhaust gas. For example,
after coming into sufficient contact with water and being absorbed in water
cyclones, the exhaust gas from paint is discharged via vents 15 meters
in height. After cooling off in cooling towers, the exhaust gas from the
drying process is absorbed by activated carbon and discharged via vents
15 meters in height. The dust generated in the course of shot blasting
on shot blasting machines is treated by bag dust removal devices before
being discharged via vents 15 meters in height. The soot generated by
raw materials and welding workshops is treated by a centralized soot
purification system before being discharged.

In view of coal burning as a key source of atmospheric pollution,
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
stopped using preheating furnaces and burning coal since July 2016 in
an effort to reduce environmental pollution, which slashed the emission of
exhaust gas and reduced the damage to the environment.

In 2016, both the intensity of the exhaust gas discharged and the rate of
discharge by the Company satisfied the requirements under Level 2 of the
“Comprehensive Air Emission Standards of the PRC” ({ /& A R AL AN
B K SR5 2 MER & PERURAE) ) (GB16297-1996).

Treatment of Waste

In the course of production, ZMJ generates hazardous waste including
emulsion, paint slag, chromium Il slag, chromium VI slag, filter cotton
tainted with cyanide and packaging materials. The Company has put in
place the Management System for Hazardous Waste ({/Ef@EE4 &
IBHIEZ ) ) to provide clear regulations on the processes for treating
the waste generated in the course of production and operation. In
accordance with the “National Hazardous Waste List of the PRC” ({Hn
#= NREAMBEEREREEY&4E)), the Company has classified
and identified waste, set up a dynamic management mechanism for
hazardous waste, persistently monitored the stages such as the clean-up,
storage and transfer of hazardous waste, and engaged a qualified third-
party professional treatment firm to carry out the waste treatment so as to
ensure that it is conducted in compliance with the law and regulations.

Treatment of Noise

The key noise of ZMJ includes the noise from machines, the noise from
compressed gas, the noise from audible and visible alarm apparatus,
traffic noise and the noise from ventilation facilities. We have adopted
basic vibration reduction, confinement and insulation measures for noisy
equipment. The results of monitoring the daytime and nighttime noise level
at the boundaries of our plants satisfied the requirements under the Class
2 standards and limits of the “Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises
Noise at Boundary of the PRC” ({FRZE A R HME T 2P EFRIR
B R YEIZE ) ), suggesting minimal impact the noise had on the
surrounding community.
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2. Environmental Protection (Continued) 2. RERE®
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Recycling of Resources
Recycling of Raw Materials

In processing and manufacturing products, ZMJ mainly uses metal, such as
steel and stainless steel, as raw materials. We actively recycle the scrap
metal and sweepings of metal generated in the course of project operation
and sell the scrap metal and sweepings of metal to professional firms for
recycling, thus raising our sales revenue while significantly reducing the use
of iron ore.

The Company has put in place the System Related to the Processing of
Scrap and Used Articles ({EEE fa Bz IR MHRE &I ) ) to standardize the
rules for the bidding of disposal and selling of scrap materials from raw
materials, such as scrap steel, sweepings of iron, robotic arms, discrete
chunks of steel, welding slag from robotic arms and scrap mixed steel,
ensuring and enhancing the efficiency of recycling raw materials.

Reuse of Residual Heat

The Company has sufficiently reused the residual heat generated in the
course of production to reduce the consumption of energy. The investment
in the construction of facilities reusing residual heat in the production zone
to the east of ZMJ’s Group headquarters has left in place facilities utilizing
the residual heat generated by thermal treatment heating furnaces for
natural gas to heat up water up to 60 degrees Celsius for staff members
to take a shower, satisfying the showering needs of nearly 1,000 workers
in the production zone. Heating 1 ton of water from 15 degrees Celsius
(the ordinary daily temperature) up to 60 degrees Celsius consumes 6.45
kilograms of standard coal. In 2016, the monthly average output of hot
water in the production zone to the east of ZMJ’s Group headquarters was
1,496 tons, with 9.65 tons of standard coal saved every month and a total
of 115.82 tons of standard coal saved over 12 months.
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Responsibilities towards Staff

Adhering to the development strategy of “an enterprise driven by
technologies and talents”, ZMJ considers talents as the Company’s most
valuable assets. The competition of comprehensive strength among
companies comes down to a competition of talents. Based on ZMJ’s
core values of “integrity and mutual benefit”, the Company’s principles
of “contributing to society and benefitting staff members” and the safety
philosophy of “caring for the life and health of staff members is our prime
responsibility”, ZMJ respects its staff members, respects knowledge,
respects labour, and has built a work, study and living environment
with ZMJ’s characteristics where the excellent internal relations are
characterized by solidarity, friendship, harmony, cohesion, stability and
orderliness. The character and dignity of staff members are duly respected.
/MJ endeavours to create a sound environment for individuals to grow
along with the organization, thus setting the stage for the development of
talents on an extensive scale.

ETEE
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Safeguarding of Interests R IRIE
Equal Employment Opportunities TEER

In accordance with the Labour Law of the PRC ({"#E A L F1[E
A4 Eh5%)), the Labour Contract Law of the PRC ({FPZIE A R HE A
25 &) &[R4 ) ) and the requirements under other laws, regulations
and policies, ZMJ recruits staff members based on the principles of
open recruitment, fair competition, hiring solely on merit, putting quality
before quantity and giving precedence to internal transfer over external
recruitment. Comprehensive review is conducted for applicants in respect
of their knowledge, integrity, capability, experience and stamina, etc. The
Company is opposed to all forms of employment discrimination and forced
labour. There was no employment of child labour or compulsive labour.
The Company has entered into labour contracts with its staff members,
guaranteeing that staff members will not be subject to discrimination
on the ground of their race, nationality, colour, religion, bodily disability,
gender, sexual orientation, membership in any organization or marital
status, etc.

With the aid of multiple channels, including campus, the internet, society
and the information system of the Company, ZMJ has established internal
and external recruitment platforms, and persistently enhanced the level
of systematization and standardization for recruitment. In respect of staff
team-building, ZMJ has always emphasized the reform and innovation
of the personnel system. ZMJ has fully implemented the reform of the
“4 systems” of “hiring through competition, remuneration on an annual
basis, appointment on fixed terms and elimination of underperformers”
for middle-level cadres, which revitalized the teams of cadres in their
capability to innovate on their own initiative and persistently led to
breakthroughs in the areas of market-oriented selection, appointment and
incentive and restraint mechanisms, etc.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (Continued)
Safeguarding of Interests (Continued)

Equal Employment Opportunities (Continued)

3. BETIEF®m
PEZSIRFE ()
FEEE(E)

Hiring of cadres through competition at the Group headquarters

In 2016, the Group headquarters of ZMJ hired middle-level cadres
through competition. During the hiring process, personal characteristics
unrelated to work, such as the applicant’s gender, ethnicity, religious
belief and place of household registration, were excluded from the
criteria for consideration. Such hiring of middle-level cadres through
competition turned out 4 female cadres, leading to a persistent increase
in the proportion of female staff members among the Group’s personnel
at the middle-level or above.

The personnel structure at the Group headquarters

As of 31 December 2016, the Group headquarters of ZMJ had a
total of 2,068 staff members, of which female staff members in
total represented 17.50% of the staff, while staff members aged
26-30 represented 31.77% of the staff. The staff structure has
become more reasonable.

In 2016, the Group headquarters saw personnel turnover of 7.9%,
indicating that the Group retained a relatively high level of appeal to
talents.

SE AT 2

2016 MR M BATAETT T h BT AR - REER T LA
FEEEABEIER - BRIk - RBUEM - PREMEHLSET(E
EROEASBIERTE - BBIRTERE - EEX4RK
& - REARIAHE LA EABPLMEE THHITER

=
= °

SEARBABEE

HZE2016F 128310 - EEMEEAIPE T48£02,068
Ao Heh» ZWHBT(HETRHEALH A17.50%
26-30R% FEREE T(H B TBEMLLH| A31.77% - BT
HEREBAE -

2016F EEANEA B MK ETI% - RFEF T W= AL K3
5 o

The age structure of the staff at the Group headquarters of ZMJ in 2016
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Responsibilities towards Staff (continued)
Safeguarding of Interests (Continued)
Competitive Remuneration and Benefits

In strict compliance with the requirements of the Social Insurance Law
of the PRC ({FIE A RFELFBE T EREIE)), the Regulations of
Insurance for Employment Injury of the PRC ({3 A R FE T
SRk (&) ) and other laws and regulations on labour and social
security, ZMJ has made timely payments to the various social security
programs for the staff, including the premiums for medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and contributions to
the housing provident fund. The Company has put in place a sophisticated
remuneration and incentive system that combines the work performance,
personal contribution, competence at work, experience with performance
in the position of staff members, thereby establishing a fair and attractive
career development path.

The Company offers its staff members competitive remuneration and
benefits, including paid maternity leave, marriage leave and retirement
benefit plans, while providing staff members with a variety of subsidies and
benefits in areas such as transportation, lunch, communication, housing,
heating, cooling and holiday benefits.
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Distribution of benefits for Chinese New Year
HEENEE N

Distribution of items for cooling during the summer
b &R Y T

Distribution of benefits for Chinese New Year
HEBHAEER
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Responsibilities towards Staff continued)
Safeguarding of Interests (Continued)
Competitive Remuneration and Benefits (Continued)

Moreover, ZMJ has set up a mutual aid fund for staff members to offer
assistance covering clinical visits and hospitalization for staff members
suffering from 13 major diseases (including malignant tumours, uraemia,
or those in need of kidney transplant, liver transplant, bone grafting, bone
marrow transplant or those who have sustained severe burns) and other
major diseases, as well as staff members in particular difficulties. By doing
s0, ZMJ has helped its staff members solve their everyday problems at the
practical level.

Democratic Management

ZMJ has established and refined the work systems, such as the staff
representative congress. Through convening the staff representative
congress, ZMJ and staff representatives studied the key development
matters of the Company and the hot issues directly pertinent to the
interests of staff members to safeguard the right of staff members to be
informed, to supervise and to take part in decision-making. Through a
number of paths and channels, including pre-work meetings, sub-plant
meetings and party congress, ZMJ enhanced the communication with
staff members, listened to the needs of the staff members and extensively
called for views and suggestions from staff members to tap into their
collective wisdom for the Company’s development in order to inspire a
sense of belonging and ownership among the staff.

On 26 February 2016, the second congress of the third session of staff-
cum-member representatives of ZMJ was convened, where the groups
of representatives discussed the hot issues staff members concerning
including “bringing lunch to the frontline of production”, “hot water for
shower for frontline staff members”, “work environment of workshops
with high temperature and a high level of dust” and “group purchasing for
staff housing”. The management of the Company offered specific solving
directions and solutions regarding the various issues discussed during the
congress.
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At the venue of the second congress of the third session of staff-cum-member representatives
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (continued) 3. ETEMFE®w
Safeguarding of Interests (continued) R IRIE ()
Career Development BERE
Career Development Path gy

Adhering to the core values of “integrity and mutual benefit”, and the
development philosophy of “keeping pace with the times, updating
philosophy, enhancing capability and continuous improvement”, ZMJ
has formulated the “Measures for the Administration of Staff Career
Development” ({ B TR ¥ A EREESIEPL)) and “Staff Manual”
(B IFMY), setting out clear development paths for all kinds of staff
members, such as graduates, undergraduates and technical workers. ZMJ
has been steadfast in building a career development platform for staff
members where individuals grow along with the Company.

In accordance with the management requirements of ZMJ, Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd. has formulated
the “Measures for Promoting and Appraising Staff Members of the
Technical Path” ((#fifi@iE 8 TEHMKEZPHE)) as a means
of providing technical staff members with a clear path of advancement in
order to sufficiently and effectively develop technical human resources,
continuously inspire staff members to work at a high level of efficiency and
stay aspiring, with the ultimate goal of fostering highly efficient operation
in the work of the technical departments.

Career Development and Training

With the rapid development of ZMJ, we have developed a relatively
complete training system, established a training organizational system
combining control by the Company’s senior leadership, management by
the human resources department and cooperation from the grassroots
units. We have a team of internal training specialists led by the well-
respected senior level and middle level staff, and made up of experienced
and skillful senior engineers and senior technicians. As the system of
training courses for all kinds of staff members is gradually being refined,
an education and training layout is formed where training is available at
various levels, in various categories, through multiple channels, in multiple
forms, with an emphasis on results, full of energy and open to all staff
members.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (continued)

Safeguarding of Interests (Continued)
Career Development (Continued)
Career Development and Training (Continued)

Currently, we conduct staff training through sending staff members
to external institutions for study opportunities, joint initiatives between
schools and enterprises and internal training. The training projects include
selecting and sending a certain proportion of management staff at the
senior level and middle level, and the core professional, technical staff
to reputable universities in the PRC for education at the master’s and
doctoral level. Outstanding grassroots staff members have been selected
to participate in the conversion education programs jointly organized
by universities and the Company to convert their technical education
into undergraduate education. Based on the development needs of the
Company, we have arranged for all kinds of staff members to take part in
the various types of continuous education and professional training offered
by the government, the industry and training firms. Within the Company
and based on plans, the leadership at the senior level and middle level, the
management technical staff, the planning and scheduling staff, supervisors
in charge of work zones, squad leaders and team leaders, technical
workers, new hires and staff members who have moved to a different
position have been provided with position-related training in areas such
as technology, marketing, production, quality, safety, corporate culture,
computer, English and professional skills.

In 2016, the Group headquarters of ZMJ held a total of 185 training
classes specifically for the frontline staff of production, general
management staff, marketing staff, and design and technical staff,
spending a total of RMB980,000 on training and training 5,500 attendees,
with 9.31 hours of training per person.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff continued) 3. ETEMFE®w
Safeguarding of Interests (continued) R IRIE ()
Caring for the Staff BEEET

/MJ is committed to creating a healthy and comfortable working and living
environment for the staff members in order to relieve their work stress,
help them balance work and life, strengthen their sense of belonging, and
actively foster a happy, open, healthy, friendly, and harmonious working
and living atmosphere.

To enrich the leisure and cultural life of the staff members, strengthen
their constitution and enhance the cohesion among staff members within
the departments, the Company has organized sports activities on an
irregular basis, such as shuttlecock, football and basketball. In 2016,
the Company organized sports and cultural activities that spanned the
entire year, including a series of sports competitions, such as basketball
games for young workers, shuttlecock games for 3 and tug-of-war for
staff. The activities are meant to form part of the Company’s production
and operation, foster higher work efficiency on the part of staff members,
enhance a sense of bliss among them, and guide them towards identifying
with the culture of ZMJ, staying loyal to ZMJ and concentrating on the
development of ZMJ so as to enhance the vitality of the Company and
create a harmonious development environment.

Sports and cultural activities in 2016

2016588 B L EISE &)

To let the female staff members of the Company have a relaxed and
enjoyable “8 March” International Working Women'’s day, the Female
Workers’ Committee of the trade union at the Group headquarters of ZMJ
meticulously planned and organized a diversity of fun activities centered on
competitions and entertainment. More than 300 staff members from the
Group headquarters of ZMJ participated in the activities.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff continued)

Safeguarding of Interests (continued)
Caring for the Staff (Continued)

Fun activities during the “8 March” Festival
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Occupational Safety

Caring for the life and health of staff members is our prime mission.
We always regard staff members as our most valuable assets. We are
committed to creating a healthy and safe workplace for staff members.
We have obtained the GB/T28001-2011/0HSAS18001 certification for
occupational safety and health management system of the PRC.

Staff Safety and Health Management

In strict compliance with the Labour Law of the PRC ({HZE A R FLFN
BY &4 &%) ), the Law on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases of the PRC (A ZE A R A B 2R P5757%)) and the
local regulations on the prevention and treatment of occupational diseases,
ZMJ has persistently refined staff health management and actively adopted
management measures, such as production safety training, monitoring
of and protection against hazards of occupational diseases, medical
examinations and sports activities, to mitigate the hazards of occupational
diseases. In 2016, the Company monitored positions with the hazards of
occupational diseases including workers in the fields of power, natural
gas, fire welding and oxygen generation. Workers have already obtained
the relevant certificates they needed for their position. The Company’s
safety facilities and protection facilities against occupational diseases
have been reviewed and approved by the Henan Provincial Administration
on Production Safety (& Z 24 EEEEIEB) and the Health
Office of Henan Province (A1 E3 & &7 A4E BB).
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (continued) 3. ETEMFE®w
Occupational Safety (continued) BELZ2@
Staff Safety and Health Management (Continued) EIZREEE(E)

The production safety management system
ZTREEEERA

Production safety training
TEREFEE

Production safety training sessions covering the commencement of work in a position, safety knowledge and safety skills have been organized on
an irregular basis. Professional personnel informed staff members of the safe operation skills, possible risk factors and ways of addressing them, as
well as the hazards of occupational diseases and their preventive measures in the course of work.
PEMERE PR - 2 AH - REROER2AER - EXABBILIEBRT L RIRERLE - ARt FEN T2
HENERIBRE - BERNEERAMERSEMET -

Monitoring hazards on the site of work
EERISRERZWA

Monitoring of occupational hazards at the workplace has been enhanced. In accordance with the relevant standards of Henan Province, monitoring
of hazards on the site of work and medical examinations to prevent occupational diseases are conducted regularly every year to identify and
prevent diseases in advance, which led to the effective reduction in the incidence of disease among the staff.
s TSR ERAEREA - RRIBAERTE  BFEHRRREERSEERRRE - BERMSBRETIE
AT IRAITAL - BRURA T B THERMERE

Distributing protective work gear
B AmBM

The criteria for distributing protective work gear have been optimized in light of the actual circumstances of production. The protective work gear
used by the operational staff on the frontline of production has been distributed on the basis of need, thereby ensuring effective protection for staff
members in terms of materials.
RIBFEEERER B TEBNERRNBERRE - FE-RNEXZASERNSBNER R - BITERFERNRA
WWE LRBTEINERE -

Organizing medical examinations
S REREE

Medical examinations have been organized for staff members as a preventive measure. Medical examinations have been organized for all staff
members to identify latent diseases, thereby preventing, controlling and treating any health issue as early as possible.
MERE TR WUFTED TiF - EEEMR R E TIEMER - EERREE - MEIRFE - 126 ek -

Launching sports activities
BEEERE

Sports competitions that help strengthen the constitution and contribute to the physiological and psychological well-being of staff members, such as
badminton, shuttlecock and basketball, have been actively launched to enrich the leisure life of staff members. The sports activities have been well
received by staff members.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (Continued)
Occupational Safety (Continued)
Staff Safety and Health Management (Continued)

At the same time, the Company launched health lectures on an irregular
basis every year to popularize health knowledge, spread the health
philosophy, help staff members understand their own health status and
offer staff members medical assistance to mitigate latent diseases.

Health lectures launched in 2016
2016 BB REBE

Safety Enhancement and Improvement

To safeguard the health and safety of ZMJ’s staff members to the highest
level possible, we actively promote the production safety philosophy
and formulated the Measures Related to the Protection of the Health of
Labourers (({REL BN E F R R BMERAIEHE) ), persistently
enhanced workplace safety, including the technological innovation and
revamp of the high-speed plasma production line and the spray painting
production line, to improve the environment of the workplace. We have
protected the health of the operational staff by updating the plated line-
based ventilation system, cleaning the settling pond in the water cycle and
effectively reducing the fugitive emission of gas at the workplace, etc.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff continued) 3. ETEMFE®w
Occupational Safety (continued) BEZzwm)
Safety Enhancement and Improvement (Continued) ZERADCE(E)

Wall for promoting production safety
ZREEEERE

Safety and Health Management of Zhengzhou MBS HREERA TN LR
Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment BB

Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd., N AR R BB PR A R R B M B AR AR
being the earliest and largest controlled subsidiary of ZMJ, is specifically B F AR - BEWEEESERE - BFARET
engaged in the design, manufacturing and overhaul of comprehensive FUENKIET R BESFFEBBIOET - 2F
coal mining equipment and its spare parts. With the worth of annual Bl IRAR IR - BCFE B R EESN o 1ERAR
output exceeding RMB1 billion for many years in a row, Zhengzhou Coal HBRIENR] - BINEMERILR BB R A RIE B
Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. is a key designated BT 2EEEERI  EAELEBREREKT
producer of comprehensive coal mining equipment and its spare parts —EXEMEIRRLZEEERR

in the PRC. As a manufacturer of equipment, Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. has followed ZMJ’s safety
and health management principles and built up a comprehensive staff
health and safety management system in the course of production and
operation.
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The safety management committee is the highest body in charge of
safety management at Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive
Equipment Co., Ltd., and is also responsible for formulating various types
of safety management regulations and systems. To conscientiously and
thoroughly implement the Production Safety Law of the PRC ({Hp %
ARFLFMBEZ 24 EL)), as well as the laws and regulations on
the prevention and control of the hazards of occupational diseases and
environmental protection, and to enhance production safety management,
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
formulated and promulgated a series of production safety management
systems to truly safeguard the health and safety of staff members,
including the “Production Safety Responsibility System of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.” ( {ZF /|
MRS EBR AR R 2 EEREH)), “Measures for the
Administration of Bonuses and Penalties Related to the Security Deposit
for Risks in Production Safety” (%22 4 & SR I 1R & SR 18 iy
7)) and “Regulations of Administrative Accountability for Major Safety
Incidents” ((EARZ 2 EHMITHEELBIHET)).

Education and Training about Health and Safety

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
has formulated plans for education and training about health and safety
every year. Through a number of formats, including pre-work meetings,
training videos and professional training courses, Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. has actively launched and
pushed ahead with a variety of training, including the standardization of the
operating rules and operational safety of production tools and protection
against occupational diseases, to truly and effectively implement the
production safety philosophy at the workplace and achieve the production
safety target of “"zero injury”.

At the venue of education and training
HAEEIERS

3. Responsibilities towards Staff (continued) 3. BETEFm®m
Occupational Safety (continued) BEZ2m@m)
Safety Management System ZEEBEFE
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (continued) 3. ETEMFE®w

Occupational Safety (Continued)

Health Management and the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

In the course of manufacturing equipment, various hazards of occupational
diseases exist in the processes involved, including casting, forging,
thermal treatment, machining and fabrication. Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. has adopted a series of
effective measures for prevention and control (listed in the table below)
to minimize the occupational hazards and protect the safety and health of
staff members, and prevent the occurrence of occupational diseases.

BEZEum
BESRESENGA

RiBFEBIETHBE - BE - BURIE - BRI T
MERETE  EESEBREREERE o FIN
BT R A TR A BIREL T IR TR PTFIH)— 25
BRI AR ESIEG - &ZAREEEBRZEREM
IR TR 22K - BRBERNEL -

Identifying and monitoring the types of work involving hazards of occupational diseases
BERRETENEIFEA

Indicating the hazards of occupational diseases in contracts
BERREREZSRASEA

Wearing protective work gear in key work zones
BEXTEXDHEARME

Medical examinations for occupational health

HEREERE

Establishing staff health archives and the Safety and Health Card
BYEBTREERNZZREF

Daily monitoring and publishing of the hazards of occupational diseases
BEREERZAFENNQR

Contingency Plans and Emergency Drills

To prevent personal injuries in the course of work, based on the
characteristics and requirements of production, Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. has formulated 3 levels
of contingency plans at the company level, the sub-plant level, and the
work zone level. Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive
Equipment Co., Ltd. has also identified the areas with a high rate of
major incidents, as well as the key locations and equipment involved in
the incidents that had occurred, to conduct the key preventive work and
contingency preparations, and to update the contingency equipment
and medication in a timely manner. At the same time, the Company has
conducted emergency drills based on the contingency plans formulated on
an irregular basis to ensure that, in the event of an incident, the personnel
on the spot could react to the incident quickly, direct the handling of the
incident in a timely manner, adopt effective contingency measures to
handle the incident and minimize the loss arising from the incident.
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3. Responsibilities towards Staff (Continued)

Occupational Safety (Continued)

Contingency Plans and Emergency Drills (Continued)

Emergency drill for heatstroke

Bh B B SOR AR

Safety Management Inspection

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
has put in place a reporting mechanism for daily, weekly and monthly
safety inspection. The safety and environmental protection division
conducts safety inspection on a daily basis, issues notices for rectifying
latent safety problems, as well as appraisal and penalty notices for the
problems identified, and immediately reports the on-site violations of rules
and rectification of latent problems. Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. convenes regular safety meetings on
a weekly/monthly basis, where the safety and environmental protection
division reports on the safety work and safety inspection conducted, the
violations of rules that have been investigated and latent problems for the
week/month, formulates the plan for safety work for the following week/
month, raises requests for the enhancement of safety management and
supervises the effective implementation of safety management.
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4. Green Supply Chain 4, FEHER

Always adhering to the operating philosophy and values of integrity
and mutual benefit, ZMJ is committed to forming long-term strategic
partnerships with suppliers to lay down a synergistic development
mechanism where ZMJ grows along with the suppliers on the basis of
mutual trust and mutual benefit, to jointly forge a safe and reliable green
supply chain, and to develop strong competitive advantage in the industry.

Suppliers’ Code of Conduct

We foster a business code of conduct based on integrity and actively
fulfil social responsibilities. We have formulated the “Measures for the
Administration of Management by Grading and Classification, Approval
and Appraisal for Suppliers” (&R H R D AEEMEA - FHE
EIBPHA)Y) to set out our requirements for suppliers in areas such as
quality systems, operation with integrity, health and safety, environmental
protection and business ethics. It is our requirement that suppliers have
to be in compliance with the laws and regulations of the place where they
operate. We encourage our suppliers to obtain certification from the ISO
quality assurance system. Suppliers of special industries and specific
products have to obtain other relevant and necessary certification.

We have formulated the “Management System for the Procurement of
Materials” (& REEIEHIE)), thereby establishing scientific
criteria for the evaluation, approval, appraisal, holding to account, and
elimination of suppliers, an internal control system and a team of talents
characterized by a high level of efficiency and swiftness, which led to
the refinement of the centralized procurement management and control
procedure and the related implementation rules, and ensured the legality,
timeliness and economy of the supply of materials.

Evaluation of Suppliers

In the course of daily management, we have rigorously and impartially
implemented the supplier evaluation mechanism to supervise suppliers in
striving to ensure the quality and safety of products, so as to persistently
enhance supply chain management. We have put in place a management
mechanism for the basic information about procuring materials and
suppliers to document every stage of procurement and register the whole
process of procurement. Suppliers are rated regularly based on the
information recorded.

Every month, the Company appraises the suppliers it works with based on
the rating factors, appraisal indicators and the methodology for calculating
the indicators mandated by the “Measures for the Administration of
Management by Grading and Classification, Approval and Appraisal for
Suppliers” (BRI D MO BB EFAENA « FHEERIBE)). On
the basis of the supplier appraisal results, the Company determines the
response measures to take, such as giving precedence to placing orders
with a certain supplier, procuring as usual, restricting procurement or
suspending procurement.
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4. Green Supply Chain (Continued) 4. FEOMEE )

Evaluation of Suppliers (Continued)

Every year, the Company conducts comprehensive rating that combines
the monthly rating of suppliers with the overall standard of service of
suppliers. Based on the annual supplier appraisal results, the Company
takes the response measures of suspending procurement from barely
qualified suppliers, and directly eliminating disqualified suppliers to ensure
the quality of procurement.

Cooperation with Suppliers

Contemporary corporations compete not only in technology, cost and
management, but also in industrial chain. ZMJ is committed to building a
procurement channel that combines the diversity of local and indigenous
industrial chain, and encourages suppliers of different regions, ethnicities,
cultures and races to join our supply chain system in a fair and impartial
manner, so as to enhance the value creation of the industrial chain.

In 2016, the Group headquarters of ZMJ worked with over 200 suppliers
across 22 provinces and cities in the PRC. At the same time, against the
backdrop of procuring from multiple regions, the Group headquarters of
/MJ is also committed to procuring locally and looking for excellent local
suppliers to significantly lower procurement costs, positively promote
local economic development and create local employment opportunities,
as well as reduce transport energy consumption, carbon emissions, and
the impact on the environment. In 2016, the local suppliers in Henan
represented approximately 46.82% of all the suppliers for the Group
headquarters of ZMJ.
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The number and geographical breakdown of suppliers for the Group headquarters of ZMJ in 2016
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4. Green Supply Chain (continued) 4, REMEE )

Product Responsibility

We have been adhering to “high standards, delicacy and zero defect”
quality ideal. Guided by Scientific Outlook on Development and focusing on
quality, brand, standard, service, reputation and efficiency and revolving
around the spirt of quality for survival, quality for development, quality
for efficiency, we seek to create a favourable atmosphere of attention
towards quality, pursuit of quality, emphasis of quality by every employee.
We enhance quality awareness of all employees and enhance technology,
lower cost and boost efficiency so as to raise customers’ satisfaction. The
Company passed IS090001 quality management system certification.

Product technology upgrade

/MJ possesses advanced technology and strong research and
development capabilities. We build up advanced and efficient production
facilities and production processes with patented technology research
and development and production transformation, allowing us to efficiently
produce high-quality coal mining equipment. In 2016 group headquarters
of ZMJ and subordinate Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. accumulated a total of 185 valid patents, of
which 25 are invention patents, 21 are appearance patents and 139 are
utility model patents. Technical achievements are significant.

To standardize the Company’s work on intellectual property rights,
strengthen the management, protection and utilization of intellectual
property rights, encourage inventions and promote the Company’s
technological progress and innovation, we have formulated “Management
Measures for Intellectual Property Rights” to clearly regulate the ownership
of intellectual property rights, management measures, award and
punishment rules, etc.

Henan Provincial People’s Government awarded ZMJ “Excellent
technological innovation enterprise of Henan Province” title.

Product quality assurance

ZMJ established a whole-process testing and inspection system from
entry of raw materials into warehouses to finished products’ delivery from
warehouses.

e After arrival of raw materials procured, through such procedures
as preliminary checking of arrived goods and quality inspection,
we undertake control of products entering the Company to ensure
no products which are not tested or fail in testing enter production
process or are used for processing.

e |n manufacturing process of product, we ensure testing and
inspection of product during production process are under proper
control through first inspection of work in process, inspection,
establishment of production process quality management point so
that all products meet stipulated quality requirements.

e After product completion, the product is tested for performance and
appearance quality. We ensure products delivered to customers meet
stipulated quality requirements through the final inspection and test
of the product.
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4. Green Supply Chain (continued)
Product Responsibility (Continued)
Product recall management

In order to enhance the quality of after-sales service and enhance the
influence of ZMJ products on the users, we have developed “Management
methods for after-sales service information processing” to clarify
operational requirements regarding recall of products back to different
business nodes and improve the work standard of various nodes and
properly solve after-sales problems about product components returned for
repairing and compensatory production. The above management methods
clarify assessment and punishment measures for responsible departments
failing to complete product recall work according to schedule to ensure
that product recall can be handled in a timely and efficient manner.

In 2016, ZMJ did not record any case of recall of sold or shipped products
for safety and health reasons.

rEttEE s
Emafw
EREEEE

RTRSERRBEE LR BERTAL

VBT BAIBIE TCERRBE SRR EEN
%) AERROREBHHORERER  ©&
R TIFRE  ZERRERRENT  BHIEE
&R - N ARIRIREE BEREHR O IE TR
BEEPT - BIEWARRRE T SRR EEE - REE
mR [ BE SIS B S A A R I

016FBHEBABRLCEXDEXEREBTRAL
2 B2 BT iy [ U A 26

Product responsibility assurance system of the Gompany

RAEMEERERR

Supply chain management Testing and measurement After-sales assurance
g s BRERAE ERRE
Perfect supply chain management, Establish whole process testing and Establish after-sales assurance mechanism
execute stringent entry, assessment and assessment mechanism from entry of raw and form comprehensive product recall
elimination mechanism to ensure sustainable materials into warehouses to finished products’ | processing procedure to overcome customers’
development and improvement delivery from warehouses to ensure product worries.

quality at each step.
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Quality theme activities

To enhance the quality awareness of all staff, improve the enthusiasm
of all staff to participate in quality, enhance the company cohesion
and competitiveness, and promote the company’s stable and healthy
development, ZMJ from time to time organizes quality theme activities.

In September 2016 we held a quality month activity with the theme of
quality and innovation, so that all employees can improve the quality of
awareness in that activity and pay attention to product quality in work,
creating a good atmosphere of every one stressing quality and innovation.

Z/MJ set up activities group, formulated detailed quality activity programs
and seriously implemented them. In order to improve production efficiency,
reduce the waiting time for product delivery, ZMJ group headquarters
improved the product inspection system, saved inspection time, and
achieved remarkable results.
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4. Green Supply Chain (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Quality theme activities (Continued)

In order to encourage employees’ active participation, various affiliated
companies of ZMJ posted banners or produced management notice board
S0 as to create an atmosphere of activity, and organized a variety of labor
competitions, truly realizing “every one knows, every one cares, every one
joins and every one acts”.

Quality promotion banner

HEFERRIE

In quality month activities, ZMJ also actively carries out staff training
regarding quality and develops quality control measures to strengthen the
staff’s quality awareness and operational skills.

ZMJ group headquarters provided training for new factory employees in
theoretical level and operational skills. Guidance is provided for staff with
regard to such aspects as production process, copper plating of guide
sleeve and transport so that staff can master work methods and skills and
product quality can be effectively enhanced. In addition, ZMJ headquarters
also organized two learning sessions for management personnel in
quality system related documents, to make managers work in a more
standardized and regulated manner.

Different production zones of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. organized targeted on-site special course
training. Excellent employees are encouraged to share their working
methods and experience with others.
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4. Green Supply Chain (continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality theme activities (Continued)

Quality training activities

HEIZIED

Through conducting activities with the theme of quality, we instil quality
consciousness into the heart of every employee of ZMJ and instil quality
behavior into each employee’s actions, promoting the company’s quality
management work effectively.

Customer Service

“Enhance the level of customer service, meet the differentiated needs
of users and provide customers with tailor-made whole coal mining
solutions™ is our principle of service. We are committed to providing users
with satisfactory products and services. In order to protect the privacy
of our customers, we set up rights of access to customer documents
according to the responsibilities of sales staff so as to protect the privacy
of our customers to the maximum extent, and to clarify the confidentiality
obligations of the two parties in sales contracts.

We have formulated the Measures for Handling Complaints, and have
made explanations on the responsibilities of complaints handling, handling
process, time requirements and complaint assessment, etc., in order to
effectively deal with customer complaints and promote the improvement
of service quality, improve after-sales service and maintain the Company’s
reputation. In 2016, the company did not record any customer complaint.

Anti-corruption

In order to strengthen the construction of clean governance and clarify
the responsibilities of managers at all levels in the construction of clean
governance and ensure the implementation of various tasks of anti-
corruption construction, ZMJ has established a mechanism of anti-
corruption and promotion of honesty, insisting on addressing both the
symptoms and root cause, adopting both punishment and prevention
measures, focusing on prevention solidly promoting the construction
of the system of punishing and preventing corruption. We have
formed programmatic document “Implementation measures for two
responsibilities of party atmosphere and clean governance construction”
and “Implementation plan for strengthening corruption risk prevention and
control power operation mechanism construction work”. The Company won
“Anti-bribery, fair competition” honor trophy in Henan Province business
community alliance activities.
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Green Supply Chain (Continued) 4, REMEE )

Anti-corruption (ontinued) R 1ERk )

At the same time, ZMJ set up “2016 annual clean governance building [FIRS - EPE MR R EE A R LR B 15 Al F A
responsibility objectives”, carried out specialised rectification work such ZEMBBENR - R TC016F EERKRBER
as “rectifying unhealthy tendencies in clubs “, “ regulating wedding and EFEER) ARTIEASHAMPNER]  [REE
funeral matters of party members and cadres” etc. in accordance with ERIRNEEEEEE |ISHERETIE B
relevant requirements of the State Council of the People’s Republic of ERERENLEERE o

China and the Henan Provincial Party Committee, to create a healthy
business environment.

As of 31 December 2016, we have not committed any acts of corruption, HZE2016F12A318 * HMKREES * 8% - &)
bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering, and no litigation cases R HFFRARENITAEA - thARE LMl BIAS]
caused by the above have occurred. FEEVERAASR B A -

System of anti-corruption

RIBEREZR
Establish anti-corruption leadership system and work mechanism under unified leadership of the Company’s party committee and
coordination of Discipline Inspection Commission.
BYHARARIEZS—EE - LEARN AN RIFEREBEREGIR TOEHE o
Establish corruption risk prevention and control mechanism leading group. Develop clean governance prevention and control mechanism
regarding position power risk composed of self prevention and control, organizational prevention and control and inspection prevention and
control.
B FRRBEBIEESIEE/NE - AMEEREAE N RR A ERE - AT - BEERE =6 — 88 | REUR P 1E
e o
Management personnel of the Company of different ranks signed clean governance construction commitment and compile clean governance
report every year.
NAIZRBEXEZRETRBERERE FFRRVMERRE o
Undertake clean governance education and organize learning sessions of clean governance construction theories and laws and regulations so
as to strengthen anti-corruption culture construction.
FRFZICEHE - RSB RBGERIERMERGIE - MNaRZULER o
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5. Giving back to society

While grasping production and operation and economic benefits, ZMJ at
the same time cares about social welfare activities and actively contributes
to society and introduce and continually perfect relevant policies. We
actively support and cooperate with the community to carry out various
public welfare activities.

Active Participation in Community Activities

ZMJ used its own funds, manpower, technology to actively participate in
the construction of local communities, forming a series of routine public
welfare activities, such as the following: Cooperate with ZMJ community
to provide elderly people aged 80 above with material subsidies; provide
festive condolences for retiring staff members and their families; Cooperate
with community to organize large-scale cultural and entertainment and
cultural performances; Cooperate with community to launch activities
including civilized family with five virtues, moral model, public welfare
activists and floor management advanced individual; Cooperate with
community to set up a “poll group” to actively assist the community to
mediate different disputes and contradictions of the mass.

G}t
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Social welfare activities carried out by the Company in 2016
2016 F A RIFRNLE AT

Event Name Event Date Number of
EBER JEEN A HR participants
SHEAH

Spring Festival greeting to the elderly over the age of 80 and old model workers, and old | During Spring Festival 2016 430
cadres with 50 catties of rice and 10 catties of edible oil delivered to each person 20164F H £ HAMR
BHAR0EN EEAREZLE - ERBEEAERET AKFI0TRAM
Spring Festival greetings to retired workers with each person being paid RMB100 | During Spring Festival 2016 3,500
coupons 20164F &£ HAR
FHARBHRNE TEAZ 00T M
Provided workers with spring festival couplets greeting bags etc during Spring Festival During Spring Festival 2016 4,000
AR IR LN EEHRARE 2016 F R EHAR
Quarterly greetings to retired poor workers and poor party members in community 2016.1.1-2016.10.31 96
BEERRtRERERBRIMNSRNESR
Issued birthday coupons to retired workers aged 70 or above 2016.1.1-2016.12.31 1,211
BETEmA LRRBIEKER S
Art show to celebrate 8 March Festival and Selection of “civilized family with five virtues” | 2016.3.8 480
mobilization conference
(B= ) \EERXAZEZERETE AT XAREIZBHERE)
ZMJ community residents’ Art show and “civilized family with five virtues” | 2016.10.19 560
Awards ceremony
(BHEEtERERXERBE AT XAREIRTZRE)
Dealt with relevant issues about community retired workers and their families 2016.1.1-2016.10.31 45
BREMHERRBIRREBSREE

Total 10,322

att
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5. Giving back to society (continued) 5. EfEHE @)

Active Participation in Community Activities (Continued)

TR EE) ()

Visits to retired staff and their family
R T RREBEM

ZMJ actively fulfils its social responsibility and public obligations in order
to create a harmonious and healthy ZMJ community, create a harmonious
and stable production and business environment, maintain a healthy
social order and atmosphere and promote the socialist core values and
positive energy of society. ZMJ has been awarded “care for the elderly
love unit” and “elderly culture advanced unit” title by the Henan Provincial
Department of Culture, Civil Affairs Department and aging problem
committee. It was awarded “Elderly sports advanced unit” by Provincial
aging problem committee, Provincial old cadre bureau and Provincial
elderly sports association. It was also awarded “First prize in female fitness
activities in celebration of 8 March and moral standard prize” by Provincial
Women’s Federation, Provincial Federation of Trade Unions, Provincial
Civilisation Committee and Provincial Sports Bureau. It was awarded
“Advanced unit in support of local community construction” by local
community office.

Commitment to Poverty Relief

Helping the poor is the virtue of the Chinese nation. ZMJ strengthens
its work on helping people and actively carries out poverty alleviation
research, “precision” poverty relief, etc to help grassroots citizens and the
general public discover and solve problems.

Precision poverty relief provided for counties in need

Liu Cao Lou Village of Da Wang Zhuang Township, Xihua County,
Zhoukou City, Henan Province mainly relies on agriculture and is a typical
poor village of Henan Province. In 2011, the village started to face new
community planning and demolition of old buildings for new construction.

Birthday coupons issued to retired staff
R T EMAERF

R REEA R RNBREH R - g EM
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5. Giving back to society (continued)

Commitment to Poverty Relief (Continued)
Precision poverty relief provided for counties in need (Continued)

/MJ visited Liu Cao Lou Village to inspect new rural construction
condition so as to develop an in-depth understanding of the degree of
emergency needs of different facilities. During the construction period, the
Company’s infrastructure office formulated a practical work plan according
to the actual situation of Liu Cao Lou Village. It assisted in purchasing
relevant building materials in local area and raise funds according to
actual condition and demand to help Liu Cao Lou Village to carry out
infrastructure construction or renovation.

In addition, from 2014 onwards, the Company continued to provide
households in poverty with necessities such as electric fans, edible oil, etc.
according to the actual situation of Liu Cao Lou Village to help improve the
lives of poor households.

Donations to university students in poverty

On 9 August 2016, ZMJ, through field investigation, learned that four
teenagers from Zhecheng County, Shanggiu Gity, Henan Province would
soon enter university. Their family economic conditions were difficult and
they led a hard life. In spite of difficult livelihood, those four teenagers
have good character and are positive and motivated. They all belong to
university students in poverty truly in need.

To help these four poor university students who are excellent in character
and learning to realize their university dream, the Company decided to
make donations to them. During 2016 and 2020 their university fees
would be subsidized so as to tackle their worries.

5. EfEHE @)

BHEBHRR @)
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Visits to university students in poverty from the Company
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

Deloitte.
=Eh

TO THE MEMBERS OF ZHENGZHOU COAL MINING MACHINERY GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 122 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
BRETEE

Impairment of trade receivables
g5 RICRIERE

We identified impairment of trade receivables as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the financial statements as a
whole, combined with the use of judgment and estimates in assessing
the recoverability of trade receivables.

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the management
considers the credit history including default or delay in payments,
settlement records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis of the
trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2016 the carrying amount of trade receivables
was RMB2,341,729,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB1,183,432,000.

The relevant disclosures are set out in notes 4 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMANET AR EBEETSE

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of trade receivables
included:

e  Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for doubtful debts
is estimated by the management and testing the key controls in
relation to impairment of trade receivables including: preparation
and periodic review of the aging analysis, analyzing reason and
expected recovery rates for overdue debts and follow-up actions
taken to recover overdue debts;

e Understanding the reasons for those past due but not impaired
trade receivable balances and assessing the reasonableness
of recoverability of those trade receivables with reference to
the credit history of the customers, including default or delay in
payments, settlement records;

e (Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions in
determining management’s provision for future default, including
the expected recovery rates on overdue debts and any observed
changes in credit quality in the current year;

e  Reviewing and testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables;
and

e  Testing subsequent settlements on a sample basis.
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Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged with
governance for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements,including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Kay Man Wo, Dick.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ReBRsaRkEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

2015
—ZT—AF
NOTES RMB’000
FaE ARETIT
Revenue WA 5 3,628,530 4,510,858
Cost of sales SHERAN (2,915,417) (3,653,833)
Gross profit EF 713,113 857,025
Other income EmUgA 7 101,867 120,724
Other gains and losses H bt M EE 8 (168,711) (335,881)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HERX (187,964) (214,900)
Administrative expenses TE R (300,376) (304,242)
Research and development expenses e s A (102,474) (102,562)
Share of (loss) profit of associates FE{REEE N B (B )% F (18,113) 13,361
Share of profit (loss) of joint ventures FEIAEDERF (EE) 42 (1,000)
Finance costs BB KA 9 - (2,160)
Profit before tax Rk %5 AT i A 30,365
Income tax expense FriSfif sz 10 (19,756)
Profit for the year FEREF 11 10,609
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wl A
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to  AJGERE £ B H M2 18252
profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEEEVIENER (1,075)
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale At HEZ SRMEEATE
financial assets Wz (518) (4,804)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment of At BE 7 £ @A ERER
available-for-sale financial assets EH OB 60,071
Share of fair value gain (loss) on available-for-  fE(F—FEE & AR AI HHHE 2
sale financial assets of an associate SRMEEQATEWRE(EEB) (5,511)
Share of reclassification adjustment upon JEAE—fEBE QB E
impairment of available-for-sale financial SHEERMESETOEREE
assets held by an associate 15,978
Fair value gain on hedging instruments in EEETREREE PNEIHFTA
cash flow hedges BN THEWRE -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEZEWA - FOBRAIEH
net of income tax 102,598 64,659
Total comprehensive income for the year EX2E W AELE 139,246 75,268
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REBRERAEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

2016
—E—REF
NOTES RMB’000
FiaE AR¥T T
Profit for the year attributable to: BT ATEEFERET
Owners of the Company /NG 61,997
Non-controlling interests Ele ity (25,349)
36,648
Total comprehensive income for the year LU TN At EEFER D EURALLEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VNN )38 164,595
Non-controlling interests Els ity (25,349)
139,246
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARESD) 15

2015
—FhF
RMB’000
ARBTT

42,198
(31,589)

10,609

106,857
(31,589)

75,268

2.60
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BBk R

As at 31 December 2016 R —Z—"F+-F=+—H

NOTES
FisE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 16
Prepaid lease payments A LA ERIR 17
Investment properties S /ES 18
Intangible assets mAE
Investments in associates REERR 2 INE 19
Investments in joint ventures REELEZIRE
Available-for-sale investments AREEZIRE 20
Deferred tax assets ELEFIEE E 21
Debt investment EHZE 22
Finance lease receivables AR S R GRIE 23
Long-term receivables REAMEUR FRIE 24
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid lease payments TEA bR & FRIA 17
Debt investment EFRE 22
Inventories e 25
Loan receivables from an associate FEN —RE & DR E R 26
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMEWIE 27
Transferred trade receivables BEEEMNE S RIKE 32
Finance lease receivables within one year —FRRER SRR 23
Long-term receivables within one year —FNEEEM R B GRE 24
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 28
Other financial assets Hibh S mEE 29
Tax recoverable BEEEE
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIER 30
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRRES 30
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables 5 R EMERFRIE 31
Advances from customers EPE®
Tax liabilities HIBAE
Liabilities associated with transferred trade HEBENE S EWIEEBEN
receivables ai 32

NET CURRENT ASSETS

RBEEFE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

REERABEE

1,390,786
317,752
45,598
2,260
431,416
36,669
197,742
51,482
46,782

2,520,487

7,405
416,631
827,794

64,000
3,648,445
180,322
39,146
131,726
71,020
1,085,000
247
253,550
2,682,402

9,407,688
1,721,669
253,519
9,385
180,322
2,164,895

7,242,793

9,763,280

2015
—ZE—hFE
RMB’000
AREFTT

1,607,658
381,013
47,187
4,330
420,424
2,383
31,174
171,830
390,027
58,096
131,206

3,245,328

8,681
1,175,829
80,000
4,054,923
25,992
105,059

1,063,000
1,374
278,080
2,011,221
8,804,159
2,193,738

198,888
19,618

2,412,244
6,391,915

9,637,243



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2016 N —ZE—"F+-F=+—H

2016
—E—REF
NOTES RMB’000
BfsE ARETR
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Other non-current liabilities HEmIEmEas 4,750
NET ASSETS EEFE 9,758,530
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B & E
Share capital A& A 33 1,621,122
Share premium AR 1E 3,409,354
Reserves e 4,643,697

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

NS E L

9,674,173
34 84,357

Non-controlling interests FEFERR MR
TOTAL EQUITY ERAR

9,758,530

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 219 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016 SR/ & A i &= B p% {5 A BR A &) 201644k

IR FIRENENGFAPBHREN T —LF=A
“HERKEEEHAERRETE LA TIALRE

BE

Xiang Jiayu
LESH]
DIRECTOR
E3

2015
—ET—hHF
RMB’000
ARETTT

14,784
9,622,459
1,621,122
3,409,354

4,472,096

9,502,572
119,887

9,622,459
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
IIV_\/IEI\*EE&%E%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE
Statutory Gash flow Mtributable Non-
Share Share ~ Revaluation surplus ~ Translaion ~~ hedging Other  Retained toownersof  controlling
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  reserve  reseves  reseves  eamings theCompany interests Total
EERH BefE 9%
RE  REEE  EfiRE ff  EXRE Hhdk  HURE  REBA BEARG FBRER it
RMB'0O0  RMB'O0  AMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  AMB'OO0  AMBOD  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O0  AMB'0O0  RMB'000
AEETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETn ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARKTR ARETR
(ote ) (note ) (note b)
(Hiska) (Bake) (i)
Balance at 1 January 201 R-E-1%-7
B8 1621122 3409364 (65734 520,09% [B10) - 52002 389368 9432318 151476 9583794
Proft or the year Efgh - - - - - - - 1219 01% 31589 10609
Other comprefinsive expense FREMRERE
for the year - - 65,734 - (1079 - - - 64,659 - 4,659
Total comprehensive incomg for theyear  £RAEMALE - - 66,734 - (1,075) - - 21% 106857 (31,589 75,268
Contibuton fromuimate conoling. - KA TSR
arty of the Company HE - - - - - - 25,000 - 25,000 - 2,000
Transfer B - - - 4976 - - - (4976 - - -
Diidnds rte 14 Re () - - - - - - S 11 TR 1K -
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-E-RE+2A
ST-AzEsR 1621122 3409364 - (1.889) - 7902 38TIOOT 9502572 119887 9622459
Profitfor the year EfgH - - - - - - - 61,997 61997 39 %68
Other comprehensive expenst for the year  EREM2ERR - - 2,328 - 5290 71,00 - - 1025% - 10259
Total comprehensive income for tieyear -~ A2 AN LEE - - 26328 - 5,240 7100 - 61997 16455 (D39 139246
Contouon from imate conollng. - AATS L2
party of the Company HE - - - - - - 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer et - - - 21 467 - - - (27.467) - - -
Disposalof a subsicary (note 39) HE-FHELT
(M) - - - - - - - - - (lof8f)  (0,181)
Dividends (note 14) TR (k) - - - - - - - (12%9 (1299 - (12969
Others () - - - - - - %) - 2 - %)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-7E+2A
ST-BER 1621122 3409364 638 55259 3365 71020 oT8TT 3892568 9674173 837 9758530

Note a: In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association ita: RBEPBRRBERARRREMEFREMHBEARNE
of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and A KRFRZEWNBRARFEREEMBREK
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the FI2MOBRRERNBELE10%E EERMEER  BE
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. FEEABFEEDERBEARNTME RN AL - #
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity TEBNUETERERSE A KR ERET  ZER
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ BT AN BE AR FEENEE  BRRBEER
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the BARNA MZEWNBRABMNEINEAR -

Company and these subsidiaries.

Note b: The other reserves mainly represent the contribution from the State-owned kb HiEEEZHEAQRRNSELIEH A TEEABTRE
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s EEFEEERZEENHE  URAB/ARRAIRLIE
Government, the ultimate controlling party of the Company, and is recognised as BTz HE -
contribution from the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

Note c: The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains Mizke : BeRmEaRPRERTIRAEARSRELITRE

and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulate under
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non-
financial hedged item.

E2 A FAEZE N WS MERN R ERED o B
RENRERELTEBRINE T TAZ A FEE
FH RS RERECHNARYERERIEE
MoEEES - KT AFEHBEMIRBREEZA -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term
receivables and finance lease receivables
Interest income on debt investment

Dividends income on available-for-sale investments

Share of loss (profit) of associates
Share of (profit) loss of joint ventures

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Gain on disposal of an associate

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investments properties
Amortisation of intangible assets

Release of prepaid lease payments
Allowance provided for doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

BRI AT A
HE
BERA
RITHER - REBBGIE R
REHERESIRZ M BMBA
BBREZFSWLA
AHHEREZBREMA
FEEEE & A RIBEORH)
FEhaEhXCEr)EE
HEME - BE KRB W
HEMB ARz s
HE—KBE R F 2z W
W% - BELREITE
BREMENE
BV EE
JER L3t S IR D
RAREE
TFEMH
A EREZRE
ExEFH o TE

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease (increase) in long-term receivables and
finance lease receivables

(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables

Increase (decrease) in advances from customers

BEASRPRICLERSNE

FERD

B 5 MAEMEMGRIRE N

R YR & B A T E R GR IR
B ()

B 5 MEM RN IR COR )10
BEPREEMORL)

Cash generated from operations BEEBMERS
Income tax paid EANNE IS
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBMBRETE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016 SR/ & A i &= B p% {5 A BR A &) 201644k

(82,483)
(13,398)

18,114
(42)
(4,007)
(14,274)
(26)
174,970
1,589
2,062
8,823
230,296
14,544
1,046
(65,510)

300,088
281,756
(76,177)

69,314
(238,628)
55,333

400,686
(39,801)

360,885

2015
—ThHF
RMB’000
AREET T

30,365
2,160

(98,706
(11,300
(1,256
(13,361
1,000
(3,988)

)
)
)
)

172,777
597
2,454
8,823
312,139
9,343
66,526
(40,938)

436,635
264,000
(13,143)

(232,355)
148,993
(251,514)

352,616
(34,213)

318,403
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income on bank deposits, long-term
receivables and finance lease receivables

Interest income on debt investment

Dividends income on available-for-sale investments

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary

Proceeds on disposal of an associate

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of investment property

Purchases of other intangible assets

Purchase of other financial assets

Proceeds on other financial assets

Payments for loan receivables from an associate

Repayment of loan receivables from an associate

Placement of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months

Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months

Payment of pledged bank deposits

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

REED
RITFH - REEMFIE N
REHEREEZFEBA
BRIBEREZ M EWA
AHHEREZBREKA
Ui R R RS
BERAEERRBE
HE—KWB ARz W
HE B2 QR 2
HEWE - BB RREAEHR
BEVE  BEER
BEREME
BEHMGELEE
BEHEGSREE
Hib & @& EMSHUR
eI — KB & R R ER 2 fTR
R —REE R R E R Z B

TR EE B =8 A A L8R T

HREEREH B =8 A A L8R TR

XN EMRITFR
R EIFRITER

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2& E8 TS (FT ) B & FE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contribution from ultimate controlling party
of the Company

Proceeds received from the equipment leasing
companies (note 32)

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

BMEEE
RAREAARHTEE

B REBHEERRMSFA (M F32)
BERE

BENFE
EARLEs)

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES @t & 5Z 8 AT 1S (FT ) B &8

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH HR&RRSZEYILMORL ) FE

EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES [E R& &)z /&

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

R—A-BZREREESEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER, A+ —A=+—HZHERELZEY

represented by bank balances and cash (note 30)

KRBTSR IR S (HFE30)

2016
—B-AREF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

19,216
3,782
11,378
(74,399)
(103)
(4,334,000)
4,312,000

(50,000)

285,000
(431,864)
456,394

276,193

20,000

223,166

(12,969)

230,197

867,275
38,906

1,726,221

2,632,402

2015
—ZE—hFE
RMB’000
AREFTT

98,706
11,132
1,256
10,200
98

8,190
(60,893)
(37,588)

(1,049
(2,623,418)
2,065,418

(80,000)
80,000

(310,000)
571,657
(619,057)
487,294

(298,054)

25,000

(97,170
(2,160)
(61,603)

(135,933)

(115,584)
20,148

1,821,657

1,726,221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 E —Z— &+ - A=+—HI-EE

1.

General information

The Company was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the
PRC. On October 28 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
upon completion of the share transfer, the parent of the Company is Henan
Machinery Investment Group and its ultimate controlling party is Henan
SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5
December 2012.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are manufacturing of coal mining
machinery and trading of steel and other raw materials.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries. Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 44.

Application of new and amendments to
international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in
Joint Operations

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and IAS 41

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014

Cycle

—RER

$ ﬁ#¢liﬁﬁ¥%ﬁ%méﬁ&'m%$ﬁ
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% AARIEARATEERICEEE @ HREKIE
HI75 2R ERATE 2 AEBEE -

RZZ—ZF)\A=H ' K2R 758 140,000,0008%

MG ERAFBRETE HEBEET ST LR
§2601717.8S) e AR AR E——F+-ARBHE

ERBERBMARAR(TBRAA D ERLET -

AN AIAERA M B R 2 3 B I B R
[RBER— 8RR - ARRREMBAR (S
[AEE DO EIEXEBREERKFARBRELEE
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REXZMBRARZNEEEER - ARRMMEA
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BRSBREEASEN® Ly evid 5wl
#IER] eitRE
ﬁ@ FHERIE RN ET IHBE
BiHERE Gﬁ&IW BRTEREHL
%EW%%fW BESES
BiHEAE Gﬁ&IW RE AENEY
EJEW%MfW
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ—Z—  F+_-_A=+—HAI5E

2. Application of new and amendments to
international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

The application of amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to IFRSs and International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)
in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRSs

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
related Amendments!

IFRS 16 Leases?

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions'
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts!

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture3
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses*
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards

2014-2016 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1
January 2018, as appropriate
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

2.

Application of new and amendments to
international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSS”) (Continued)

\FRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under 1AS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE =T — A F+-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of new and amendments to

international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments
that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have
also been introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management policies
as at 31 December 2016, application of IFRS 9 in the future may have
a material impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. The Group’s available-for-sale investments, including
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be measured
as fair value through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject
to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit
loss model may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of new
hedging requirements may not have a material impact on the Group’s
current hedge designation and hedge accounting. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect on the
Group’s financial statements until a detailed review has been completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

2. Application of new and amendments to

international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSS”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18, IAS 11 and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

In 2016, the IASB issued clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of
the Company do not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognized in the
respective reporting periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of new and amendments to
international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSS”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the IFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within
the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

2. Application of new and amendments to
international financial reporting standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require a

lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB62,682,000 as disclosed in note 36. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of
a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of IFRS
16. In addition, the application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect

until the directors complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of amendments to IFRSs will have no material effect on the

Group’s consolidated financial statements in future.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQ”").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in the consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e [evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

e |evel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

e (eferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e |jabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace the share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another IFRS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

FESTBERE )

G

W RS PE S AR KB R E B ATERSRA
(R EXFrat& st BeR) R R TR EER(E) 5
BE o

RENRME  mEENETRHERKEZH
RAEmYEz 5 ReELEU(FBRSELEN
MRl o

BN EZReELSUSFSETREN
REZEMHRTEREERR - BIgE NEE
HWEITRERR - RE—HmEHRR B REBRES
ZEEME  CEIEBEZREELBMNZR
SR ZAETREN - WIREELEN 2 I
Ol FEENHREE - I SERRESRED

APEEZ B B DB 2 AR FREE - B8R
BREMSREEZ RRERLIIDEEZSEML
HEE - BB EMREBEEERGS Z2ER
BHRPHER - REEERNREBETSNERS
e o

RHEREBRSELEUR  BEXHEERSR0EN
AR AREZEESE -

REEG B 2 A BELHEMERNBERR T
R -

R 2RI R ELRZIRE

BERNR DN AEEHEREEAR Zgﬁcéﬁ
FEIEARDERRIRIRE T MR EERE -
1B EORFE S KRR HIRZ FBOR ©

BECEE-BEBARH  URHEBHARE %‘J%
ZRIKI B B A RHE S EER BN
ZHRIERRA OOEH ALY ﬁZTﬂ
HEEHER ARSI Z AR ZAEEZETT
Wﬁ HREBZRERFE



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a
joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of I1AS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

FESTBERE )

REERAINAECRZRE @)

BERETHRABEARRAELE - HNRE(H

HPF—H) 0 BAFHFHEE B - REEKLE
ERES - EAKERENABERRHGED
¥2fs o BREESRSREER  AIAREER
ZRBATEAEREEZ  MATEIRAE
RIBEIFR &5t RIS 3058 BN IER S 2 A FE - B
BRRHAEEENR EAEDEE A ZRAE
BEfRE R 2 NV ERMEMNEHEBE AR
BECEAIRRZ MSRIBZEHTAEELE
BrE N RNA R 2 W EE o Lol - WL
BRRHAECECERHERBEENEE - ]
AEE A ARAREESERZBE ARG E
EEEFREMEEWRATERZABESBAR -

FEitt - e DRI RA S REEANNEMEERA
Rz BREFNBREHERBEERAR
Z Bz - RAIARSEERE I E R AR S R e
BRSO BEREGIEER I EAR) -

ERBERNRZIRERNAHEECEZRELINE
BOEZREXNBEBERRZIRE - AIREEE
BEAERE MNEEZSHEREYRN  §Tg
BN EEITENE o

EASEHBRBEARNEEE I EEEER

(BB (F FARESRRT - AR E b2 m IR ARER

BREBIRAEERE 2 BESD BN EHEEE

iﬁfﬁhé?ﬁ YRR AAKEERZASSE
DEEEE -

R - EEEREABEARNEELERS(H
IEHESOIABRE) J AAKB 2 iR E M@K

HER EZ S A R %/:.\* EERIZHES 2B
HEEAZE S AR A B 2 e A KB E
ZERRIR



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for undetermined future use, which
is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset
is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

[nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”"), available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of

which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the

near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e jtis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 42.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
finance lease receivable, long term receivable, debt investment, loan
receivable from an associate and transferred trade receivables) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL or loans
and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit terms of the
customers, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE — T — NF+-_A=+—HItFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and borrowings,
liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge

relationship.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Hedge accounting

The Group designates a derivative as hedging instrument for cash flow
hedge.

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss and is included in the ‘other gains
or losses’ line item.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continuead)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Group sells hydraulic roof supports and is required to install them on
the customers’ premises. The directors of the Company were required
to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the revenue from
these transactions when the hydraulic roof supports are delivered to the
customers, or whether it is more appropriate to recognise the revenue
upon completion of installation of hydraulic roof supports.

In making their judgment, the directors considered the detailed criteria
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in IAS 18
Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group had transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods. As
the installation is an integral part of the transaction and the installation
process is not simple in nature, the directors consider the installation
cannot be unbundled from the sales of hydraulic roof supports and the
significant risks and rewards of the transaction could only be transferred
to the customers upon the completion of installation. Thus, the directors
are satisfied that recognition of the revenue from sales of hydraulic roof
supports upon the completion of installation is appropriate.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2016 the carrying amount of trade receivables was
RMB2,341,729,000 (2015: RMB2,957,003,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB1,183,432,000(2015: RMB1,032,712,000).
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of available-for-sale

When there is an objective evidence of impairment loss, the directors of
the Company were required to determine the amount of any impairment
loss. The directors of the Company consider whether significant changes
with an adverse effect have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates that indicates
the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered.
The directors of the Company were also required to consider whether a
‘significant or prolonged’ decline in fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost has taken place. When an AFS equity investment
is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties

The Group estimates the useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its items of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties. This estimate is based on the management’s
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and actions of its competitors. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are less
than previously estimated. The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2016 was RMB1,390,786,000 (2015:
RMB1,607,658,000). The carrying amounts of investment proprieties as
at 31 December 2016 was RMB45,598,000 (2015: RMB47,187,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,intangible assets
and prepaid lease payments for Land

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease
payment for lands to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Determining whether property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease payment for
lands are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use of the assets and the fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the
assets and from its ultimate disposal and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4. ERBTHHERGTFTITERERZZE
of estimation uncertainty (Continued) ERR @)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) MEf THEERE 2 EERR @)
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Deferred tax assets is measured at the tax rates that are expected to EERIEE E SR TE A IR AR & E R R
apply to the period when the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and MEHE  ZHEREBEREHREBEMNER LE
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end FRHHEE(ETE)GTE - KRARKBETWB AR
of the reporting period. The Company and certain subsidiaries of the BSEHEMeERE ((HMESE DU EERSE
Company received the High and New Technology Enterprise Certificates MEEH A = F=ZAEERE15%(FFIFR T
(the “Technology Certificates”) and are entitled to preferential tax rate of 10) - RARIERR G - ZE R ETERM
15% for three years before the respective expiration dates (see note 10 BEVRSHEMEEZNHAREEZFEITIGHE
for details). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these entities B BRBAEZFETIRUEEEHBEFEE
will be able to receive the renewed Technology Certificates and continue 1% A EZEEREEHIEAE 2 HIRIEAE
to enjoy preferential tax treatments after the respective expiration dates, A15% ° WEAHESNER - AREEHRBEEZ
and pass the required annual assessment to qualify for preferential tax FEENIEEAER AEERH B -
treatments, therefore the tax rates for measurement of deferred tax
assets of these entities are expected to be 15%. If the applicable tax rates
are higher than the expectation, changes in the deferred tax assets are
recognised in profit or loss as deferred tax income.
5. Revenue 5. WA
2016 2015
=i —ThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TR B 7 SHE 2,815,835
Revenue from steel and other materials trading i) 2 N ELA FROREHE 5 2 WA 920,820
Sales of spare parts Btk 2 sHE 601,895
Sales of other coal mining equipment Huh RS 2 e 120,789
Other revenue HAb A 51,519
4,510,858
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6. Segment information

The Group identifies an operating segment which is a component of the
Group (a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses; and (b) whose operating results are reviewed
regularly by the executive directors, being the chief operating decision
maker, to make decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

The Group has only one operating segment which is the manufacture of
coal mining machinery and the Group’s operating results before tax are
reviewed regularly by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. As no
other discretionary financial information is provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, no segment information is presentation other
than the entity-wide information.

Geographical information

The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as
follows:

2 EIER

AEEB TBS REKER ZELENH - @#tE
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2016 2015

—E-XRF —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

The PRC =8 4,430,628
Other countries HbBxR 80,230
4,510,858

No geographical segment information for assets is presented as the
Group’s non-current assets are mostly located in the PRC, which is
considered to be one geographical location with similar risks and returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE
6. Segment information (Continued)
Information about major customers

The following illustrates the revenue from customers which contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

Customer A ZEA
Customer B =B

D EE B )
FRTERFPZ2ER

IATPIRKRE RS B(E AR B AR AR B10%H) 4
A

2016 2015
—EB-RF —ThF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARMET T

383,430 563,529
N/At 551,961

1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group.

7. Other income

1 AAERAEAREBEZRATEI0% °

Habu A
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Government grants (note) BB (M) 5,986 9,462
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term IRITFH - REEWFEMEE

receivables and finance lease receivables TR E FEYGRIE 2 MBI A 82,483 98,706
Interest income on debt investment BB EF BRA 13,398 11,300
Dividends income on available-for-sale investments AR E 2B 2 R BIRA - 1,256

101,867 120,724

Note: Government grants mainly represent unconditional government grants
received from the local government for compensation of research and
development expenses incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s
new plant, which are transferred from deferred income to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the relevant assets.

MIRE - BSWB X 2EREEMELMEREB AR
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8. Other gains and losses

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of an associate
Net foreign exchange gains
Allowance for doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments measured at cost
Cumulative loss reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on impairment of available-for-sale

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

8. Hitzm R EE

BEWE - BE REERE 4,007
i — B 2 B My 14,274
o — Al A I E 26
B 33 % s 65,510
FIRRE (230,296)
FEM (14,544)
B AFrERHEEZRE Y

RIERE (1,046)

BARBEFEANRKBEZ
RERENHBSERORE

investments measured at fair value Bmz RTEE =
Others Eith (6,642)
(168,711)
9. Finance costs 9. FMERA
Interests on bank borrowings RITERZFE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016 #B | KL B i &= B A% (5 A PR A A 20165k

2015
—T—RF
RMB’000
ARETT

3,988

40,938
(312,139)
9,343)

(6,454)
(60,071)
7,200

(335,881)

2015
—T-IF
RMB'000
ARBTT

2,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE
10. Income tax expense 10. TS8R
2015
—T—RF
RMB’000
ARETIT
Income tax expenses comprise: FISHAL 8
Current tax: — PRC enterprise income tax BVEARRIE « — PBIETEH 31,953 60,339
— Qver provision in prior years — B FERRE B (1,717) (1,348)
30,236 58,991
Deferred tax — current year EERTE — AREE (29,500) (39,235)
736 19,756
The tax rates of the major group entities for the year ended 31 December BHE_ZT—R"FAZT—RAF+ZA=1+—HIEF
2016 and 2015 are as follows: EXZEEEETERENT :
2015
—E—RF
The Company (Note 1) Vi N/NSIIQEE ) 15%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery BN AR R B B IR A )
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. ([ EBEEpesr |) (FI5E2)
(“ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment”) (Note 2) 15%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical BEM R B EIE AR A A)
Control Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Hydraulic Control”) (Note 3) (T8 s R E 122 |) (BaE3) 15%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading 251 (B ik 5= B W & (S5 A TR
Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Material Trading”) A ([EPRE A 88 ]) 25%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd. B/ B4R BEM R B IR A 7)
(“ZMJ Longwall Machinery”) (M EPE MR BEHER ) 25%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Lu An Xinjiang BB &= [B)358 22 5781 B TR
Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Lu An Xinjiang”) (Note 4) N ([ B EHOR T E])
(fF7E4) 15%
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10. Income tax expense (Continued) 10. FrSHiAX (2

Note 1: The Company received the High and New Technology Enterprises MEE1 . ARRR2014F7 AN BB R MM EE
Certificate (“Technology Certificate”) on 31 July 2014, which entitles to a E([HMEE]) - H2014F1 18 E20164F
preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. 12H IR ERZEEENEI% - REZS—1H
The Company previously was entitied to a preferential tax rate of 15% from FE - AREZATH011F1A1HZE2013412
1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 under a separate certificate. In the A3 HERZEEBEREI5% - ARFEER
opinion of the directors of the Company, the renewed certificate can be A AR SR FER AN B B T R A R B
obtained in due time without incurring significant cost. £

Note 2: ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment received the “Technology Certificate” on M2+ BREMARIEA2016F12 A1 BBV HliEE
1 December 2016 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 201651 A1HZE2018F 12 AS1H A= *ﬁ‘ﬁ
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment BHEEI5% - RIES—MFEE - EHEMKEGEK
previously was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January ATEA20135F1 A1B E2015F 12 A31HBHEEA
2013 to 31 December 2015 under a separate certificate. BB RIS °

Note 3: ZMJ Hydraulic Control received the “Technology Certificate” on 1 MIRES :  EEMOR BTN 2016512 51 B EUE[ KT #E
December 2016 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 £ }20165F1 A1BE2018F12A31 B AR
January 2016 to 31 December 2018. ZMJ Hydraulic Control previously BEEHEI5% - RES—MHEE - BHEER
was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013 to 31 [REE 2 A1H2013F1 A1HZE2015F12A31H
December 2015 under a separate certificate. EREZHEEREI5% -

Note 4: ZMJ Lu An Xinjiang received the “Technology Certificate” on 9 June 2014 MoaEs ©  ERAEMOR ZHIEA 2014456 A9 A NS [ HIlT &

and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per

FARREARGA Bk MR

£ f2014F1 B1BE2016512 831 BB ES
BEEBIRI5%

T W 2 3R TR R

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive TR E M RN -
income as follows:
2016 2015
—"F i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARETTT
Profit before tax R F5 B ) 30,365
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15% LR B EEE R ER15%HE
1B 4,555
Tax effect of share of profit of associates and joint (LB N B FE S E
ventures AR R 2 (1,854)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose AR A Z RIS 2 -
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for TAIBFR S 2 B8
tax purpose 14,369
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIBEIE 2 g2 9,897
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised FIA LRI A R IEEE 2,717
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries WEBAETRMEZ 2 1,354
Additional deduction for qualified research and FIMIBR T & A ERHREE A
development expenses (4,500)
Over provision in prior years B FERBERE (1,348)
19,756

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 21.

AERIREFIAZ FHBEHRHEE21 o
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11. Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

1. FRRF

2016
—E-RE
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment Y - R RRETE 174,970
Depreciation for investment properties WEMENE 1,589
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 2,062
Release of prepaid lease payments A LA E R IERE 8,823
Total depreciation and amortisation EREHEE 187,444
Employee benefits expenses (including directors): EERMFAZ(BEES)
— Salary and other benefits —TERHEMET 351,269
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIREF B3R 54,267
405,536
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENE S 2,980
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R ABRS ZIFEKAK 2,915,417
Gross rental income from investment properties KEYERS WAL (8,486)
Less: direct operating expenses from investment B EERSRAZIEEYEZ
properties that generated rental income HREEAY 3,991

(4,495)

Minimum operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

HRFEEZ&ELEHEERS
5,224

FRE LR FEA)A T EIRBH -

2015
—T—RF
RMB’000
ARETT

172,777
597
2,454
8,823

184,651
352,853
55,746
408,599
2,980
3,653,833
(5,344)
1,143

(4,201)

5,224



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’
remuneration

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows:

Executive directors: HITEE -

Mr Jiao Chengyao (note 1, 2) ERELE (T 2)
Mr Xiang Jiayu ARWTE

Mr Wang Xinying (note 2) T RE(E2)

Mr Liu Qiang B

Mr Guo Haofeng PRELE

Sub-total Nat

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

Independent non-executive directors: B AR TTEE

Ms Liu Yao El=3 e =
Mr Jiang Hua PE =
Mr Li Xudong FRERE =
Mr Wu Guangming REABRE =
Sub-total Nat

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016 61| K i ik &= @1 19 A5 R A &) 20164 37
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ERATEEME DR EEUAR T RAREER
2 ERMIRE BIHTEA -

BT ERITEEME IR REREARBZE
iRtz R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12. £ B THRAEBREEME »)

remuneration (Continued)

Supervisors: 2E:

Mr Ni Heping AL

Mr Jia Jingcheng BEEEE
(resigned in January 2016) (R=Z—RE—AET)

Ms Xu Mingkai fREA L

Mr Zhang Zhigiang REBREE

Mr. Zhang Jun RELE(RZZ—REF
(appointed in February 2016) ZREZfA)

Mr Li Chongging TEERE

Mr Liu Fuying ANERAE

Mr Zhou Rong FE&EE

Sub-total N

Total Bt

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

LREEME IR EFHARREAREEE2E
MR RIS o



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 125 - BETHRAEBREEME»

remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-AF+-_A=t—HILtFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
e I8 HRARN RINEF
REAEF] op STEIER EEikn et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETE AR%®T:H
Executive directors: HITEF -
Mr Jiao Chengyao (note 1) EAEERA (M) 597 - 131 - 728
Mr Shao Chunsheng BEELE
(resigned in February 2015) (R=—Z—RFE-FFHT) 66 - 22 - 88
Mr Xiang Jiayu ARHEE 645 - 145 - 790
Mr Fu Zugang opiElbEs
(resigned in February 2015) (R=—Z—RFE-FFHT) 555 327 117 - 999
Mr Wang Xinying B bt 525 - 118 - 643
Mr Liu Qiang EEED e
(appointed in February 2015) (AZZE—-RF_AERMT) 383 - 40 - 423
Mr Guo Haofeng RIS L
(appointed in February 2015) (AZZE—-RF_AERMT) 393 256 97 - 746
Sub-total /NEF 3,164 583 670 - 4417

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12. £ B THRAEBREEME »)
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Be_ZT-1Ft-A=1t—HI5E

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
He I8  ERTEMS RIKAEF
REAAET] s RELGS ok ag

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Independent non-executive directors; B IS TEE -

Mr Li Bin &y
(resigned in February 2015) (R—Z—RE-FEHT) - - - - -
Mr Gao Guoan BEZEE
(resigned in February 2015) (R=—Z—RE-/FEHT) - - - - -
Mr Luo Jiamang ERRERSLE
(resigned in February 2015) (RZE—RFZAEHE) - - - - -
Ms Liu Yao FEL+ - - - 143 143
Mr Jiang Hua TERE
(appointed in February 2015) (R-—ZE—RE-PBERT) - N - 140 140
Mr Li Xudong R4
(appointed in February 2015) (R-—ZE—RE-PBERT) - N - 140 140
Mr Wu Guangming RABLAE
(appointed in February 2015) (R—ZE—RE_PBERT) - N - 140 140
Sub-total N - - - 563 563
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were BV IERTESMe IR ESEERRRIZE
paid for their services as directors of the Company. Btz RIEmMZ T -
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12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

12 EE > BeTHAEREEME »)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-AF+-_A=t—HILtFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments  contributions fee Total
e I8 HRARN RINEF
REAEF] op STEIER EEikn et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETE AR%®T:H
Supervisors: E2Z:
Mr Wang Tiehan FEELSE
(resigned in February 2015) (R=—Z—RFE-FFHT) 33 - 14 - 47
Mr Ding Hui THkAE
(resigned in February 2015) (R=—Z—RFE-FFHT) 39 35 15 - 89
Mr Ni Heping RATERE 244 318 103 - 665
Mr Jia Jingcheng EREkAE 129 222 49 - 400
Ms Xu Mingkai e e 117 143 46 - 306
Mr Zhang Zhigiang SRR 37 108 36 - 181
Mr Li Chongging TEELSE
(appointed in February 2015) (AZZE—-RF_AERMT) 400 - 87 - 487
Mr Liu Fuying AERE
(appointed in February 2015) (AZZE—-RF_AERMT) 203 273 85 - 561
Mr Zhou Rong &%
(appointed in February 2015) (AZZE—-RF_AERMT) 72 176 37 - 285
Sub-total Net 1,274 1,275 472 - 3,021
Total Feey 4,438 1,858 1,142 563 8,001

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

Note 1: Mr Jiao Chengyao is also the chief executive of the Company and his

emolument for the role as chief executive is also included above.

Note 2: These directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2016 was

partially borne by the parent of the Company.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December

2016 and 2015, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office in the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. None of the
directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration in the year ended 31

December 2016 and 2015.

REEWE T ERREHARRRAREEE 2
BRI RIS

M : MAEAEEENRARTNKRSTRAR - fHEE
ERHITRABNHMIFD A LASEA -

M2 : HE-_T—A"F+_A=+—BILFENLEE
EMEBARE T RBEDAE

BRBHNN RS T RIRAEE R ERNABREE
TERERIE-AFTA=TBLEFEZ
RIREE -

HE-_Z—R"FR-_FT—AF+_A=1+—HILF
B AEEVERESHESINEAME - 1EA
HNBs R B AREER 2 Fe i BBmE - 85
TE-RERZZE-RFT-A=+—HLEFE"
WHEEBSNIEEHETWME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIV_\/EI\/E\ZI.ﬁ%$ﬁ?:—|‘:Z Bﬁ-ELI
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE
13. Employees’ remuneration 13. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group, AEEREZRSFALZH  —&H(ZE—RF:
one (2015: one) was director or supervisor of the Company whose —R)BRARAEFLES  BENMEFERE
remuneration is included in the disclosures in note 12 above. The XHIFE124% 8 - TR (ZE—RF : WR)AT
remuneration of the remaining four individuals (2015: four) was as follows: MMM T
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT
Salaries and other benefits TEREMEA 2486
Performance related incentive payments Eﬁiﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ’@ﬂ’ﬂﬁfﬁ 1,740
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKREFFTEIHR 615
4,841
The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration fell within e F Ty EE s ARG ATEHENT
the following bands is as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E—HF
No. of employees  No. of employees
EEHE EE&E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7c 21,500,000/ 7T 3
5

174



For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE —ZE—NF+-A=+—HILFE

14. Dividends 14. R 2
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBETTT

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FARERDRATIRE ¢

— 2015 Final (RMB0.008 per share) — —E—RFRH
(B AR #0.0087T) -
— 2014 Final (RMBO0.038 per share) — —E—UF K
(B A R#0.0387T) 61,603
61,603
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect HEBAKRE  ARRIEEEEZRHE_Z— X
of the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB0.011 per share (2015: final F+-A=1+—HILFERNKREREERAR
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMB0.008 oM n(ZZE—hF 2T —HF+=
per share), in an aggregate amount of RMB19,057,185.07, has been A=+—HIEFEIRF KRS &8 AR0.008
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the JC)  KA%E A AR ¥19,057,185.077C ¢ AFRER
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. JEERFRBERGHE - TRIIEE -
15. Earnings per share 15. BREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the RATFRRIEENFRERZBIIZIA T EURETE ¢
Company is based on the following data:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Earning for the purpose of basic earnings MERERZNME 2 &F)
per share (profit for the year attributable to (RNRABIRREEFARF])
owners of the Company) 42,198
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of TEREAER S 2T BREE
basic earnings per share 1,621,122,000
No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as there were no A MEESED TS S(ER L@ -
potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years. WHREEHEZYSREERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

16. Property, plant and equipment

16. 3% - BERRE

Plant and Motor Other Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF BER#S B  HtRE EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARBTT ARETI ARETT AR%T
CosT o %N
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—HF—HA—H 1,070,254 1,021,209 47,780 91,756 117,194 2,348,193
Additions NE 783 8,439 1,661 1,969 44,685 57,537
Transfer B 65,020 14,412 - - (79,432) -
Disposals BE (2,304) (31,080) (11,360) (6,626) - (51,370)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—HF+-B=+—8 1,133,753 1,012,980 38,081 87,099 82,447 2,354,360
Additions INE 3,779 53,134 2,195 5,584 14,391 79,083
Transfer f3ed 64,750 - - - (64,750) -
Disposals BE - (85,637) (6,594) (731) - (92,962)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FWBAT (93,992 (58,063) (2,948) (6,838) - (161,841)
At 31 December 2016 WZE—RE+-A=1+—H 1,108,290 922,414 30,734 85,114 32,088 2,178,640
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZsHirE
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—HF—HA—H 131,565 399,840 32,468 57,220 - 621,093
Provided for the year FERNEE 37,860 114,822 5,382 14,713 - 172,777
Elimination on disposals e (1,287) (29,6006) (9,860) (6,415) - (47,168)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-AF+-A=+—H 168,138 485,056 27,990 65,518 - 746,702
Provided for the year FREE 47,152 110,381 4,038 13,399 - 174,970
Elimination on disposals BB R - (79,027) (5,872) (692 - (85,5971)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— RN B A (14,809) (32,572) (226) (626) - (48,227)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—R"E+-HA=1+—H 200,487 483,838 25,930 77,599 - 787,854
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-A%F+-A=+—H 965,615 527,924 10,091 21,581 82,447 1,607,658
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R"E+=ZR=1+—H 907,803 438,576 4,804 7,515 32,088 1,390,786




For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group was in process of
obtaining the relevant property ownership certificates for buildings with
a net book value of RMB34,555,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB116,115,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
relevant property ownership certificates can be obtained in due time
without incurring significant costs.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for construction
in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking into account
their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%
Plant and machinery 9.50%
Motor vehicles 19.00%
Other equipment 19.00%

17. Prepaid lease payments

16. Y% - BERRE @)

FIBRFHEZEEREIER - NEEDFERR
—E—XE+_A=Z+-—BEEFEAARE
34,555,000 C( —F—FHF : AR¥116,115,0007T)
RIEFIERAMERM BT - AARESRRA - Al
RESIEAMERMBEE  MISEETAMA -

FREERTRRIN - LAY - WS R BB B &R R
HRSHEERABRENE - RANFERNT

B¥ 2.71%ZE3.17%
R M i 2s 9.50%
=k 19.00%
HAthzktEs 19.00%

17. AN L HERKIE

2016 2015
=®-xE  —F-1F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMET T

Analysed for the reporting purpose as: MEHREMDHTAT :
Current portion BN 8,681
Non-current portion IERENEL D 381,013
389,694

The Group has obtained all relevant land use right certificates for the
leasehold land as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

RIE—RNFER_ZE—AF+-_A=+—8 A&
BESATETHE T AR it {F RS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

18. Investment properties 18. IREWHE
Buildings
B3
RMB’000
ARBFIT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—HF—H 12,591
Additions INE 37,588
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RIE—RAFE_ZT—A"F+-_A=+—H 50,179
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January, 2015 RZZE—RF—H—H 2,395
Provided for the year FREE 597
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+_A=+—H 2,992
Provided for the year FREE 1,589
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=-A=+—H 4,581
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=-H=+—H 47,187
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H 45,598
As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the Group’s investment RZZE—RNF+ZA=+—8  FIEBEREVEDN
properties was RMB58,958,000 (2015: RMB53,413,000). The fair value N EAARESS958000(ZE—HF : AR
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the management 53,413,0007T) ° AFEZBRIEA QAR EEEELH
of the Company. The fair value was determined based on the direct HESL A TEERBEEZLEEHESLE - K
comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are of the view NAEFRALNEERFREMEN N T ERNR
that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment properties. EPE - ERIBARBMBUMENRIOIR HER
The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction prices or REFRHRE - NMEEWMEZATER - HIRAR
current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair value of BABEESSRARERS -
the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE —ZE—NF+-A=+—HILFE

18. Investment properties (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

RIZB—RF+ZRA=+—H  AEENREYE
REBATFESHROFBENOT

Fair value as at

31 December

Level 3 2016
R=ZZ—XRE
+T=A=+—H

38R HAFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR¥T T

Investment properties located in Zhengzhou, the PRC (LA B ED M I B 2

Fair value as at
31 December

Level 3 2015
NZZE—RF
+—-B=+—H

R MAFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARBET T

Investment properties located in Zhengzhou, the PRC A B ED M B 1% B % 53,413 53,413

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group had not obtained
the relevant property certificates for buildings with a net book value of
RMB5,004,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB42,602,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership
certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

FABBEEXEHFEIR -

BHRENE @ R MR EAENERAR
& RANEEMT

EF 2.71%ZE3.17%

FTBEFHARFEENRN - NER M ARERRN
—E—XFE+_A=+-—BEEFEAARKE
5,004,0007c (= —HF : AR¥42,602,0007T) H
EFREMENEEE - NATREERA @ 7lEF
EEAEBEEMEREM T REEAEA -
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A BB IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

19. Investments in associates

Cost of investments in unlisted associates

19. REEE QR 2 IRE

2016

—B-RE

RMB’000

AR¥TT

RIELTEE R B ZIRERA 395,724

Share of post-acquisition profits and other DGWEE R SR R E M
comprehensive income, net of dividends received ZEBA - HIBREURE 35,692
431,416
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had interests in the HE—_ZT—R"Fr_ZT—hF+

following associates:

2015
e
RMB’000
ARETTT

394,392

26,032

420,424

—A=+—H1"

AR B TR A B RS

Proportion of
Place of nominal value Proportion of
Name of entity registration of registered capital voting power held
ERZH it M EREELH ERBERAELH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XE -—Z-RE ZEBE-XE —T-fF
BNERRER T REERAR The PRC 31.48% 31.48%
ZMJ Suda Parts and Services Co., Ltd. T
EH(LBREREESERAA The PRC 49.18% 49.18% 49.18% 49.18%
Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. T
SRR TR BR AR The PRC N/A N/A
([Zpgmze 1) (Fisr) F TER ek
Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Shun Li") (note)
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of EREINERBEEREBEASE
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of EATEMBENT) - AARE
the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the AT BEEERERERE

directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Note: In December 2016, ZMJ Shun Li ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and
the Company held the remaining 22.6% equity interest in ZMJ Shun Li and
accounted for as interest in an associate, details of which are set out in note

39.

[ESPPN: o) NS £
39 °

Principal activities
TEEB

Aftermarket services
ERRS

Equity investment and
financial management

BARERGHER

Manufacture of mining
machinery

BXENEERR
ERRMFETIEAL

MiE R T —RF+- 8 BEERITEAREEN
MIBAR] - AR BRI BRI AR T 122, 6% HE

C BRFIREN KT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

19. Investments in associates (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually significant

19. REEE N R 2’ E (@)

(ENINE=
£t

WAREAZHERRIREE
2016 2015
= —T0F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREET T

The Group’s share of (loss) profit REE DL ()T (18,113) 13,361
The Group’s share of other comprehensive income AEEHEMEEEA 19,787 10,467
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income AEBESREEBALRE 1,674 23,828
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in -~ RNEBRZSH S ARHEEZ
these associates ERREEERE 431,416 420,424
20. Available-for-sale investments 20. At HESRE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at fair value REB LT Z RAFE?
(FRAFE) 29,293
Unlisted equity securities (Note) IE_EMRRAE S (HIRE) 1,881
31,174

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEREHTWT -
Non-current assets ERBEE 31,174

Note: The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in unlisted MaE : LidE ERAREREREFRBREMKIZE

equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

BATMBIHLDRARSZRE - RERE
RBERERAMBAETE - RERATE
ma R REBEAKX - HAANEFRAR
ATFETHAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

21. Deferred tax assets

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

21,

EEBIREE
AT REm S

C BRERTRIAS S O

2016 2015
—NE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets ERETRIRE E 171,830
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and movements RAEEHRAZFIERERBESERESHNT
thereon:
Bad debt Write-down Other Unrealized
Provision of inventory  provision Accruals profit Total
RERE FEKE HolE o EHEX RKERIE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
The Group RER
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—HF—HA—H 120,115 3,450 1,280 3,427 4,323 132,595
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A BZ5F0% (BT A) 37,295 1,223 1,021 - (304) 39,235
At 31 December 2015 RN_E—RF
+-A=+—H 157,410 4,673 2,301 3,427 4,019 171,830
Credit (charge) to profit or loss  FMEZ TR (51 }\) 26,897 2,182 805 600 (984) 29,500
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XMEQ
(note 39) (Pf7E39) (1,134) (17) (860) (1,577) - (3,588)
At 31 December 2016 NZE—RX
+ZA= 183,173 6,838 2,246 2,450 3,035 197,742
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

21. Deferred tax assets (Continued) 21 EEBIEEE )
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following REREHR - NEBE THIRER 2 AREATIE
unrecognised unused tax losses: &8
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETTT

Unused tax losses AB) P IEEE m 180,582

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax Ryt L R E R B AR IRE T IR A EE Ty RN A TR
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. HRICHEFRA ©
The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follow: LHUCRERYIEEE 2 EmBE AT
2016 2015
—E-NE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREET T

31 December 2016 —E—R"F+ZA=1+—H - 6,583
31 December 2017 —E—+F+-_A=+—H 8,961 8,961
31 December 2018 - N\F+-_A=+—H 11,969 62,419
31 December 2019 —E-NF+=-A=+—H 30,477 36,639
31 December 2020 —E-FETF+-A=+—H 26,901 65,980
31 December 2021 —E-—F#+ZHA=+—H 41,904 -

120,212 180,582
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. Debt investment 22 ERKRE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E=—h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Debt securities BERES 390,027
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEMBOATAT
Current portion mENEL 7 -
Non-current portion FERBNEL S 390,027
0On 26 March 2014, the Company entered into a subscription agreement MRZTB—ME=HA =178 - K2 FESun Hung Kai
with Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited and Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited, & Co. (BVI) Limited Xz Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited] 37 5254
pursuant to which, the Company agreed to subscribe for the notes in the Was - UL - AR R]R E R4 4 58 460,000,000
principal amount of USD60,000,000, with a coupon rate of 3.0% per ETTNEE - FREERI0% - BEFUERNATR
annum, semi-annually payable in arrears. The notes will expire on 28 S BEBERZE—tF A=+ \BEMm -
December 2017,
23. Finance lease receivables 23. MEHEREIWIE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current finance lease receivables MEREREERGIE 25,992
Non-current finance lease receivables FERHREREERRIE 58,096
84,088
Certain of the Group’s equipment are leased out under finance leases. All FEELETHRERERERELHE - FIEHAENA
leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases entered into REHHE - EHEFHA=ERF -

ranged from 3 to 5 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT— F+-A=+—HILFE

23. Finance lease receivables (Continued) 23.

Amounts receivable under finance leases

REHEERFE G
REEEIE TN ERIA

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
BREHAENK REAENRRE
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

—RE —hHF —REF —hHEF
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=r=Ig =—1E Er=Ig =E—1E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTrT AR®BTR ARETET

Within 1 year 1F A

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB FEEDRE

Over 2 years but less than 5 years BT E DS E

Less: unearned finance income A REIRRE W

Present value of minimum lease SIREE EWGRIE
payments receivable RE

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease terms. The weighted average effective interest rate is
approximately 5.80% (2015: 6.01%) per annum.

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the leased storage
equipment. The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the collateral in
the absence of default by the lessee.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither
past due nor impaired.

26,830 25,992
16,445 15,424
45,803 42,672
(4,990) N/A

84,088 90,628 84,088

HEMNEZEXRENBEET  BRANEERE
By o BT ERFFEL AL80%( T —RHF :
6.01%) °

mﬂﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁgﬂﬁl FIRAEERATE BRI TR R IR - A%
BHEABEALEEZOS LS BEMERS -

R E IR - BE TR & WO R 3 S 58 H I R ORL
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

24. Long-term receivables 24. REAEWRIE

2016 2015
=i —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Long term receivable due from customers (Note 1) s F REE E (KRE1) 60,065 64,121
Long term receivable due from an associate (Note 2) e — R B 2 R R ER R GRTE

GE3) 118,443 172,144
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year B —EANEIE . RE RN GRE (131,726) (105,059)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year —F 15 H 7 REAEIGRIE 46,782 131,206
The amount is expected to be received as follows: FRIETEHARA LA TR R URER
Within 1 year 1FR 161,337 111,297
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BBIFEDR2FE 3,450 142,578
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BT D5 E 40,443 15,523
Over 5 years HRiB5F 12,074 18,973
Less: unearned finance income W REIRRE WG (38,796) (52,106)

178,508 236,265

Note 1: The balance represents long term receivables from third-party customers
arising from sales of goods. The amount is interest free, unsecured and
repayable in 2 to 8 years. Deemed interest income of RMB2,221,000
calculated based on effective interest method was recognised during the
current year (2015: RMB738,000).

Note 2: In December 2015, the Company has entered into an agreement with an
associate and its controlling shareholder, pursuant to which, the Company
has agreed to extend the credit period of trade receivable from this associate
of RMB215,180,000 and the associate has agree to repay the amount
by installments at the end of each quarter from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2017. The amount is interest free and unsecured. Deemed
interest income of RMB11,089,000 calculated based on effective interest
method was recognised during the current year (2015: Nil).

faET

FizE2 -

ZEBREAEREEMERE=FEFPZRH
JEMEIE - ZFBARE - BIKERER_-Z
NEREE - RIERERFSETE 2 21
AANR#E2,221,000C TR AFERER(ZZ
—hF  AR¥E738,0007T) °

RIZE—RF+F  AAREH—EHER
AR EERARE T g - B - ARRIER
B R FE W B 2 A B2 AR #5215,180,0007T
BHRBEZEER MZBEARBERER=
T—RNE-A-BE_ZT—+F+=-A=+—
BHMSEER D HEEGHEE - Z5K8
AR S REET - RIERERFSAFTEZF
B A A B 11,089,000 7T JY A AN £ FE R FERR
(ZZ—ARF:#E)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—Z— "G +=-_A=+—HIFE

25. Inventories 2. 78
2016 2015
ZB-RF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT
Raw materials and consumables REH B 258,650
Work in progress ESd) 117,615
Finished goods B 799,564
1,175,829
26. Loan receivables from an associate 26. B —XEE AR EX
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTFT
Analysed for the reporting purpose as: MERBEOIWTOT ¢
Current portion mENER D 64,000 80,000
The balance as at 31 December 2016 represented loan receivables from an RIZZE—R"FFTZA=1+—8 ' ZEBRIEEIKEE
associate Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd., which NAIBEISEEBERRERAT ZER - ZEX
were denominated in RMB, unsecured and repaid on demand. The Group has IARBEHE - S - WIRERKEE - WFER -
individually provided allowance of RMB16,000,000 for this loan receivable 75 [E A 1k FE WS SR B Bl ET 4R A R #616,000,0007T
during the year. B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE
27. Trade and other receivables 27. E5 R H A EWRRIE
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Bills receivable FEW R 1,038,280 1,004,413
Trade receivables & S EWGRIE 3,525,161 3,989,715
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RBRE R (1,183,432) (1,032,712)
3,380,009 3,961,416
Prepayments to suppliers M FE R TR R 227,856 52,329
Deposits HE 25,674 6,919
Other tax recoverable H o AT U 1 57 78 3,328 20,985
Staff advances BEZK 2,850 4,896
Dividend receivable RS AL B, - 950
Others HAh 20,619 16,213
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REEEE (11,891) (8,789)
268,436 93,507
Total trade and other receivables Z 5 RAMERFIEE R 3,648,445 4,054,923
The Group generally allows a credit period of 180 days to its customers. KREB—RETEEZEEH AKX - BIWEE
Bills receivable have a maximum maturity of 6 months. The credit period NxEEmBRAENEAR - fTFREFE ZEEHA
provided to a customer can vary significantly based on a number of factors, EHRZEREZMEREEZEE  BiEAEEEEFY
including the Group’s relationship with the customer, the customer’s credit W7« BRPZEARREMNZRGES - AOBERT
profile and payment history, total contract value and market conditions. e MMM ASHERIZEZABREY 2 EWEE
The following is an aged analysis of bills receivable and trade receivables B 5 REWGRIBHIR RARBEE 2 BRE DT

net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at
the end of each reporting period:

2016 2015
—g-AE  —2-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBET T

Within 180 days 180K 1,506,393 2,078,089
Over 180 days but within 1 year HBiB180K(E1FR 988,052 1,083,649
Over 1 year but within 2 years BB B2 N 700,945 509,190
Over 2 years within 3 years HBB2FE3FN 184,619 290,488

3,380,009 3,961,416
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

27. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 27. EZ R EHMEWRIE s

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers
any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date of
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The Group closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and considers trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality. The Group has provided impairment allowance individually or
collectively for all past due receivables.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due

R B SRR 2 Al mUIER - AEEEEE
SRRFEEREENZRIRLEEEREREA
HIEAR 2 (EAI L - AEE R ERE HRKGIR
MEEEE  TRARBHMSARREE S REKIA
EEEERI - NEBETDHAABRKFIAESR
HHRETERERE -

B8 85 RINETRKEK

2016 2015
=F—RF i
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMET T

Over 180 days but within 1 year BiB180K1E1ER 694,315
Over 1 year but within 2 years BIB1EE2FR 475,827
Over 2 years within 3 years BIE2EF1B3F N 290,488

1,460,630

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 3 years because
historical experience is such that receivables are past due beyond 3 years
are generally not recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

AEBEDEB3F U LRI EERE  ER
IRIBIE £ &SR IR B3 F 2 FRUGRIA — R R IR
@ - AEEWEZFEHRITAEAERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

27. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Movement of allowance for doubtful debts on trade and
other receivables

27. E5 R HMEWRIE @)
B 5 RHEMEWRIE 2 RIREHEE

2016 2015
—EB-RF —ThF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARMET T

Opening balance FUEER 1,041,497 793,176
Provided for the year FNEE 214,296 312,139
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAE (7,562) -
Write off J5H (52,908) (63,818)
Closing balance FRES 1,195,323 1,041,497

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts of the Group are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB791,040,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB529,496,000), the counterparties
of which have been in significant financial difficulties. The Group holds no
collateral over these balances as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

28. Derivative financial instruments

RZE—RNF+_A=+—8  sFARNEEREE
EZRENEREREE SEKFBASEAAR
#791,040,0007T ( =T —H 4 A R #529,496,000
TL) o ZEFEMEH EREAMBERE - R =
T-RNERZE-—AF+_A=+—H AKEET
ERFZSRG RS -

28. THESRMT A

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting e s EEmITETIR
Cash flow hedges: WEmEsP
— Forward foreign exchange contracts —REPHNESH -




For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE— NG+ -_A=+—HILtFE

28. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated on 22 May 2016, the
Company has entered into an equity transfer agreement with independent
third parties, namely Axle ATL Cayman Limited, ASIMCO Technologies
Hong Kong Limited, ASIMCO Technologies Limited and ASIMCO (China)
Limited (“the Sellers”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire
from the Sellers the interests of six entities (the “Target Equity Interests”) in
the auto-parts industry with nominal consideration of RMB2,200,000,000,
including cash consideration of RMB1,650,000,000 (which shall be
payable in its USD equivalent) and consideration shares (as defined in the
circular) with nominal value of RMB550,000,000.

The Group utilized forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to variability in cash flows attributable to foreign currency risk
between RMB/USD associated with the highly probable equity transfer
agreement. The terms of the foreign exchange contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the designated hedged items. The major
terms of the contract are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity

H{E Z|HH

Buy USD252 million 3 January 2017
BASAEET —T—+F%—H=H

As at 31 December 2016, fair value gains of approximately
RMB71,020,000 have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.

28. STEEM I B

WA RBHBAZE—"FRAAZ T ZHNEK
FTigeE - AARIE B E =75 - ADAXe ATL Cayman
Limited ~ ASIMCO Technologies Hong Kong Limited ~ ASIMCO
Technologies Limited 5 Za #T L (R EY) & & B R A &)
(&R DFETREEREDRZ - B - ARRRER
BHRER BT HHITENAAREENRE B
iZRsiE]) - BERERARE2200,000,0007T 8
FEIR & KB AR #1,650,000,0007C (E R EE =
T REEREERARES550,000,0007TH X E
f&1D (EERER) ©

AEEFFBRAINES RERARE ETINER
BEH IR © R EE LA E by (H B AR A g3 2K
REERGEFR) - e AEZHRRELER - U
EE AL A5 $H I8 B BIEK - & RA)E Z RN
T

Exchange rate
Ex

RMB6.48: USD1.00
ANER#6.487T 1 1.00%7T

RIZE—RNFE+-A=+—8 AFEKFHAR
#71,020,00070 B A E At 2 U S FE R M A RE 2 R
25t o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

29,

30.

Other financial assets 29 Hitt e mEE
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—RFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Structured deposit HEBETR 1,063,000
Other financial assets as at 31 December 2016 represented the structured RZZE—RF+-ZA=+—H EtheBREES
deposits with certain banks in the PRC carrying fixed interest rates from ETHEMNRITHEBETN  BEFMNENT
2.85% to 3.50% per annum and maturity period of one or three months. 2.85%%3.50% * HiR A—E AL =EAR - tELHE
These structured deposits could not be redeemed until the expiration date. MEREDEERTTEEEE o
Bank balances and cash/pledged bank deposits 30. RITEREES CHEARITER
Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash and short-term bank AEBRITEH LB BER S MNEBBRITHER °
deposits. The bank balances carry interest at market rates which range RITEREMENERATE  RZZE—RF+=A
from 0.30% to 3.15% per annum as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 0.39% =+—8 FHMESRNF030%E315%(=F
t0 3.15% per annum). —HEF : FHE0.39%ZE3.15%) °
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Cash Re 120
Bank deposits with original maturity within [REVHA B A3ME A AT 2 8R1T
three months or less T 1,726,101

Cash and cash equivalents BeNRSFEY 1,726,221

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months R EI|HA A A31E A LA_E 2 R1T1F R 285,000

Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 2,011,221
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank BRI R AR FIRITIEAIRI TR K ESE -
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and forward foreign exchange R SGEHINES D2 REBR - At EARE
contracts and are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank BE - BEEBRITFEFTIRMSHEGTE  RZF
deposits carry interest at market rates which range from 0.30% to 3.15% —A"F+ZA=1+—H  FAENT030%%E3.15%
per annum as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 0.39% to 3.15% per annum). ZE—RF - FFF0.39%ZE3.15%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

31. Trade and other payables 3. ES R HMENRIE

2015

—T—RF

RMB’000

ARBETTT

Bills payable (Note i) FERTERAR (PR 5ED 367,269 698,336

Trade payable (Note i) B 5 e E (BT 1,139,227 1,188,824

1,506,496 1,887,160

Salary and bonus payables ERITERES 69,584 68,304
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of R —ERMB AR

a former subsidiary (Note ii) — & IR AR AR SR A FRE (P R = 107,711
Deposits (Note iii) HEACEATD 23,710 28,294
Deferred income to be recognised within one year —F R Z IEIEUR A (B 5Eiv)

(Note iv) 9,528 9,528
Other taxes payable HAb IR 40,946 18,301
Accruals and other payables (Note v) TahE M E At PR SR (MY av) 71,405 74,440

1,721,669 2,193,738

Notes: PIE
) The following is an aged analysis of bills payable and trade payables ) UTARSHRERREEZAHENZENEERES
presented based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period: FERFRIERRER DA

2015

—E—RF

RMB’000

AREETTT

Within 90 days 90K A 700,994 878,996

Over 90 days but within 1 year BIBIOKIETIFR 541,746 724,600

Over 1 year BB 263,756 283,564

1,506,496 1,887,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE—"E+_-_A=+—HILFE

31. Trade and other payables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

i) The balance represents the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
ZMJ Shun Li. In December 2016, ZMJ Shun Li ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Group and the Company held remaining 22.6% equity interest in ZMJ
Shun Li and accounted for as interest in an associate, details of which are set

out in note 39.

i) Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and

other services.

iv)  Deferred income to be recognised within one year represents the government
subsidies received by the Group towards certain research projects. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be transferred to profit

or loss over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

v)  Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, rental payables and payables for other

Services.

32. Transfers of financial assets

During the year, the Group entered into agreements with certain equipment

leasing companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

i) the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated to be
used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing companies

and received the payments from leasing companies;

i) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof supports to

the end-user customer;

iy the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts due
by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the end-
user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment leasing

companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognise
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-user of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate end-
user of the equipment and proceeds received from the equipment leasing

companies are recorded as financing arrangements.

During the year, the Group has received approximately RMB223,166,000
from the equipment leasing companies, among which approximately
RMB42,844,000 has been settled by the ultimate end user of the
equipment as at 31 December 2016. The transferred trade receivables

and associated liabilities were offset to the extent of such settlement.

31.

32.

ESRHMEMSNRIE S
BEE « (48)

i) ERAEERIE B PR TR T M — R IR AR R 2 3R
B-RIE—AE+-A BEERITBALRE
EMMEAR - MARARZEREEIE BT
22.6% M4 - W2 ABRA—REEARIER - 7B
HHIFESQ

i) RTERIHERMAKEES R EMRE TS o

v BR-FARRZEERAERERRE THRER
B ATWERBR AT 8 B » 2 SRR (EEE A IR
BMEEREAFHANBREEES -

vy TEREREMESREXZQEAREEYE BE
RS2 EAFIE -« BRI S REARE 2 B
H o

TRHEEER

R ARTEE TRAENEAT KRR PET
5 - L

) AEERREEHEARHEREXR(FEH
R PEA) RAEE A BUERR K

i) REBEEERARMLHAPHEERESR

i) WA AP AR BEA AR N R AEER
RINEEERE  AEEFETAMNKEA
FREABEQRNARENHESTE -

ERZZFNME - AEBERLRAPHAREER
ERTHRBENEREMBRRTERCRUTIE &
EREOKEAPERBEZSHESE  ABHE
ERRMEBM TR AR E LB -

FA AEEEXRBEHERARKIRHARKE
223,166,0007T + H A 49 A K #42,844,0007C E A &%
HENERIEAPR S —NF+ZA=1+—H& -
MLEEMS - ESHENGUEEELABEELED
i o



For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE —ZE—NF+-A=+—HILFE

33. Share capital 33. A
Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
LmAR LmHER @t
Number of Number of Number of
share Amount share Amount share Amount
REAEA &8 REAEE &8 ROHE &8
‘000 RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000
Th ARETT Th ARETR Th ARETR
At 1 January 2015, R_E-RF—A—H"
31 December 2015 and 2016 ZE-RERITREF

+-A=+-H 1,377,888 1,377,888 243,234 243,234 1,621,122 1,621,122

BAPTRI B 2 EHIN HERARES THHEZEHE
RIS IR °

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid, H Shares and A
Shares rank pari passu in all respects with each other.

34. Non-controlling interests 34, FEIERRER
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the TRINTNEEREZERES AR EZENBA
Group that have significant non-controlling interests: AlZEHE
Place of Proportion of
establishment equity interest held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31
FERERFEZ PREFERERZ
RIER RARZED aF (E58) Rt ERER
KEAREMH TEEENHY BZ+t-A=1-BLEFE BET-A=+-ALFE HZEt-A=1+-HLEE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-XF -—T-1F ZB-AFE _—Z-hE ZB-AFf -—T-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT AR®TR ARET:T
ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment PRC
e lfeRr it F 31.11% (9,309) 56,440
Individual immaterial subsidiaries RIS 2 (5
with non-controlling interests TERZMBRR (22,280) 63,447
(31,589) 119,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

34. Non-controlling interests (continued) 34, FEIERRER ()

2016

—E—REF

ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment RMB’000

ERIR AR AR¥T T
Current assets TRENEE PR (1)
Non-current assets SEMEBNEE 152,871
Current liabilities mEAE 255,519

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RABBER R

Non-controlling interests FEEAR A

Revenue L ON

Expenses FsZ

Loss and total comprehensive expense BB R 2R A5

Loss and total comprehensive expense attributable 7K/ T A% B fE {5 518 2
to owners of the Company 2HAS L

Loss and total comprehensive expense attributable 3R RELS FE(L 51 2
to the non-controlling interests ARS8

Loss and total comprehensive expense EE R A

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

REXBZRERACRE)FE

Net cash outflow from investing activities

REEH RS R FE

Net cash inflow (outflow)

BERACRH)FHE

110,954

50,104

2016
—E-RE
RMB’000
AR%T T

230,911
(251,275)

(20,364)

(14,028)

(6,336)

(20,364)

2,004
(1,340)

664

2015
—T—hF
RMB’000
ARETIT

338,977
158,632
316,085
124,984

56,440

2015
—E—AHF
RMB'000
ARETIT

344,365
(374,291)

(29,926)

(20,617)

(9,309)
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35. Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements

Acquisition equity interests from third entities
(note 43)

35. EAREGE
2016
—BxE
RMB’000
ARET R

ERAERELRE M BERE
BBz ERBEDE  BE
REEBZEARFR

28,164

feE=TEBKERE

(F5E43) 2,200,000

2,228,164

36. Operating leases
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating
leases during the year:
—Land

3. KEHE

AEEERAHA
2016
—E-AF
RMB’000
ARMT S
FRRBEERESLNZ
BRI E T -
— ity

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREETTT
Within one year —F R 5,224
In the second to fifth years inclusive FIEERF(RIEEEMT) 20,894
Over five years HFAE 41,788
67,906

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KERENPIEASEGE(NAE T HIRES 2

certain parcels of land that it occupies. The leases are negotiated for terms

of 20 years.

& o MAHEEFIB20F -

2015
—E-hEF
RMB’000
ARETT

31,272

31,272

2015
—E-RHE
RMB’000
ARETTT

5,224

REREHR - REERR THIHBE 2 AT H
HRETHEM A RRRKIERE N FAIE
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36.

37.

Operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Property rental incomes earned was RMB14,357,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB11,509,000). The leases are negotiated
for terms of 1 year to 15 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants

36. KEHE»
AEBIEALEA

HE-_Z—XFET-_A=Z+—HILFE  FIHRY
AL WA BARE14357,000C( —FE—F4F : A
K 11,509,0007T) » AR T FEABIFR156F -

REREHR  AEBREBFITHZ A RKEHE

for the following future minimum lease payments: SWALT

2016 2015
—RNE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Within one year —FR 5,450
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZERF(BEEBEMT) 11,350
Over 5 years HELAE 15,572
32,372

Retirement benefit plans EARERGE

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a government-
operated defined contribution pension scheme, and are entitled to a
monthly pension from their retirement dates. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group
is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at
certain percentages of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an
expense when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions and the contributions are due.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the scheme
in the PRC and charged to the profit or loss:

Amounts contributed and charged to the profitorloss B W IEZS

AEETEEREEFABFEEZ EBHIUR
KEFEZRE  ERBERKZAEEAZERI
T PEBNEERZFERNRERTEREE
- AEBARREEEAH S ZE T ADLLAERK
#%Wﬁﬁfﬁ% BRESREENRERMEER
SR E M IR R AR B B ST B AT ABASE

RAEE - AEEE RS BERAEHNEELAT
Wk MEZSEREN BRI

2016 2015
—RE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

X e s 55,746




For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE —ZE—NF+-A=+—HILFE

38. Related party transactions

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Henan SASAC of the PRC government and that
the Group is subject to the control of the PRC government. In accordance
with IAS 24, entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (“PRC government related entities”)
are regarded as related parties of the Group. Due to the complex
ownership structure, the PRC government may hold indirect interests in
many companies. Some of these interests may, in themselves or when
combined with other indirect interests, be controlling interests which may
not be known to the Group. Nevertheless, the Group represented that the
following captures the material related parties taking into account the
exemption under 1AS 24,

(1) The Group and Henan SASAC

The Group has transactions with entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by Henan SASAC (“Henan SASAC related
entities”) and the transactions details are as follow:

38. AR S

ARBEERR  NATZREIEHT A BB
ARERER - MAKEXPBEBFES - RIER
BREETERIZE245 - SR BBATES - HKFEEHI
EAPEZER((TEBAHRER DRE/ASE
B2 RER T - ENERCERREE - TEBUFA
RERABSEREELD - E TR SERETHE

BB - AT - ARERM - 5 RERES
RRF 2455 2 T - TXEDIBRHEARBT

(1) AEERAGEEEE

ARERETHEDEELS)  HEEHRE
e ER(TRAREEANER)ER
SR - HERHZEFWT

2016 2015

—E—RF —T—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AREETTT

Sales of finished goods SHEEMK M 108,419
Purchase of raw materials BERE R 263,410

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from Henan SASAC
related entities accounted for 2.0% of total revenue (2015: 2.4%),
and purchases from Henan SASAC related entities accounted for 9.9%
of total cost of sales (2015: 7.2%).

The details of outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan
SASAC related entities are set as follow:

EHZE-Z—RE+-A=+—BILEE - &
A A B R AR E RS 2 ek (h 42Uk 252.0%
(ZE—HF :24%) MREAEERHEEZE
HER Y KB EEER A% (ZE—H
F72%)

FRABAREZ I TEEEEZARER Y
REEGHFBREIOT

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Amount due from Henan SASAC related entities ~ fEUCA A Bl EE R EE 2
oA 11,573
Amount due to Henan SASAC B mEEEZ 2 58 2,459

Except for the amount due to Henan SASAC which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand, all the amounts due from
Henan SASAC related entities are from trade sales or purchases. The
outstanding balances with Henan SASAC related entities and Henan
SASAC have been included in note 27 and note 31, respectively.

BEMTEEEEZ 2 FAREERR 28K
TARBNREEI BT ERERBRER
ZATEFIR KB B HIHE SR o BARE
BEZARER R ImERER 2 KERER
2RI EE27 Ko i FE31 Rl
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38. Related party transactions (Continued)

@)

The Group and other PRC government related
entities

Apart from the significant transactions with Henan SASAC related
entities set out above, during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government
related entities are collectively significant as a large portion of its
sales of goods, purchases of materials, most of bank deposits, and
other general banking facilities and the relevant interest income
earned and expenses incurred during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 are transacted with entities owned/controlled by the
PRC government.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
PRC government related entities are activities in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials
and its financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and
financing policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government related entities or not.

The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures:

B.EEHAIRSZ (5

@

AEBEA A EBTREERE

b EXFrE s ma Bl S Z R BRI E
ARG REBRBE_T—RFERZZT
—RAF+ A=+ —HIEFERE MR BERAT
HEERBET IR SE2HBHEIBERN - AHRE
BT -RFEERZE-RFF+ZA=+—AHL
FEZABHEDEE - VEHRE - KEHE
IR - At —MRIERTTRE A& B BREVEEEF)
BIWARE EERZEY RSP EBTET7%H
B/ EHIERITEITZRS ©

ARAREERA  ZEFHRPEBUTHARE R
TZRHDHAEE  AEEFES - WE—K
RO RIGMRTL - MASEETZERS
WEmAAKEREZSERBRAEBKEN
XEEARTERE - ARENRERBEER
YRR R ZIE R - YR EEREMER
R REWRZEF KR EBERY TEURN R 5
HFREBBUTHREER -

AEEGRABENTRAZEREETTIIE
BER5

2016 2015
—E—X —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T
Trade sales: EoHE

Associates Gl /NG| 106,926
Joint ventures BETE 5270
112,196

Trade purchases: B
Associates /NS 154,475
Joint ventures BETE 4915

159,390
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38. Related party transactions (Continued)

(3) The Group and its associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates
and joint ventures at the end of each reporting period:

38. A SRR Z ()
@) NEFHEKRENT NG ZEDE

(%)
REREHR  AEBHEEBENREED
BT REBER
2016 2015
—E-—RE —E—FHE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREET T

Amounts due from: JEM T FI R TTRIE
Associates G/ 284,995
Joint ventures AEE 1,310
286,305
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T

Amounts due to: JER T B AR08 -
Associates i l/NE 47,862
Joint ventures EaEhE 1,581
49,443

Except for the amount due from an associate of RMB64,000,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB80,000,000) as disclosed in
note 26 which is non-trade in nature, all amounts due from or due to
associates and joint ventures are from trade sales and purchase, and
the outstanding balances have been included in note 27 and note 31,
respectively.

BHF26FHBER T —R"F+=-A=+—H
BIEE 5ME 2 ARE64,000,0000(—ZF—H
&0 AR 80,000,000 ) B U B 2 A B ZUE
N ARSI E AR A E ¥ K
HHREB HIHERERE - REREBRS AR
PitsE27 R a3 18kt
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE
38. Related party transactions (Continued)
(4) Remuneration of key management personne

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

B.EEHAIRSZ (5

/\

4) TEEBEAEMS
EELHMTIEERABSHEMT :

2016 2015
—RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Short-term benefits RHRF 10,104
Post-employment benefits RURAEF 1,625
11,729

Key management represents the executive directors and other
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

39. Disposal of a subsidiary

On 20 July 2016 the Group and Huainan Li Cheng Mining Machinery Co.,
Ltd (‘Huainan Li Cheng’), an independent third party, entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to transfer and
Huainan Li Cheng agreed to acquire 35.4% equity interest in ZMJ Shun Li
at a total consideration of RMB22,484,900. Upon completion of the equity
transfer in December 2016, ZMJ Shun Li ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Group and the Company held remaining 22.6% equity interest in ZMJ
Shun Li and accounted for as interest in an associate.

The net assets of ZMJ Shun Li at the date of disposal were as follows:

‘IxEﬁ]\E?SEiiﬁﬁP?&?EZ%M?%%&E
MEREEAR - TEERABZME IR
EARBRENI5EE #m °

39. HE—XMEBAR

RIE—RFLtA-TH AEBENEBIE=T
RN AR IR AR AR ([VER LA ) FT L A
R B ARRIREEE - MR KR
U ED ISR ST D35 4% AR A KERS - AR EBAA

R#£224849007C - R=ZF—RF+= ﬂm& m
Hg o BEHRETTHBARAEENNEBR
$/ﬂmﬁﬁ%m%%ﬁm&m%$%éyﬁ¢
BRI E N B R RER AR

RHERE  BRBETHEESFENT :

RMB’000
ARETT

Total consideration received in cash EUEIR & 2 ark(E
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3. HE—XMBAR (@)
KERGEZ EERBBIN

39. Disposal of a subsidiary (Continueq)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment

U ER

113,614

Intangible assets A E 111

Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 2,425

Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 55,714
Inventories 2=y 51,735

Trade and other receivables B 5 K H M EWGRIA 44,189
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIES 3,269
Other assets HiEE 4,048
Trade and other payables E 5 & E A FE S F0E (240,173)
Other liabilities HihgE (11,208)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 23,724
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—XRHBRE) 2 W -

Consideration received on disposal of 35.4% equity interest P B 35.4% AEWE R AE 22,485

The retained 22.6% equity interest measured at fair value when & 2k 532 HI RS 2 T~ 22.6% AR E A A F B

control is lost

Non-controlling interests IR

Net assets disposed of HEEEFE

Gain on disposal e

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: EBLRERSRAFRE
Cash consideration RERE

Less: bank balances and cash disposed of

B WERTEBERE

5,332
10,181
(23,724)

14,274

22,485
(3,269)

19,216
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40. Contingent liabilities

(1) Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
bills receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full
recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of
the default in payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because
all endorsed bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks. The maximum exposure to the Group that may result
from the default of these endorsed and derecognised bills receivable
at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

40. HARAEE

mH

(1) BEREZHAREECSERK

R

RAEE - AEBAEERRIEHRE TRIK
ERZHABHATHERE ZE S REME
NFIE - ARAEERL  ARNFBESEZE
WERETIRBER 2 PEIRITE N RIEHE
® BMRNEEZRBEERZRRTA - R
BERR - ARERIERARNZESERKILE
R BINEEMmBEAE 2 RARBRIT :

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse BB R Z MK EBDHE

S

2016 2015
—E-RF =T R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMET T
461,205

These endorsed and derecognised bills receivable have a maximum
maturity of 6 months, and the total undiscounted cash flows of
these endorsed and derecognised bills receivable, representing the
Group’s maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honour their bills
and guarantees, amounted to RMB621,191,000 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB461,205,000).

41, Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

The management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

ZEBERKRIEER 2 R ZEHERE RS
RAEXNMER RZZ—XR"F+=A=+—8"
ZEBERKRIEER 2 RN RIEARUBR SR
BEAMBITIRITRELEREZ ZERER
TEAEE AREG621,191,000 R = EE (=
T—AHF : AR®461,205,0007T) °

N EXRAREE

AEFEREER  UERAEENNER
BRELE - MBCRIN B BEB(CER R E
BUSHRARIHR - NEB 2 BERIEERS T

% A ik

o

AEENEARBERBEFARARRIEE ARG
o B BRERAE - BB N E R o

AARIEREBFRHELRRE - (FAZBEENN
Hh—ir - BEEQ@ERERNKANBGRELRE
BHER - RIFEEENESR - NEEE BN
BB BITHR - BEFEBHEEREERFE
HEREARRE -
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(@ TMITEDE

42. Financial instruments

(@ Categories of financial instruments

2016 2015
—E—X —ZF-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Financial assets: SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and BN EN S
cash equivalents) (PREESERRASEED) 8,124,290
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 31,174
Derivative instruments PTET A -
Total a5t 8,155,464
Financial liabilities: SREE
Amortised costs SRR 2,097,605

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include finance
lease receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment, trade and
other receivables, derivative instruments, pledged bank deposits,
cash and bank balances, trade and other payables, transferred
trade receivables and liabilities associated with transferred trade
receivables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.
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AEEIZEREENAGERENMBHEHERK
HIE -~ REEWIR - BFIRE - BHRHEM
FEWRIE - OTAET A - BHEMRITENR - R
KRITHES - EHREMENRIE - 88N
B HENFIANEDEENE HERFIAERE
WEE - ZZLRTAHBRESAMERE -
BEzZEeRITANRR R NFAFFEZ SR
SERRFIINT - EEEEESEITLZFR
b DARECR KBS A RURBUE S 5 7E

™S Ak

AEBEEBEETBAZEERR - FIXRR
REMEBER - NEBARSHZERRIAR
BENFTERRN T AMEZS
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

)

Currency risk

The primary economic environment in which the company and
its principal subsidiaries operate is the PRC and their functional
currency is RMB. However, certain transactions of the Company
and its principal subsidiaries including sales and purchases of
goods are denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement during the
year (notes 28 and 43), and a large portion of the consideration
shall be payable in USD equivalent.

The management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure by closely monitoring the foreign exchange risk profile
and utilized forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to variability in cash flows attributable to foreign
currency risk between RMB/USD associated with the highly
probable equity transfer agreement.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—R
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—H
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—R
As at 31 December 2015 R_ZT—H

2. £@MI A
b £RAEBEEBZENBERE @)

misEM(E)
() EEER

AARRETEMBAREEN T ELE
RESTHE  MENGEEER/ARE - A
il ARBRETZMBRARNETRS
(BREEEMm) IAINEDIE - thoh - &
RBRERNETIL T — 0 B e a5 15 (FY
28 f43) - REM—KRBHBAEFESE
TEXAT e

AEEEREE BTV ERINERRAS
ESIINERER - URFIRRBEHE RS
MEARYEETINERBEBNRER
EF{cmE R (KRR g2 S
EEAR) o

MREWREHR - AEESMNETIERN B

BELAGEWNT -
UsD
Ep
Assets Liabilities
BE 8&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
F+—-_A=+—H 624,091 231
F+—-_A=+—H 410,389 800
EUR
BT
Assets Liabilities
BE 8f&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
F+-_A=+—H 36,303 36,551
F+-A=1+—8H 82,184 20,347
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016

P
As at 31 December 2015 N-ZTE—F

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between USD/RMB, EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of each
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year and a negative number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax profit for the year where the relevant foreign
currencies change 5% against RMB.

2 THMIA®m
() LRUEAMSEIEBAZ MR (#)

mismEE(E)

() E®EEE)

HKD

B
Assets Liabilities
BE &85
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARBETIT

H 511,677 -
H 461,300 -

AEETERERT AR - BT/ A
R¥&BT, AREHINERE o

BURE DT

TREIASEHEREELARBIHE
Kz (E5% M GURE T - 5% AT EE
EABRRZ2MINERROSBRELL X -
YTRREEEHERSE AL AT
1l o BREDITEBIBASINETEN AR
SNEWIRR - WS TRE HIR AR R &
B5%IELE L TR - 5 ERRRARISN
HRARBEEENE - FABRTRET
1Eh0 - W N5 B SRR AR BIR A FR
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

USD impact
if USD strengthens against RMB
if USD weakens against RMB

EUR impact
if EUR strengthens against RMB
if EUR weakens against RMB

HKD impact
if HKD strengthens against RMB
if HKD weakens against RMB

2. €T R

Ev 2
T ARETHE
HWETHARERE

Bree
BT AR B THE
HET AR E

BrEe
578 72 3 RAEFHE
78T R A

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposures do not reflect the exposure.

(i) Interest risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits and variable-rate bank
balances (see notes 30 for details). Currently, the Group does
not have a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but
the management will closely monitor interest rate exposures
and consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

b) S RbEMEEIE B ZNBER (#®)

mISEE(E)
) E¥ERE)
BURE DT (&)
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

)

AR¥T T ARMET T

26,514 17,408
(26,514) (17,408)

250 2,628
(250) (2,628)

21,746 19,605
(21,746) (19,605)

ARBEERR  BRFEARRTE
BRER - RERESM TR KREFINE
[\ o

FIFE R

AEE T B EIFRITERRIF BRIT
B (B2 A0 AR R 2 REN X
R - BAT - AEEWES EHRREER
MR - HEEREBEE SN REAR
WHEEFEREBLEPERN L
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest risk (Continuead)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments (including
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and borrowings) at the
end of each reporting period and the excepted changes in
interest rates taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and being held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

A 10 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates on
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balance is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. There is no
borrowing during the year 2016 and 2015. If the interest rates
on variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances had
been 10 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year would have increased
by:

Increase in post-tax profit for the year FR

42. £/T A
b) ©RLEEEIEBZRBUR @

mismEE(E)

(i)

BRI 12 05 I8 A

FIFER (&)
BREDM

UNTBERESTDRESBMTA(BER
BERRITER - RITERREE)RNST
& HR & R i A K B B A 3R Y
XA R B (PO WP RIT R MIRTT
RS - REBERE PR TEEE -

e E?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ&fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuTJ:%
ok TREI0EER IR EERE IR A EANED
RN EEREEA IEEEEJ‘“T%‘J
BIERREE B - R —RERZ
T-RERBEAEER - 1ﬁ/¥ EHEHRIR

R RIB TSI EF0(ERE -
MG EAB SRS - Al RBB R
s -

2016 2015
—RE —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ET T
1,140

The post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances had
been 10 basis points lower and all other variables were held
constant.

% B B EIFRITIF X R ARTTAEBREY IR
TEF0EER - MATARMEHRTE - A
FRRBRENZ DRAR SR
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) - Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments operating in
coal industry sector quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. For
sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is 25% in current
year as a result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 25%
higher/lower: other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2016 would increase/decrease by RMB9,484,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 25%
higher/lower: post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would increase/decrease by RMB8,016,000 as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments which
have been impaired.

2. €T R
b £RAEBEEBZENBERE @)

misEM(E)
(i) EMEEREER

G B R BT £ AR AN RE 75 1 1 R AR
EffER - AEENRANERERT2E
PR R IR TR AR R PR E AR
TA - i AEEDZEREBRKRER
ERERRR  YNAFTERZREHPE
B o

BURE DT

AT SURRE AT IR B E B HAE R A
AERERETE - MBRELTME @ A
RERTIZRE  AFENERELER
25% ©

HERANT A2 BREM, KL 25%
RAEEEREATERMES  #E
T-XNE+-A=+— EutiJ*Zﬁmi
S0, R AR #59,484,0007T ©

W& BAT A Z @RIG5> 25%
EREREMNTHEEREQNTERAN
gy HE-_T—HF+-_A=+—8H
LEFEZBRBREZFG M, HDARE
8,016,0007T °
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to bills receivable
endorsed by the Group with full recourse as disclosed in note
40.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Company
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
management of the Company reviews the recoverability of each trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management of the Company considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default
in payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all
endorsed bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks. However, the credit risk on bank
balances is limited because the majority of the counterparties are
state-owned banks with good reputation or banks with good credit
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies and with good
reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 11.28% (2015:
11.42%) and 29.33% (2015: 28.75%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets except for
finance lease receivables. Credit risks associated with the finance
lease receivables are mitigated because the finance lease receivables
are secured over the leased storage equipment. The carrying
amounts of the finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2016
amounted to RMB90,628,000 (2015: RMB84,088,000).

2 THMIA®m
() LRUEAMSEIEBAZ MR (#)

FERE

R-IZE—RER-ZT—HF+-_A=+—8"
REENEAEERREANRR ZEFELM
BYAREERZHBIEL  HUTSEE
=g

s HAMBHARMILSBCHEREREE
HARE(E © &

o M40 EEAEEAGEHERE
ZEBERUEBRRRNSIAREDHE -

REEEERR  AAREEEEZIK—EE
FRBEEEEERE  FERLRERAME
BRERF - AERERDURETES UK EESE
o ledh  ARBEEBRERMERRENS
BHEBHHAIKNEIRE - ARSI E &
HAHRERABERRE - Blt - AAREERER
7 AEEEERBEAERE

ARBEERR  ARINDEEREERN
RBAK - RERZHEE S REEEhT
B AEEAYRITH I MIELR -

AEERTFHREFRITNRBE S AZED
SERR - A ARAHBOHFHH/ER
REFHBIARITRERR I REER T RIFE
EFGRAEBRINRTT  MBRITERNER
FERBER

RNEE 2B B REWGIERES - H731511.28%
(ZZE—RF 1142%) NEREAEF R
29.33% (=T —F4F : 28.75%) YRR E KRR
B ASZEREERR o

MREt &S UGBS, - AEEEEA T
IR E M EEESEEAAESREER
B2 EERBIEMHRIE - HEE A ERIKREIE
HEZEERBBIE - THARERERERK
RENAETFREEER R —RF
+ZA=+—H0 BERERWFEZERET
BEAARE,628000C(=ZE—HF : ARKE
84,088,0007T ) ©
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

2. €M T B
b £RAEBEEBZENBERE @)

RBEEER

ERTBESRRE ANEEFELRER
ERERATMBENAEEMEEMTH—TK
FReRBAEEEY  RERERERBNF
2. ERENGETRITEENER - LR
BTEREE -

TREJFEEITESREBREDTER
FEROBTANEHA - ZRBIIRIBERA
SEAHEBR I NNKF BB R B ERT
RADRERE - ZEXBEEMNERAEH

S=3=%
JLE °

Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3months  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year cashflows amount
nE RERHD @A AWERE
Fi9FI= R3MEA EE RELE EHE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR%TT ARBTR
The Group r&EE
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—FRE+-A=1—H
Trade and other payables B oL EMEN B - 1,320,446 281,165 1,601,611 1,601,611
Liabilities associated with transferred trade R ZIEHE HIEMIE
receivables BBzl - 180,322 - 180,322 180,322
1,500,768 281,165 1,781,933 1,781,933
As at 31 December 2015 RZE-R&E+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables B 5 RE B TR - 1,745,855 351,750 2,097,605 2,097,605
1,745,855 351,750 2,097,605 2,097,605

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next six months from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed bills receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these bills fail to honour their obligations, please refer to note 40
for details.

h%i]ﬁ?ﬁlf,\%EiHHX#EE’J%quﬂTﬁﬁﬁ§
R EREIETESRBEIHNETAS

§ET ﬁnﬂ °
B ESCRrELAN - AR B B RS B AR AR ROR

1.H A TREE SR
BRENDSERERE  WZEE

RAEEAFEE

o anpd

RITRGEBITHEMS  FIRELNRABER

Bemt -

EACE

2BMI5E40 ©
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42. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

M EREASENAEELSHEREERS
MABERATEZER -

BEKSEHEERANVEFEZAEBERE
EREREBEZATE

AEEHTEREENSRBBENSREHR
BRATERE - TRAAEEHSAZEERHE
EREREBEAFEZEESN(LEZMA

ZEEDERBARE) -

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets 31 December 2016 hierarchy and key input
RZB—XRE fRELER
SREE TZA=t+—HZATE AEEZER ETWARE
Listed AFS investments Listed equity securities in Hong Kong Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
AR ERE — Coal industry RMB35,834,000 o RERMISMHR ERE
(2015: RMB29,293,000)
REBK LHRAF S
—BERITE
AR #35,834,0007C
(ZE—H1%F:
AR #29,293,0007T)
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contracts Level 2 Discounted cash flow.
instruments —RMB71,020,000 (2015: Nil) Epk e Future cash flows are estimated base
THESHMIA REPHNES A on forward exchange rate (from

— AFR#71,020,0007T
(ZZE—F%F : &)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

observable forward exchange rates
at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted
at a rate that reflects the credit risk
of various counterparties

BERBEENE

ARERIR @M TR 5 R B
(2R B $ & BA R 0 AT R 25 B
E)REKERNE - BIRAR
M Z E45F 7 R EE R T
EHTIR

HAN SR B 5024 2 PRI If A 3 -
UHRBELEMEERAVENEZFEES
MEERSMEBEZIATE

EERA  RAE P TEHMR AR HR AR
ZEMEERSHAGNEREEREAFER
=
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43.

44,

Events after the reporting period

As at 3 March 2017, the registration of the change of shareholders
with industry and commerce authorities or other competent authorities
in respect of the Target Equity Interests have been completed. Upon
completion of the change of registration, the transfer of the Target Equity
Interests has been duly completed and the Target Equity Interests are
held by the Company. On 9 March 2017, the issuance of 93,220,338
consideration shares was completed. Upon completion of the issue, the
Company had a total of 1,714,342,338 shares.

Upon completion of the transfer of the Target Equity Interests, the Group
recogised the goodwill to the extent that the purchase consideration (details
of which are set out in note 28) exceeds the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the Target Equity Interests acquired. In addition, the
Group will apply consistent accounting policies, principal assumptions and
valuation method to assess impairment of goodwill in subsequent reporting
periods in accordance with the requirements under IAS 36.

Subsidiaries
General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
are as follows.

43.

44,

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation
MR
il PNTEE TEEK BRI E i B
Directly held:
BHERE -
HNERRBEEER AR (i) Manufacture of The PRC
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic hydraulic products F
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. (note a) FEERBES
WM BE AR B AR AR () Manufacture of The PRC
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery mining machinery F
Comprehensive Equipment HEE R
Co., Ltd. (note a)
BN RSB E Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC
BRAF (FizFa) and products e

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group FHEERES

Material Trading Co., Ltd. (note a)

HEMREE

HE-Z—+HE=-A=H BERENREZEELT
MR ECFEREMARESMIECEFED T
FERK - BEETTKE - BERRER KBS
AREEBEEERE - RZT—CF=ANA -
93,220,338 KB AR 0 B FTEAKEETT © TEANETTIE -
AT & £ 51,714,342,338% ©

BIREEEETRE - WEBREFBRIE2)E
RUBEEREERBNEERBEZAFENE
B ORREE - I AREMRIBEBEERE SR
ST ER - RN —EEFTHBOR - T2 LMh
E777% - ARHERN E R RS SR A ERE -

o) PN
B AR —MRER

R_B—RERZZE-HF+-A=+—HB &2
BB AR ZFBIT o

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid up Proportion of ownership
share capital/ interest and voting power
registered capital held by the Group
BRTRARRAE FEERERERER
HEMEAEE RRAEADL
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
% %
RMB15,000,000 100.00
AR#15,000,0007C
RMB100,000,000 68.89
AR #100,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000 100.00
AR10,000,0007T
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44, Subsidiaries (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

Name of subsidiary Principal activity

L) PEE=E TEEH

)R R B AR 2 B (FffTa) Manufacture of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face mining machinery
Machinery Co., Ltd. (note a) R

BEKEERLNEERERAR Manufacture of
(PFig5Fa) mining machinery
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group A EE SRR,
Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. (note a)

ER IR R AER AR (MFa)  Manufacture of

Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. mining machinery
(note a) R
BEEAATNEAREMEAF (ML)  Aftermarket service of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Siberia mining machinery
Co., Ltd. (note b) FREMWERRS
SEBERES (BE)ERAT Sale and purchasg of
ZMJ International Trading mining machinery
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. HERRBRE
R
ZMJ Germany Gmbh (Ffi 3F¢) (note ¢) Sale and purchase of
mining machinery/
research and
development of
mining products
THE LR
e,/ e
REER
B (M) BR AR (M) Sale and purchasg of
ZMJ America, Inc. (note f) mining machinery
THE LR
R

44, B AT (&)
BB ARz —MRE R )

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
operation registered capital held by the Group
ML BRTRBERA FEERERER
RYEEHE IMERHE RREADL
2015
“T-5F
%
The PRC RMB50,000,000 53.21
H AR #50,000,0007T
The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00
H AR #50,000,0007T
The PRC RMB78,600,000 57.97
H AR #78,600,0007C
Russia USD100,000 100.00
fHaEH 100,0003 7T
Hong Kong USD7,500,000 100.00
5 7,500,000% T
German EUR1,000,000 100.00
(e 1,000,000Ex 7T
Canada CAD100 100.00
mex 100407T
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44, Subsidiaries (Continued) 44. B~ 8] (@)
B ARz —RER @

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation
A
HE AR EHE TEEK Ry EE

EERCRAN ) BR AR (i) Sale and purchase of Australia
ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd. (note g) mining machinery SBA RS
THE MR
R

THRTERM L R) AR AE(FMiEh) Sale and purchase of auto  The PRC

ASIMO Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (note h)  parts and components
THE MR BT

Indiirectly held:

EERE -

N ERSBER AR (FFrakd) Sale of molding and The PRC

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd. metal material F
(notes a and d) BARSBEMHEE

BREBAEM R BR AT Sale of molding and The PRC

([ EPE gAML ) (HiFrakze) metal material H

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Gelin EEREBMEIHEE
Material Technology Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”) (notes a and e)

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRTREERE
HMEREE

USD200,000
200,000 7T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007C

RMB30,000,000
AE#30,000,0007

RMB50,000,000
AER#50,000,0007

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEERERER
FREBDL

2016
- i
%

2015
“T-51F
%

100.00

N/A
i

55.26

55.26
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44. Subsidiaries (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  All these subsidiaries are enterprises established in the PRC as companies
with limited liability. The English names of these companies represent
management’s best efforts to translate the Chinese names of these
companies as no English names have been registered.

(b)  Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Siberia Co., Ltd. was established by the
Company on 2 June 2011 in Russia. The English name of this company
represents management’s best effort to translate the Russian name of this
company as no English name has been registered.

() ZMJ Germany Gmbh was established by the Company on 20 August 2013 in
Germany. The English name of this company represents management’s best
effort to translate the German name of this company as no English name has
been registered.

(d)  Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd. was established by the Company
(38.60%) and the Company’s subsidiaries including ZMJ Comprehensive
Equipment (13.33%) and other non-controlling interests in 2011 in the PRC.

(e)  ZMJ Gelin Material was established by Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co.,
Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on 28 January 2013.

(f)  ZMJ America, Inc. was established by the Company on 3 February 2015 in
Canada.

(@ ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd. was established by the Company on 10 September
2015 in Australia.

(h)  ASIMO Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd. was established by the Company on
18 September 2016 in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

44. B Q8] (%)
MEB ARz —MRER (&)

i

@

ZEMBRARHYR/EPERIZERRF - ZERQ
ANAENERAEREERENEZERARNDXAE
EHRERE - BZEARMEEMAER -

HEBARNEEREFRAARTARN T ——
FRAZBERBRKYL - ZRFNEXEREAE
BEERNEZARNRERAMELNEZE B
DA BRSO o

ZMJ Germany Gmbh AR R BN =T —=F/\A=+H
FEREBKY - ZARINRNEBABTRESR W%
AEMERZRBELNEE  BZA &M
N -

EDN PR R SR PR A B A 7N 2 5)(38.60%) B2 AN 22 B
&N R (B RS R AR1(13.33%) ) SR HoAth FEIE AR i 2
R-Z——FHERERIL -

EPRAE MM B R AR B — IR E M B 2 7] E M
REFRERARN - T—=F— A=+ /\HKL -

BEE(ENERATNARRAR-E—RE_A
=HEMEARKIL

BEBORANE)BRARRARANR _ZE—1F
NA+TBERAMERIL

THRTERMUER)BRARREARRAR -
—RENATNBEPBKIL -

RAER - BENBRREITERNESES -
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45, Information about the statement of financial

position of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z— XFE+-_A=+—HIFE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y% -~ BB KRR E
Prepaid lease payments TE A ERIE
Investment properties WEME

Intangible assets mEE

Investments in subsidiaries RBATZIRE
Investments in associates REFERNT)ZIRE
Available-for-sale investments AHEE 2 RE
Deferred tax assets EERRTBEE

Debt investments BERRE

Finance lease receivables R AT E R IE
Long term receivables R EAREIIE

Loan receivables from subsidiaries JEU B A RIE R
CURRENT ASSETS REEE

Prepaid lease payments TE A EFRE
Inventories TE

Loan receivables from an associate JE—REEE AR E R
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M EWGRIA
Transferred trade receivables BRI E 5 EINGIE
Finance lease receivables EhE SR GRIA
Long term receivables REAFEYEIE
Derivative financial assets TESREE

Debt investments BIEEE

Other financial assets HEihemEE
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFIRITIER
Bank balances and cash RITERRES
CURRENT LIABILITIES REamsE

Trade and other payables B 5 M HMFERFRIA
Advances from customers BEES

Tax liabilities TIEAE

Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables

S EHENE S RUGIAER 2 A

NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERRBAR
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE

Other non-current liabilities HiEneaE
NET ASSETS EEFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR i

Share capital &N

Share premium {17 (8

Reserves (Note) G

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

3

ARRIRREG RS

2016
—B-AEF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

1,067,721
222,418
45,598
2,069
153,201
412,305
835
188,143

51,482
46,782
76,307

2,266,861

5,236
691,605
64,000
3,456,836
180,322
39,146
131,726
71,020
416,631
1,085,000
235,193
2,592,005

8,968,720

1,432,312
211,763
6,220
180,322

1,830,617
7,138,103
9,404,964

4,000
9,400,964

1,621,122
3,409,354
4,370,488

9,400,964

45. ERAR QA MBRR KR 2EHR

2015
—E—ARF
RMB’000
ARETIT

1,174,720
227,654
47,187
3,766
210,698
400,169
1,881
154,601
390,027
58,096
131,206
71,430

2,871,435

5,236
978,615
80,000
3,728,664

25,992
105,059

1,063,000
264,305
1,932,544

8,183,415

1,865,189
139,726
18,126
2,023,041
6,160,374
9,031,809

3,328
9,028,481

1,621,122
3,409,354
3,998,005

9,028,481
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45, Information about the statement of financial 45, BEER QAR B RRETRZ2ER (@)
position of the Company (Continued)

Note: s -

Reserves f#E

Statutory  Cash flow

Surplus hedging Other Retained
Reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
EEEER ReRhE
RE  HHEE HeRE  REEA ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARBTT ARETRT

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZBE-—RF-HA—-BAZ#&#H 520,096 - 42,435 3,411,849 3,974,380
Profit and total comprehensive income FREFREEB AL
for the year - - - 49,761 49,761
Other comprehensive expense for the year G R E fib 2 E - - 10,467 - 10,467
Contribution from the parent of the Company AR & & AFIHE - - 25,000 - 25,000
Transfer P 4,976 - - (4,976) -
Dividends (note 14) BB (MisE14) - - - (61,603) (61,603)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+-—A=+—H
2R 525,072 - 77,902 3,395,031 3,998,005
Profit and total comprehensive income FREFREEBALE
for the year - - - 274,670 274,670
Other comprehensive expense for the year G E fih 2 E A - 71,020 19,787 - 90,807
Contribution from the parent of the Company ZANA &8 A AT E - - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer g 27,467 - - (27,467) -
Dividends (note 14) iR S (Pi7E14) - - - (12,969) (12,969)
Others A - - (25) - (25)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-E—ARF+=-_A=+—H
2R 552,539 71,020 117,664 3,629,265 4,370,488

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016 20/ 4 Bt i & (B % 17 /5 BR. 2 &) 20164E 4R 219
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Revenue and profit:

W AR -

Revenue A
Profit before tax FiRIAIHE
Income tax expense FTsti & A
Profit for the year REEFHE

Profit for the year attributable to: AEEZFBES -
Owners of the Company PA/NCIE =N
Non-controlling interests SRR

Earnings per share (RMB cents)

BERAFNARED)

Assets and liabilities:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

BEHARE:
FRBEE
RBEE
RBEE
BB EFR
BEERRBAR
FRBAE
FEE
ARBBRREN

miR
ES iy £y

Summary Financial Information

BB EERE

2016
—E-RF
RMB millions
AREEER

62.00
(25.35)

3.82

2,520.49
9,407.69
2,164.90
1,242.79
9,763.28

4.75
9,758.53

9,674.17
84.36

2015 2014 2013 2012
—TAEF —E—NF —ET—=F —T—=F
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

AREBEET ARBEERT ARKEFEERT AREEERL
4,510.86 6,124.46 8,055.31 10,212.85
30.37 232.58 1,003.67 1,910.93
(19.76) (39.25) (166.69) (297.39)
10.61 193.33 836.98 1,613.54
42.20 205.19 866.71 1,589.15
(31.59) (11.86) (29.73) 24.39
2.60 12.67 53.46 112.04
3,245.32 3,135.66 2,661.52 2,554.58
8,804.16 9,060.22 9,989.92 10,452.06
2,412.24 2,594.92 2,948.77 3,579.97
6,391.92 6,465.30 7,041.16 6,872.09
9,637.24 9,600.96 9,702.68 9,426.67
14.78 17.16 20.49 72.82
9,622.46 9,583.80 9,682.18 9,353.85
9,502.57 9,432.32 9,518.85 9,160.78
119.89 151.48 163.33 193.07
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Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
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